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NWF Group is a specialist
distributor of fuel, food
and feed across the UK

Fuels

Accelerating
development

NWF Fuels is a leading distributor
of fuet oil and fuel cards delivering
over 865 mitlicn litres across the
UK to 116,000 customers.

Food |Feeds

Major | Growing
mvestment talent

i
Boughey Distribution is a leading NWTF Agriculture has grown to be a
consolidator of ambient grocery | leading national supplier of ruminant
products to UK supermarkets with 1 animal feed to 4,750 customers in
over one million {t° of warehousing ! the UK, feeding one in six dairy cows
and significant distribution assets. | in Britain.

Find out more about NWF and watch
our latest video ot www.nwi.co.uk



Highlights

Divisional highlights

Fuels
Headline operating profit

£11.0m

+96.4%

Abead of previous expectations. Significant
growth attributable to an increase in volume
and expansion of geographic coverage from
acquisitions. A dramatic fall in the oil price
and an increase in demand for heating oil
from domestic customers during lockdown
delivered substantial gne-gff gains.

Read more on poges 6-9

Financial highlights

Revenue
£687.5m
+2.4%

20 G87.5

19 B71.3

18 611.0

Headiine profit before tax' 2

£13.2m

+3B6.1%

20 13.2
1§ 9.7

18 10.2

Food
Headline operating profit

£1.4m

L -22.2%

Phe underlying performance from the
business was in line with expectations. The
business incurred ane-off start-up costs of
£0.5million as planned for the significant
warehouse expansion in Crewe, which is
backed by customer contracts. Operationally
the business successfully managed the increase
in supermarket desnand during lockdown.

Read more on pages 10-1

Total dividend per share

6.9p

+4.5%
20 6.3
13 5.6
18 5.3

Headline operating profit"?

£14.3m

+40.2%
20 143
19 10.2
18 10.6

Feeds
Headline operating profit

£1.9m

-32.3%
Strong volurme and market share growth

i Ina smaller ruminant market. However these

volume henefits were offset by higher energy
costs and margin pressure in the second half
following commodity cost increases.
investment in the future with the launch

of the NWF Academy training our future
nulritionists to support conlinued growth.

! Read more on pages 12-13

Fully diluted headline EPS'

20.3p

+28.5%
20

70.3 ’
19
18 16.7 '

Net debt ta headline EBITDA®

0.7x

20 0.7 '
19 0.7 '

15.8

18 0.4

Headhne operatirg profit excluaes exceptional items{see note 5!and amort:sation of acquired intangibles Headiine profit before taxat on excludes excoptianal items amortisation c*
acquired intangibles and the et finance cost in respect of the Group's definec benefit pension scheme. Diluted headane earnings per share also take into account the tazation effect thereon.

7 lesults tor the year ended 31 May 2070 a-e oresented tollowing the adootl on ot IFRS 6 Leases”. the impact of which 1s lo increase operating orofit and headline operat ng orefit by
13 2 mullion. ®rofit hetare taxation ard neatine profit before taxation are ~educec by £0.7 milion with the inglusion o E0.4 mliion of fingnece o315 unger the new standard. The Group
has electer tnapply the stirplified transtior approach ang a5 such comparative periods have not been restaten.

3 Netdeblioheadine FBH DA 1s calculeted based or net debt excluding IFRS 16 lease fiabilities. The headhne EBITDA salcu:ation excludes the :mpact of IFRS 16 depreciatior.
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Overview
Chdair’s statement

great response
from all our people

summary

» Sustained delivery throughout the year, revenue growth with
increased activity levels in all divisions.

« Swift and effective response to Covid-19:

- All divisions have remained open and operational, providing
essential services.

- Effective safe working practices implemented, enabling an
efficient response to increased demand.

- High service levels maintained.
« No Government support utilised and no staff furloughed.
+ Proposed 4.5% increase to the total dividend to 6.9p per share,

reflecting the Board's confidence in the resilience and
prospects of the business.

2 NWF Group pic
Annusl Reportand Accounts 2070

Overview

{ am pleased to report a year of significant growth for the
Group with ali three divisions making progress. | am proud
of the response of all our employees to the Covid-18
pandemic and would like Lo thank them for their ongoing
efforis during this difficuit time. NWF is a resitient
business and plays a key role in providing food, feed and
fuelto the country. We conlinued to operate at full
capacity and satisficd the ingreased demand from our
customers during the lockdown period. Employees arc
designated key workers, their safety is paramount and we
swiftly introduced safe ways of working across the Group
and moved all ermployees to home working where
practical. | am also pleased to report that NWF has not
utilised any form of Government support, furloughed any
employees or delayed payments through this critical time.

As a consequence of the good progress achieved, the
Group's cash generation, and confidence in the Group's
resilience and fulure prospects, the Board is
recammending a final dividend of 5.9p per share, to be
paid to sharehaolders on 8 December 2020 (2013: 5.8p}
giving a total dividend of 8.9p per share (201%: 6.6p).

# 4.5% increase on the priar year,

\ Qur business

NWF Group is a specialist distributor delivering fuel, food
and feed across the UK. Each of our trading divisions has
scale and good market position, and is profitabie and
cash generative. Each division trades under different
brands with their own brand architecture as follows:

Fuelg NWF Fuels{inciuding a number of locai
sub-brands}

Food Boughey

Feeds  NWF Agriculture, SC Feeds, New Breed
and Jim Peet

Read more about our divisions on pages 6-13
Key areas of focus for the Board in 2020 were:

Responding proactively to market conditions

The Group has responded well to markel conditions
experienced during the year. The demand for fuci was
robust through the summer and into the winter. As lockdown
commenced there was a significant increasc in derand for
heating oil across the country which we delivered effectively
from our 25 depots. This increased demand, coupled with
Lthe sharp fall in the oif price, enabled lower prices o be
passed on (o customers whilst improving margins. In Food
we successfully managed the volatility of demand during the



period of Brexit uncertainty in the autumn when stocks
were built up in the supply chain. From February 2020

 as the impact of the Covid-19 pandemic was apparent,

derand for ambient groceries from supermarkets

increased dramaticaily. We were able to respond and meet
this increased demand, whilst implementing safe ways of
working. Against a backdrop of lower feed market volumes,
NWEF increased ils velumes by focusing on the nutritional

. necds of our farming customers.

Relivering on strategy
The Group completed the acquisition of three Fuels
busmesses during the year in line with our strategic plan.
Uur geographic reach was broadened through these
acquisitions. Ribble Fuel Dils and Caldo operate in the
North West extending our presence north and into
Yorkshire. Darch in Somerset and Devon expands our
presence in the South West. All these businesses have
heen successfully integrated into Fueis, The Covid-18
pandemic has caused us Lo put a lemporary pause on our
Fuefs acguisition strategy. In Food we have significantiy
oxpanded our warehousing capabilily by leasing and
operating & new 240,000t warehouse bached by customer
contracts. This iIncreases our storage capacity by 35%.
The fit out of this warehouse was completed during the
lockdown period and it is now fully operational. The NWF
cademy in Feeds has been launched, which trains future
nutritionists over a structured 18-month programme,

Cash generation
Cash generation remains a focus for the Group and net

debt has been maintained at less than 0.7x EBITDA having |

compleled three acguisitions in the year and wilh the
investment in a significant warehouse expansion.

Rewarding good service

The consistent focus on excellence in customer service
across the Group has been critical to our continued
development and has enabled gains to be achieved

in each of the three divisions in the year.

Commodity volatility

Volatllity in oll and feed commodity prices was significant
and the businesses managed this effectively, in Fuels,
the price of oil{which is purchased on the spot market)
moved dramatically with a high point of 383 per barrel and
arecord low of 318 per harre! for Brent Crude. 1n line with
market practice, Feeds buys must of its raw materials
under forward purchase contracts. Significant changes
in feed input commaodities were managed through feed
prices during the year.

New Crewe warehouse

The Group has invested £1.9 milion into a new
35.000 pallet space warchouse in Crewe for our
Food division, which increases capacity by 35%.

Read more gbout this investment on pages 10-11

Watch the construction timefapse in
our lgtest video at nwf.co.uk

ESG framework

The Board recognises the importance of good

corporate governance and continues to adopt the

Quoted Companies AMliance Corporate Governance Code
[the QCA Code)which we believe has heen conslructed in
a simple, practical and effective slyle and thal meaningful
compliance with ils ten main principles should provide
shareholders with confidence in how the Group operates.
Qur ESG tramoewaork has been expanded with the
development of our sustainability policy which is now

on uur website and is detailed in the Annual Report.

Reod more about our Sustoinability Policy on pages 22-25
Read our 5.172 statement on page 34

Employees

The Group now employs in excess of 1,200 people across
the three divisions and Head Office. | wou!d like to offer
my personal thanks to all of our employees for their
outstanding efforts and commitmenl to the Group during
these challenging times.

Board of Directors

1 would like ta personally thank Yvenne Monaghan, who
steps down from the Board in September 2020, for her
caontribution as a highly valued member of the Board in
her role as Senior Independent Non-Executive Director

| and Chair of the Audit Committee. We are pleased to

welcome Richard Armitage, who joined the Board on
1July 2020 and will succeed Yvonne as Chair of the Audit
Committee in September 2020 | am also pleased to
report that David Downie will succeed Yvonne in the role
of Senior independent Non-Executive Director.

{ lnok forward to updating shareholders on the Group’s
continuing pragress at the time of the Annual General
Meeting on 24 September 2020.

Philip Acton
Chair

4 August 2020

Total dividend per share

P

(2019: 6.6p)
NWF Group plc

awt Co.Lh
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Strategic report
Chief Executive’s review

emonstrating
resilience and growth

“A very strong set of results and fully
operational throughout the year.”

summary

- Market share gains in Fuels and Feeds and sclid operational
performance in Food.

« Three Fuels acquisitions completed and successfully
integrated during the year in line with our strategy, increasing
the scale of the business by over 20%.

- Food's new 240,000ft* warehouse now fully racked increasing
our total storage capacity by 35% to 135,000 pallets,
underpinned by long-term customer contracts.

« Significant cutperformance in Fuels as a result of an
unprecedented fall in the oil price, and a significant increase

in domestic demand during lockdown delivered one-off gains.

4 NWF Group plc
AnnualReparl and Accounts 7020

Overview

. NWEF has delivered a very strong set of resuits

demonstrating both resilience and growth. Three
acquisitions have been completed in Fuels and we

have added significant additional warehouse capacily

to support long-term custamer contracts in Food. Feeds
qained share with volume growth in a contracting market.
The fundamental resilience of the Group has been
highlighted with the response to the Covid-18 crisis. Huge
thanks must go to all our employees for their outstanding
effortsin very challenging times. Altour employees were
designated as key workers, demand increased, deliveries
to customers were completed and safe working and home
working where possible were implemented in early March
and remain cffective today.

¢ Astrong focus on cash has continued and the record

! profit performance has been converted into cash

. ensuring the Group has significant headroom under 113
. banking facililies and against its covenants during this

period of uncertain economic outiook. We are proposing
an increased dividend, demonstrating the Board's
confidence inthe resilience of the Group, and have

a number of strategic dovelopment opportunities

which we cantinue to review,

Fuels has delivered an outstanding result in the year,
completing and successfully integrating three acquisitions
and trading ahead of expectations throughout the year.
The business successfuliy defivered the significant
increase in demand for heating oit during lockdown.

The Food division's underlying performance was solid and
the business expanded significantly with the addition of a
new 240,0006t* warehouse backed by customer contracts.
The demand for Food increased draratically as lockdown
commenced and the business satisfied this additional
demand and completed the fit out of the new warchouse
by the year end as planned. Feeds grew volume ina
smalier market, gaining share with demand remaining
reasonably robust during lockdown. We alsa launched the
NWF Academy, which wilt train our future nutritionists
aver a structured 18-month programme, to sugport
further business development.

The Group delivered headline operating profit of £14.3 miflion
{2019: £10.7 miilion)and headline profit before tax was 36.1%
higher at £13.2 milion(2019: £9.7 million). Dperating profit
increased by 40.6% to £13.5 million(2019: £9 6 million).
Diuted headline earnings per share were 28.5% higher

at 20.3p(2013: i5.8p)



Cash management remains strong with net debt
of F12.3 million(2019: F10.4 million)excluding lease
liahifities, representing 0.7« EBITDA, after £7.9 millicn

 of development expenditure and £3.8 miliion of normal

net capital expenditure. Development expenditure was
£.6.0 millicn on Fuels acquisitions and £1.9 million capital

_ investment in the new Food Crewe warehouse.

' Outlook
. In Fuels. we have a proven depot operating model and arc

leveraging our capability by increasing the depot network
through acquisitions. The opportunity to consolidate the
market remains significant. in the new financial year

. Fuels will benefit from a full year contribution from the
© 2020 acquisitions, but does not anticipate a repeat of the

exceptional conditions in the oil market.

In Food, we are focused an continuing to fill and fully

i utilise pur new warehouse in Crewe, having incurred

i+ significant start-up costs as planned guring 2020. We

' are also continuing to improve efficiency, working with

| our customers and managing the variable demand patterns
. that have been a consequence of Covid-19 and the end

of the Brexit transitional arrangements.

In Feeds, current margins and volumes are in line with
our expectations for this time of the year. Our mills in
the North, Cheshire and the South West are aligned to
the needs of our farming cusiomers in these key areas
of the country.

The Group has ciearly demonstrated its resilience and
capability to deliver growth, and has strong cash flows
and flexible banking facilities to fund growth alongside
a strong asset base. We wilt therefore continue to consider
acqguisition opportunities, building on our successfut
track record of acquiring and integrating businesses,

as well as investment in organic development,

Pcrformance to date in the current financial year has
been in line with the Board's expectations. Overall, the
Board cantinues to remain confident about the Group's
future prospects.

Richard Whiting
Chief Executive

4 Aygust 2020

|
v

|

Feeds Sales

Academy

NWF is committed

to developing future

nutritionises,

Read more on
pages 12-13

o

See this year’s

Academy intake in

our lgtest video
at nwf.co.uk

QsA

What were the key highfights from the last twelve months?
In the first nine months of the financial year the Group
traded positively with three Fuels acquisitions completed
and successfully integrated, the commencement of 2
significant expansion of the Food division and the launch of
the Feeds Sales Academy all achieved before March 2020.
Asg the nation went into lockdown during the last

three months of our financial year, and with a great
response from our teams, we remained fully operational,
and met the significant increased demand for food from
the supermarkets and fuel from domestic customers.

What is NWF's ESG policy?

The key aspects of our ESG framework are covered

in the Groug's corparate governance report and our
suslainability strategy. We conlinue to adopt the Quoted
Companies Alliance’s ten principles of gonod governance
and our sustainabiity stralegy focuses on four pillars:
crealing a cullure of safety, investing in cur people,
building strong partnerships and respecting

the enviranment.

How has NWF managed through the Covid-19 crisis?
Covid-19 has clearly demonstrated the Group's resilience
in supplying fuel, food and fecd acrass the country and
demand for these essential supplies has remained robust.
We met the increased demand for food from the supermarkets
and homeowners needs for additional fuel as a conseguence
of staying at home. All our employees were designated as
key workers and | am very proud of everyone’s outstanding
efforts and that as a Group we did not utilise any Government
support or furlough any employees.

Stay up to date at nwl.co.uk

“We will continue to consider
development opportunities.”

Development capital expenditure

£7.9m

(20%9: £4.5m)

NWF Group plc
e Couk
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strategic report
Divisional review: Fuels

Accelerating
development

With 116,000 customers being supplied
across 25 fuel depots, Fuels operatesin
rnarkets that are large and robust and, as a
husiness, it has consistently proved it can
effectively manage the volatility in oil prices.
The industry remains highly fragmented,
with many small operators, which we
continue to believe provides an opportunity
for NWF to further increase market share.

Customers

116,000

{2019: 83.000)

Litres of fuet delivered

665m

(2019: 552m)
Fuel depots owned Acquisitions
(2019: 19} {2018: 2}

Richard Huxley
Managing Director,
Fuels

“A great team performance,
acquisitions successfully
integrated, and we serviced
the increased demand from
our customers during the
lockdown period.”

6 NWF Group plc
Annual Report ang Accounts 2070



Review of the year

Fuels outstanding performance was a consegquence of solid
trading througnoudt the year with animproved product mix,
the benefit of three acquisitions in 2020 and the full year
impact of acguisitions completed in the priar year. In addition,
there was a significant demand increase throughout
lockdown which resulted in over 37% moare deliveries than
the prior year on a like-for-like basis. Leveraging the benefits
of a newer, modern fleet the business was able to pricritise
domestic customers as commercial demancd feli during
lockdown. At the same time the price of ail fell dramatically
throughout March and April, enabling the business to pass

. onlower prices whilst strengthening margins.

" Votumes rose 20.5% to 665 million litres (2019: 552 million

{itres), and revenue increased by 8.1% to L47G.2 millicn

. {2019: £443 .0 million)as a result of higher volumes more
¢ than offsetting lower oil prices. On a like-for-like basis

i {excluding acquisitions in the year) volumes were stabie,

but with a significantly increased proportion of heating
oil. The average Brent Crude cil price in the year was
$54 per barrel compared to 570 per barrel in the prior
year. it hit a record low of $19 per barrei in April 2020.

Headline operating profit was £11.0 million{2019: £5.6 million)
as a conseguence of increased voiumes, both organic and
from acquisitions. positive product mix and improved margins
across the year. Net profits of 1.6 pence per litre highlight
the one-off gain of approximately 0.6 pence perlitre in the

Good strategic progress has been made with three
acquisitions successfully completed and integrated,
Ribble Fuel Oils and Caldo {North West)and Oarch
{South West), expanding the depot network with six
addgitional locations and adding 120 million litres to
the volume of the division. an increase of over 20%.

The Fuels division operates on a de-centralised mode|
with depot management teams focused on aptimising
pertormance for the specific conditions of their local market.
This model supported our ability to respond swiftly and
effectively to the increased consumer demand and significant
commodity price volatility experienced during lockdown. We
continue to believe that cur model is the most effective way
to maximise performance, given the industry structure, but
we also believe there are spportunities to leverage benefits
trom the breadth of our growing netwaork. As such we
continue to invest in enhancing systems and capabilities for
the Fuels division which we believe will improve efficiencies
and provide a strong platform for continued growth.

With over 116,000 custormers{20193: 63,000} being
supplied across 25 fuel depots in the year (2019 18},
Fuels operates inlarge ard robust markets and as a
business it has consistently proved it can effectively
manage the impact of volatility in ait prices. The industry
remains highly fragmented, with many smail operators,
which provides NWF with further opportunities to
consolidate the market and increase share.

year as a result of the unprecedented fall in the oil price |
and the dramatic increase in demand for heating oil. |

Division KPIs

Revenue
£470.2m
+5,1%

20 470.2

19 443.0

18 400.7

Three Fuels acquisitions
These increase velumes by over 20% and

expand our geographic reach and penetration.

Read more about our acquisition
strategy on poges 8-9

“We will continue to
consider acquisition
opportunities.”

Headline operating profit

£11.0m

+9B.4%

20 H.0
19 5.6
18 6.9

Volume (litres)

665m

+20.5%

20 665 '
19 552 '
18 543 '

Market trends and our responses

Increased domestic demand

during lockdown

As people were asked to stay at home there was
a significant increase in demand for heating
oil to keep homes warm during this period.
The demand increased dramatically and we
were able to focus our fleet of 154 tankers
to deliver this fuelto homes across the
country. NWF operates a depot focused
model which was critical in enabling our

2b depot teams to respond to the needs of
customers in their focal area. In the peried
March to May 2020, 37% more deliveries
were completed compared to the prior year.

Added value services

The Fuels division introduced the supply

of AdBlue as a value-added service to aur
customer base during the year. AdBlue is
required in all new diesel vehicles and we
were able to offer both bulk and small storage
units for AdBlue on our customers' premises.

Improving our environmental impact

The business has made a significant investment
in new fuel-efficient Euro B tankers which have
an impraved fuel efficiency and lower emission
levels. As we have acquired new businesses,
new tankers are being ordered for these
depots. Envirgnmental due diligence is
performed on all acquired businesses

with a programme of enviranmental
improvement implemented as required.

NWF Group plc 7
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Strategic report
Divisional review: Fuels continued

Our acquisition
strategy

Our strategy
« Lansgidate a mghly fragmented rathet.
= Expanaesisting gecgraphical area.
s INCrease business gensity in
s¥sting territaries,
+ bnhance pragurt and customer m.x
nhcoth nevs ana existing terrntares,

» Regziise efficiencies fromincreasad scaw.

How we delivered

« Acguired three businesses across rthe
LUK duning FY19/20.

+ Over 120 mididor ditres of business added.

« £9.4 millun consideration paid.

Recent acquisitions

December 2018
« Migtand Qit Supphes

April 2019
« Consols s

July 2019
» Hibhie Fuel Chs

Capacity
October 2019
o +20%
December 2019

(2019: +30%)

+ [darch Od

Consideration paid

£9.4m

{2019: £5.0m)

Acquisition process
Tne Group has a clear established process

o the jdentitication, valuation, acquisiion

Proactive target >
identitication

Clear valuation >
and pricing strategy

and integration of complementary o

drstripution busineszes. NWF continues o develop a pipeline of
acguisition opportunities focused on UK
ol distripution businesses, Upportunities
are sourced fromya combination of pro-active

" approaches by NWF. off-maruet approaches
to NWF Dy seliers and participation n
format sales procenses. NWF targets
those businesses whose busmess model
and gecgraphy will combine with NWF
mast etfectively to create additional
sharefioider value,

8 NWF Group pic

B

The Group has a standardised process for
assessing the vatue of a target business
to NWF and pricing the transaction
accordingly. The Graup operates within
this process and quickly rejects
cppartunities that do rof meet its
vahuation and pricing parameters,




Key
Existing depot

Onm

New depots acquired
1M ast tweive morths

uodai :1Baons

.| Effective transaction > Integration and
1 process value delivery

NWF has an estabhshed legal
envi*onmental and financial due diligence
process and advisory team which combines
with in-hguse operationa and commer mai
due dingence and integration plannmg.
Thig enablies the Group 1o conciude
transact:onsin an effective cost efficient
and timely manner.

ihe Group has a ciear post-atquisition
integration strategy and plan to ensure
that sharehclder value b dehivereg, 1he
integration smodel s Dased onretaining
the brand and customer-facimg aspects of
the acguired business whiist centralising
finance 17T and credit controita croate
efficiencies and (o bring processes in line
with the wider Group,

NWF Group ple
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| Strategic report

bivisional review: Food ‘

|
|
|
I

Major
Investment

The business operates in a competitive
supply chain and needs to continualty
demonstrate the value and service that

it provides to food manufacturers and
importers. The business has a leading
position in consolidating ambient grocery
products in the North West, with high service
levels, industry leading systems and a strong
operating performance being the key
components of its customer proposition.

Pallets stored

103,000

(2018: 100, [}OD

Peaple

682

(2018: 812)

Trucks Trailers

118 266

{2018:127} 12014: 252)

Keith Forster
Managing Director.
Food

“Delivering critical food
supplies across the UK and
investing in a significant
expansion of the business.”

‘EU l?lWFGrounplc L



Review of the year

- This has been a year of significant development with the

planring and investment in a new 240,000ft” warehouse
in Crewe backed by iong-term customer cantracts, which
increases the storage capacity of the business by 35%
t0 135,000 pallet spaces. The underlying performance has
been in line with expectations and the business managed
the huge demand peak in ambient groceres from the

" supermarkets in February and March.

Revenue increased by 0.6% to £48.3 million {2019:

- £47.8 million). Starage overall was at an average of
. 103,000 pallets {2019: 100,000 pallets). with external

warchousing being utilised until April. Significantly,
pailets despatched increased by 4% on the prior year,

- reflecting the increased activity of new customer

contracts and the additiona! demand experrenced
before and during lockdown,

Headline operating profit was £1.4 million(2013: £1.8 million),
reflecting the solid underlying business performance offset
by £0.5 million of one-off start-up costs incurred at Crewe.
Demand continued to increase for e-fulfitment business with

“The outlook for most product categories
handled by the business is resilient.”

In Fegruary 2020 the Group commenced operalions

in an additional leased 240,000f7 warehouse ‘n Crewe
conveniently located close to the MB and to its main
Wardle site. This newly constructed. state-of-the-art
farility is backed by long-term customer contracts,
The facility was fully racked out and completec on time
and in line with budget in spite of lockdown and is fully
operattonal with stock build underway,

Demand for our customers’ products continues to

te stable and the outlook for most product categories
handled by the business is resilient. The business cperates
in 2 competitive supply chain and needs to continually
demonstrate the value and service that it pravides to food
manufacturers and importers. The business has aleading
position in consolidating ambient grocery productsin the
Narth West, with high service levels. indusltry leading
systems and a strong operating performance being the
key components of its customer proposition.

additional customers now utilising the facility, and the
packing roam and Palletline were in ine wilh expectations.

Division KPIs

Revenue
£48.3m
+0.8%

20 483 '

19 479

18 40.4

Crewe warehouse

Investing £1.9 million in a new 240,0001°
warehouse in Crewe hag created

55 additional, permanent local jobs.

"Our new 240,000ft
warehouse was fully racked
out during lockdown thanks
to the support of a number
of contractors and is now
fully operational.”

Headline operating profit

£1.4m

-22.2%
20 1.4

19 1.8 ’

Pallets stored

103,000

+3.0%
20 103,000
139 100,000
18 90,000

Significant increase in demand from the
supermarkets during the Covid-13 crisis
From February 2028 onwards there was
an unprecedented, significant increase
indemand for ambient groceries from

all supermarkets. We worked with all our
customers and supermarkets to meet
this increased demand, utilised overtime
and subcontractors and have recruited
additional staff to support this demand,
whilst implementing safe methods of
working to ensure our employees are safe.

Growth of online and home delivery

In Food we deliver our customers' products
to all their delivery points which includes all
the home delivery food operatars, The
increase in online shopping does not
negatively impact our business, it simply
changes the mix of delivery destinations
as we deliver to retailers’ warehouses, The
growth of online has caused an increase
inthe demand from our e-fulfilment operation
which has increased both the number of
customers and throughpul.

Market trends and our responses

impact of Brexit

We store food produced in the UK and from
customers who import ambient grocery
products from around the world. With the
previous Brexit deadlines customers did
work with us and some wanted 1o increase
stockhglding to ensure they maintained
service levels. As we near the end of the
transition period we will again work with
customers to meet their needs. We have
some additional capacity with our new
warehaouse in Crewe fully operational.

The demand for ambient groceries inthe
UK is linked to the size of the UK populaticn
which is slowly increasing and therefore
our future market demand levels are rebust.

NWF Graup plc
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Strategic report
Divisional review: Feeds

Growing
talent

NWF provides nutritional advice to farmers
across the country with over 60 trained
nutritional advisors analysing forage and
farmers’' objectives to deliver feed to
optimise performance. Feed is then
produced from mills across the UK and
delivered directly to farmers with the
majority of the business being dairy, but
also supporting beef and sheep farmers.

Tonnes

625,000

(2019: 531.000)

People

228

(2019: 203)

Trucks Trailers

40 14

{2019: 38) {2019:13)

Andrew Downie
Managing Director,
Feeds

"We are pleased to have
grown the business to a record
625,000 tonnes of ruminant
feed and launched the Feeds
Sales Academy which delivers
an 18-month structured training
pregramme to develop the
nutritionists of the future.”

‘I 2 NWF Group plc
Anrual Report anc Accounts 2020



Review of the year

" Feeds increased market share across the country
supplying more feed direct to farms, to feed merchants
and to other compounders. Total feed volume increased
by 5.8% to 625,000 tonnes(2019: 581,000 tonnes). Feed
market volumes ended the year 6% down compared to
the prior year, in part owing to goed silage stocks on farm
and partly as a result of a lower milk price for a number
of farmers who looked to reduce feed inputs.

" Dommaodity orices gradually declined in the first half ta
Novermnber 2019 and then increased steadily before a sharp

- peakin eariy April 2020 at aievel 30% higher than the low point.

" then subsequently reducing. This resulted in price Increases
in the second half following the commeodity cost increases.

Revenue was lower at £169.0 million (2019: £180.4 million)
reflecting the lower average feed and commodity
prices in 2020. Headline operating profit was £1.9 million
{2013: £2.8 millicn). Higher energy costs and increases in
commadity prices impacted marging and offset the
volume benetits.

“Providing nutritional advice to ruminant
farmers across the country backed by a
very weli invested operational platform.”

Feeds launched the NWF Academy in September 2018

in which new trainees engage on an 18-month structured
fraining programme to become future NWF nutritionists.
The Academy has recruited a second group to the

programme which has been well received across the industry.

Average milk prices in Great Britain were reasonably stable.

moving from 28.0p to 26.8p per litre over the period with &

high of 29.9p per litre in November 2013. Ouring lockdown,

with lower levels of demand from the food service sector,
milk pricing came under short-term pressure, Reflecting

this environment, milk production fell marginally by 0.8%
to 12.5 billion litres (2019: 12,6 billion fitres).

Feeds has a very broad cuslomer base, working with
aver 4,750 farmers across the country. This base, and
Lhe underlying robust demand far milk and dairy products,
results in a reasonably stable overall demand for our feed

Division KPIs

Revenue
£169.0m
. -B8.3%
! 20 169.0
| = >

'8 169.9

Agriculture Academy

The Feeds Sales Academy was faunched in
September 2018 and has 18 trainees engaged
on an 18-month structured programme to
become future NWF nutritionists.

in most market conditions.,

Headiine operating profit

£1.9m

-32.1%
20 1.9
19 2.8 ’
18 30

Volume (tonnes)

625,000

+5.8%
20 §25.000
19 591,000

18 589,060 '

Ruminant market 6% lower in 2020

The rgminant market is reasonably stable
and resilient. The reduction in 2020 was a
result of high levels of forage stocks and
some farmers experiencing lower milk
prices in the yeas, At NWF we were sble

to increase volumes and therefore grow
our market share with deliveries direct

1o farm, through merchants and to other
compounders. There was some indication
of short-term dairy demand reduction for
food service gutiets during lockdown, but
this did not significantly impact feed demand.

Consolidation of dairy farmers

Over the last 20 years there has beena
significant reduction in the number of dairy
farmers which has been equally offset by

a growth in average herd size. This trend,
which has stowed inrecent years owing to
a lack of land avaifability and some planning
constraints, supports the need for high quality
nutritiona! advice and not a generalist sales
resource. This plays to our strengith of a
nalicnwide team of trained nulritionists
and underpins our investment in the

NWF Academy.

Market trends and our responses

Environmental impact of dairy farming
With increasing concefrns with regards

to the environmental impact of the food
supply chain, NWF is well placed to advise
on optimum nutrition to maximise yield

and therefore minimise the environmental
impact of a dairy farm. We work closely with
our farming customers o meet the needs
and specifications set out by retailers and
dairies to support a good environmental
approach. Dur skilled technical team
continues to ook for new solutions and
diels which can optimise production and
reduce environmental impacts. Many of the
raw materials used in feed production are
by-progucts of the human food supply
chain which therefore utilises what are,

in effect, waste products.

NWF Group plc
awlco.uk
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Strategic report
Business model

Focused on

value creation

Industry insight

Excellence in customer service

Customer service is the number one pricrity. whether it is
reaching nine cut of ten caliers who have run out of fuel
on the same day, delivering excellent service levels in food
or delivering to farm within 24 hours when needed by farmers.

Building on a solid platform

The Group has cstablished a solid platform wilh slrong
profit development and cash conversion. Competitive
banking facilities support the Group's development.

Understanding our markets

Estabtished in 1871, the Group adds value to our customers
through an in depth knowledge of the oil. food distribution
and agricultural markets.

Capital investment

Our strategy is to maintain a pasition of financial strength
whiist growing the business through considered
mvestment in peapie, plant and equipment.

Acquisitions
Tre Group's strateqy is to make key acquisitions to increase
ponetration, scale or geographic reach within its divisions.

Organic growth
Organic growth continues ta be driven through our
diversified and service led divisions.

Ga.;;\tal investm, -

Creating
shareholder
value

%erstanding our Mo

Investment case

Strong
management team

Sotid track record with ambition

3 1

completed Fuels acguisitions

Growth
opportunities

Consolidate and optimise

clear strategy

Asset backing

Strong balance sheet

£178.4m

total assets

‘Ilf NWF Group pie
Annual Report and Accounts 2070



“The Covid-19 crisis highlighted the
fundamental resilience of the NWF
business model with all divisions fully
operational during lockdown.”

Richard Whiting
Chief Executive

Three strong divisions

Fuels

« Industry leading customer service from 25 depots across the UK

« Scale delivers efficiency and value for commercial and
domestic customers

« Delivery flexibility focusing on delivering to oit users who have
cxperienced a run-out

+ Supply agreements with major oil companies for security of supply
and campetitive pricing

Food

« Market leading national ambient grocery consclidation service
= High service levels

, + Award winning IT team and industry leading systems with

customers utitising live stack and dehivery data

« Efficicnt warchousing and transport delivering a value proposition
for food manufacturers and importers

+ High warchouse and vehicle asset utilisation

' Feeds

» Key nutritional advisor to over 4,750 ruminant farmers across the UK

. » Technical support for farmers to improve yields and

farm profitability
« (lassieading customer service
» Manufacture of high qualily products

.« High asset utilisation of mills and blend sheds delivering vatue

to customers
« Efticient transport fleet delivering direct to farm

H
i

Value creation

Customers

Excellent service provided to over
120,000 customers across the
Group, the number one priority.

Employees and community
Year an year increase of
203 employees. investing

in the local community and
the future of NWF,

Shareholders
Total shareholder return

by the continued profitable
development of cur businesses
lhrough a combination of organic
growth, capital investment and
selective acquisitions.

Find our ESG policies at nwf.co.uk

Total customers

120k

{2019: 68k)

New jobs created

{2018: 105)

Total dividend per share

-JPp

{2019: 6.6p)

nodai s1Beipns :

Focus on returns

Return on capital employed
is a key metric

16.7%

Group ROCE cash conversion

Good cash
generation

£16.1 million of cash generated from
operating activities

112.6~

Growing dividend

Increased dividend in nine
out of the last ten years

6.9p

total dividend per share

NWF Group plc
wf ook
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Strategic report
Group financial review

Excellent profitability
and cash generation

“The Group has completed three
acquisitions in the year with a total
consideration of £9.4 million. The closing
net debt of £12.3 million represents a net
debt to EBITDA ratio of 0.7x.”

Group revenue

£687.5m

(2019: £671.3m)

‘l 6 NWF Group plc
Anrual Regort and Accounts 2070

Summary

« Headline profit befare tax of £13.2 million
(2019: £9.7 million).

+ Profit before tax of £12.0 million
{2019: £8.7 million).

« Dituted headline £PS of 20.3p(2019: 15.8p).
« Netdebt of £12.3 million{2019: £10.4 million).

= Balance sheet remains in a strong position
with leverage at G.7x, after having invested
£7.9m in acquisitions and expansion.

Group results

Group revenue increased by 2.4% to £687.5 million{2019:
£671.3 million}with higher activity levels and revenue from
acquisilions largely offset by the impact of the lower oil
price in the final quarter and lower feed revenues. Headline
operating profit was £14.3 million. an increase of 40.2%
(2019: £10.2 miltion). Operaling profit increased 40.6%

to £13.5 million (2019: £9.6 millicn).

Financing costs(excluding those in respect of the defined
berefit pension scheme) increased by £0.6 million to
£1.1 million, with the addition of £0.4 million of interest
on IFRS 18 lease liabilities. The interest on bank debt was
£0.7 million (2018: £0.5 miliion} and headfine interest cover
was 20.4x (excluding 1AS 19 net pension finance costs and
IFRS 18 lease interest)(2019: 20.4x).

Headline profit before taxation increased by 36.1% to
£13.2 million{2019: £8.7 miflion). Profit before taxation
increased by £3.3 rmillion to £12.0 million {2018 £8.7 million).
There were exceptional items in the year of £0,5 million
relating to acquisition costs{2019: £0.5 million}.

The tax charge for the year was £3.1million(2018: {7.9 million}
which included anincrease in the deferred tax habitity of
the Group following the Government’s decision to maintain
the corporation tax rate at 19% rather than reduce it to
17% from 1 April 2020. This resulted in a one-off tax
charge of £0.% million. Excluding the impact of deferred
tax, the effective undertying tax rats for the ycar was
21.7% (2019: 20.8%). The post-iax profit for the year was
£8.9million{2019: £6.8 million}.



i The headline basic earnings per share of 20.5p

' represented an increase of 29.7% (2019: 15.8p), diluted

" headline earnings per share increased by 28.5% to 20.3p
{2019: 15.8p}. The proposed full year dividend per share
increased by 4.5% to 6.9p which reflects the Board's
confidence in the Group, its strong underlying cash
generation and its future prospects. The proposed
dividend equates to a dividend cover ratio of 2.9x.

The finarce costs inrespect of the defined benetit
pension scheme were in line with the prior year at

£0.4 milion {2018: £0.4 million}.

Group results for the year ended 31 May

2020 201y

£m fm

. Rewvenue 687.5 571.3
1 Cost of sales and administrative

! expenses {674.0) (661.7)

" Headline operating profic 14.3 10.2

. Exceptional ilems (0.5} (05)

. Amortisation of acquired intangibles (0.3) (0.1)

. Operating profit® 13.5 3.6

* Financing costs {1.5) (0.9)

' Headiine profit before tax' 13.2 9.7

! Exceptional items (0.5) (6.5)

Amortisation of acquired intangibles (0.3) {0.1)

Net finance cost in respect of

defined benefit pension scheme {0.4) 0.4}

- Prafit before taxation® 12.0 8.7

Income tax expensa’ (3.3 .9}

© Profit for the year 8.9 6.8

Headline EPS’ 20.5p 15.8p

" Diluted headline EPS' 20.3p 15.8p

Dividend per share 6.9p SR

SR

“The Group increased net assets
by £4.0 million to £51.1 million
(31 May 2019: £47.1 million).”

Balance sheet as at 31 May

2020 HAL

£m s

i Tangible and intangible fixed assets 79.9 70.2
Right of use assets 273 —
Net working capital 4.8 6.1
Derivative financial instruments n.1 0.2
Net debt{excluding lease liabilities) {12.3) 110.4)
Lease habilities (26.3) -
Current tax liabilities (0.9) (1
Deferred tax liabilities {net) (0.5) [0.8)
Retirement benefit obligations {21.0) {17.3)
Net assets 51.1 47

Balance sheet summary

The Group increased net assets by £4.0 miflion to £51.1 million
{31 May 2D19: £47.1million]). This reflects the robust trading
performance during the year with a retained profit for the year
of £5.7 million (218: £3.7 mitlion} partially offset by an
increase in the accounting valuation of the pension deficit.

Tangible and intangibie fixed assets increased by £9.7 miltion
ta £79.9 million as at 31 May 2020(31 May 2019: £70.2 million)
largely as a result of the intangibie assets arising on
acquisitions. The depreciation{excluding IFRS 16 depreciation
on right of use assets)and amortisation charges for the year
to 31 May 2020 were £4.1million and £0.6 million respectively
{2019: £3.9 million and £0.8 miltion respectively).

Group level ROCC {based on headline operating profit)
is 16.7% as at 31 May 2020 (31 May 2019: 13.4%).

Net working capital decreased by £1.3 million in the year
as aresult of a reduction in the value of stock at the year end
reflecting the lower oil and commadity prices. The Groups
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Strategic report
Group financial review continued

Cash flow and banking facilities
The Group has completed three acquisitions in the year with

. atotal consideration{net of cash acquired)of £6.0 million.

i

i o |
The closing net dedt (excluding IFRS 16 lease liabilities)of |
£12 3 million represents a net debl Lo EBITOA ratio of §.7x. |
|

I

|

I

The cash impact of working capital movements was

£1.7 miltion, driven by the reduction in the value of stock
at the year end, reflecting the lower oil and cornmodity
prices. There were net non-cash movements of £0.4 million

Cash flow and banking facilities for the year ended 31 May

within working capital. Net cash generated from operating

i artivities and after IFRS 16 lease payments was £16.1 million

{2019: £6.4 million}representing a cash conversion ratio
ot 112.6% af headline operating profit (2019: 62.7%}

Net capital expenditure i the year at £5.7 million {2018:
£2.8 million] exceeded the annual depreciation charge.

! excluding IFRS 16 depreciation, of £4.1 million(2019:

£3.9 mitlionjreflecting the investment in Crewe.

2020 2019
£m i
Operating cash flows before movements in working capital and provisions 23.8 12.8
Working capital mavements 1.7 (3.9}
itdisation of provision - (0.1}
interest paid [ER)] (0.5}
Tax paid {2.7) (1.9}
Net cash generated from operating activities 217 6.4
Capital expenditure {net of receipts from disposals) (5.7) (2.8)
© Acquisition of subsidiaries - cash paid{net of cash acquired) {6.0) (3.5)
' Capitalised legal costs associated with leases (0.3) -
Payment of contingent deferred consideration - {0.8)
" Net cash absorbed by investing activities (12.0) (7.1
. Netincrease in bank borrowings 16 5.2
i Capital element of leases {5.6) (0.1)
Dividends patd (3.2) [3.7)
Net increase in cash and cash equivalents 25 2.3
Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of yoar 28 0.5
Cash and cash equivalents at end of year 5.3 2.8

'I 8 NWF Group plc
Anrual Reoor! and Acconnls 20370

Crewe
warehouse

The Group has
invested £1.9 million
into a new warehouse
in Crewe for our
Food division, which
increases storage
capacity by 357

Read more about
this investment
on pages 10-11



The Group's banking facibities, totalling £65.0 million,
were renewed inJune 2018 and are committed through to
31 0ctober 2023 with the exception of the bank overdrafi
facitity of £1.0 million and the £4.0 million bank guarantee
facility which are renewed annually. There remains
substantial faciiily headroom available to support Lhe
development of the Group. Within the total facility of
£65.0 mitlion, the Group has an invoice discounting
facdity, the availability of which depends on the ievel

of trade receivables available for refinancing and which

is subject to a maximum drawdown of £50.0 million.

The banking facilities are provided subject to ongoing
compliance with conventional banking covenants against
which the Group has substantial levels of headroem,

Going concern

The Group has an agreement with The NatWest Group

for credit facilities totalling £65.0 million. With the
exception of the bank overdraft facility of £1.0 million
and the £4,0 million bank guarantee facility, which are
renewed annually, these facilities are committed through
ta 31 Qctober 2023. As at 31 May 2020 the Group had
available facilities of £49.5 million{based on actual
invoice discounting availability and overdraft facilities).
against which the Group was utilising £11.9 million.

The Board has prepared cash flow forecasts for the
period to 31 May 2027 Under this base case scenario,
the Group is expected to continue to have significant
hoadroom relative to the funding available to it and
1o comply with its banking covenants,

Fuels acquisitions
are the centrepiece
of our strategy

The Group has completed
three acquisitions in the year
with a total consideratian

of £9.4 million.

Read more ebout this investent
on pages 8-9

The Board has also considered various other severe
downside scenarios, including the possibility of a second
lockdown as a result of a second wave of Covid-13. These
downside scenarios excluded any mitigating actions that
the Board would be able to take to reduce costs. Under
these scenarios, the Group would still expect to have
sufficient headroom in its financing facilities.

Accordingly, the Qirectars, having made suitable
enquiries, and based on financial performance to date
and forecasts along with the avaitable banking facilities,
have areasonable expectation that the Group has
adequate resources to cantinue in operational existence
far the foreseeable future. The Group therefore continues
to adopt the going concern basis of accounting in
preparing the annual financial statements.

Share price

The market price per share of the Company’'s shares
at 31 May 2020 was 201.0p {31 May 2013: 169.0p) and the
range of market prices during the year was between
120.0p and 203 Up.

Chris Belsham
Finance Director

4 August 2020

NWF Group plc
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Strategic report
Principal risks and uncertainties

Focusing on

mitigating risk

Given the size of the Group, the Directors
have not established a sub-committee
of the Board to monitor financial risk
management, but have established
policies that are implemented and
monitored by the Executive Directors.

Effective rizk management aids decision making, underpins the delivery
of the Group's strategy and objectives and he!ps to ensure that the risks
Lhe Group takes are adegualely assessed and aclively managed. The
Group regularly monitors its key risks and reviews its management
processes and systems to ensure that they are effective and consistent
with good practice. The Board is ultimately responsible for the Group's
risk management. The risk management process involves the
identification and prioritisation of key risks, together with appropriate
controls and plans for mitigation, which are then reported to the Board.

As with all businesses, the Group is affected by a number of risks and
uncertainties, some of which are beyond our control. The table below

Principal risks and uncertainties

Rish doscrpnon ard iImpact

shows the principal risks and uncertainties which couid have a material
adverse impact cn the Group. This is not an exhaustive list and there may
be risks and uncertainties of which the Board is not aware, or which ara
believed to be immaterial, which could have an adverse effect on the Group.

Risk management framework

1. Covid-19 pandemic

The globai pandemic, Covid-19, presents a number of different
risks to the business. This is particularly the case if there is
asecond wave of Covid-19 which resulls ina further nationwide
lockdown. Firstly, the pandemic poses a risk to the health and
safety of employees. Secondly, the impact of the pandemic on
the UK economy and therefore demand for the Group's products
and services, particularly in the Fuels division, 1s uncertain. in
addition, the response of the UK Government to the pandemic
may create restrictions an the Group's ability to operate.

and the Group has taken actions Lo ensure it complies with
Government guidance inrespect of sate working. The Group
will continue to adapt its operations as new Government
guidance is issued. The Group aperates in key industries and
continued to operate profitably through the Covid-18 lockdown
which commenced in March 2020, Dermand in the Food and
Feeds divisions remained consistent throughout this period.
The Fueis division saw a reducticn in demand from commercial
customers, but anincrease in demand from domestic
customers. The availability of funding is closely monitored by
the Group through short and long-term cash flow forecasting.

The Group has significant headroom in its funding facilties,

2. Brexit

The uncertainty around the implications of the UK reaching the
end of the transition period withaut having agreed a trade deal
with the European Union and potential associated exchange rate
volatility creates commaodity price risk. There is also some
uncertainty around demand in agriculture given the trading
relationship with Europe and the subsidy support received

by farmers.

NWF Group plc
Arrual Repo-t and Accounts 7070
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We are a UK business, with three divisions which all performed
wellin the global financial crisis as they supply basic products
to meet the country’s needs for fuels, food and feeds.

Board
Responsible for risk management
PAN PAN PN
Audit Remuneration Disclosure
Committee Committee Committee
PaN N
Non-Executive Directors
Mitiaating actions Change
The health and safety of employees is the Group's first priority New principal risk

We manitor the
Covid-19 situation
closely so that we
are able ta respond
to changes in health
and safety quidance
or changes in
customer demand.,

No change

We continue to
monitor and plan
contingencies with
customers and
suppliers.



Pk coscriptior ana impact

3. Commodity prices and volatility in raw material prices
| he Group's Feeds and Fueis divisians operate in sectors which
are vulnerable to volatile commedity prices both for fuei and for
raw materials.

4_impact of climate on earnings volatility

The demand for both the Feeds and Fuels divisions is impacted
by climatic conaitions and the severity of winter conditions in
particular, which directly affect the demand for heating o1l

and anima! feeds. The inherent uncertanty regarding climatic
conditions represents a risk of volatility in the prafitability

of the Fuels and Feeds divisions.

5. Pension scheme volatility

Increasas in the ongoing deficit associated with the Group's
detined penefil pension scheme would adversely impact on the
strength of the Group's balance sheel and could lead to an
increase in cash contributions payable by the Group.

8. Recruitment, retention and development of our key people

Recruiting and retaining the right people is crucial for the
success of the Group and its development.

7. Infrastructure and IT systems

IT system failures or business Interruption cvents {such as
cyber-attacks) could have a matenal impact on the Groups
ability to operate effectively.

8. Nan-compliance with legislation and requlations

The Group operates in diverse markets and each sector has
its awn regulatory and comphiance frameworks which regutre
gngoing monitoring to ensure that the Group maintains full
cormphiance with all legislative and regulatory requirements.
Anyincident of major injury or fatality or which results in
sigruficant environmental damage could result in reputational
or financial damage to the Group.

9. Strategic growth and change management

M tigat-ng acliang

I he Group maintains close relationships with key suppliers.
enablirg optimal negotiated prices, and where apgropriate
implements purchasing framewaork agreements. The Feeds
business utilises forward contracts for key raw materials to
ensure that impact of volatility can be partially mitigated
thraugh committed prices and volumes.

Muttipie sources of supply are maintained for alt key raw materials.

Whilst the Fuels division seeks to mitigate this risk through the  No change

pravision of a range of fuels including commercial fuels, there
wiil always be volatility in the profitability of the Fuels division
related to climate. The Feeds division seeks to mitigate the
extent of climatic conditions on the profitability of the business
through its concentration on the key dairy sector where there
1$ & strong underlying demand.

The defined benefit pension scheme has been closed to new
enlrants since 2002 and from April 2016, closed to future
accrual. Regular meetings are held with both the scheme’s
trustees and professional advisors to manitar and review the
investment policy, the Group's funding requirements and any
other available opportunities to mitigate this risk.

Remuneration policies are regularly reviewed to ensure
employees arc appropriately incentivised. Succession planning
and development of key employees are also considered by the
Board. The Remuneration Comimittee alsa ensures that 1t
receives appropriate benchmark data which is used in the
rsnitoring and formulation of remuneration poticy for key
emplayees and Executives.

The Group has internal i1 support tcams together with close
relationships with key software vendars and consultants.
Significant investment has becn made by the Group in
upgrading and mainiaining 1ts core T systems in each of the
three operating divisions.

Expertise within the operating divistons ts supplemented by
ongoing advice from professional advisors and the involvement
of the Head Qffice function which closely menitors existing
business practices and any anticipated changes in requlatory
practices of requirements.

The Group employs appropriately qualified and experienced
health and safety personnel and retains health and safety
specialists to ensure compliance.

A failure to dentify, execute or integrate acquisitions, change
management programmes or olher growth opporiunities
could impact on the profitability and strateqic development
of the Group.

The Group management (gam is engaged in cngoing review of
competitor activity, development and acguisition opportunities.
Alt potential acquisitions are subject to a review of Lheir ability
to generate a return on capital employed and their stralegic
fit with the Group. The Group conducts appropriate internal
and externai due diligence prior to completing any acquisition.

Lnange

No change
Reductions in
commodity prices
in both Fuels and
feeds have been
successfully
manageds through
the year.

Remains a
principal risk in
Fuels and Feeds.
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Remains a
principatrisk.

No change
Remains a
principal risk

No change
Remains a
principal risk

No change
Remains 4
principal risk.

No change
Remains a
principal risk.
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ESG framework

Sustainability

A proactive and
responsible approach

Together' we are Working to deliver NWF Group employs over 1,200 members of staff across our divisicns
and throughout the UK. We recognise that embedding sustainable

long-term sustclnable VCI!UG. vaiues at the core of our business is critical to attracting, developing

NWF Group is committed to delivering fong-term sustainable vatue and retaining the best talent.

across each of our divisions. Our sustainability strategy has been Responsibility for the implementation and future development of our
developed and is being shared with all our key stakeholders with the sustainability strategy rests with the Board of Directors, which is
aim of pramoting responsible practices. responsible for:

ALNWFE Group we focus on creating value with an ongomg and increasing | « reviewing, endorsing and achieving the sustainability policy's aims;
sense of responsibility towards the wider society, environment and - ecnsuring each of the divisions are working towards achioving the
communities around us. The development of our sustainability Group’s long-term sustainability objectives;

strategy underpins our cammitment to think differently and recognise | | communicating the policy and promating the strategy to

our progress in this area. Across cach of our divisions we have many key stakehalders;

gxamples, from small improvements in working practices to major ) ! . o -
. R L. s « driving continual improvement performance across the organisation: and
investment in clean, modern and efficient fleet and facilities. . . . .

« developing and rolling out the supporting strategies.

In order to deliver on our sustainability ambitions. we rely on the support
of nur customers, suppliers, employees and other key stakehoiders.

Sustainability framework
Our strategy consists of four strategic objectives that reflect our values and are designed
to ensure that we take a proactive and respansible approach to the way we aperate,

Strategic objectives Priority objective Our ambitions
Create a culture Create a culture of safety to protect our > - Champion road safety
of sufety employees and the wider community. = implement a safety first approach

» Fremote persanal and

Invest in Build a workforce for the future where professional cevelopment
D our people are healthy, happy and can . Empower future generations
our People fulfil their potential. » Improve employee wellbeing
. Collab di te with « Understand our customers needs
Build strong ollaborate and innovate with our « Work together with aur suppliers
- D customers and suppliers to deliver [> . Coliaborate and innovate for more
POrtnerShlPS long-term sustainable solutions. orabor nnov
sustainable products
+ Invest in ctean fleet
Respect the Reduce carbon, emissions and waste = Mitigate our carbon emissions
A D across our vaiue chain and champion D » Drive efficiencies across our cperations
environment environmental stewardship. + Responsible use and protection

of the naturat environment

2 2 NWF Group plc
AnnuaiReportand Accounte 2G7L



Create a culture
of safety

What this means to us
The heatth, safety and welfare of cur employees and
the wider commuenity are a top priorily in our pperations

_ across all of our divisions. Our safety practices are

overseen by Health and Safety Officers and are assisied
by the engagement of specialist external advisors. Regular
audils are undertaken as well as inlernal monthly and
external annual reporting to the Board.

Implement a safety-first approach

We implement a safety-first agproach inall activitics

with the ultimate aim of having no accidents or injuries.
In particutar, road safety for our employees and the
general publicis of significant importance, due to the
number of miles completed by our fleet. We investigatc
tharodghly any incidents involving our fleet and seek to
continually improve our safely processes with our distribution
centres, depots, manufacturing sites and offices.

Ihe following initialives are examples of the progress we
have made in championing safety across the Group:

« safe driver monitoring initiatives in Food, in house
driver CPC accreditation, new driver induction and
awards programme using MPG and comaliance as
key factors;

« health, safety and environmental defined protocols;

~« reqgular health and safety audits of key locations by

both internal and external parties: and

.« monthly reporting to the Board with an annual review

by external advisors.

The Group monitors accidents and injuries in line with the
Reporting of Injuries, Diseases and Dangeraus Occurrences
Regulations 2013, and the number of reportable incidents
across the Group in the year ended 31 May 2020 was |7

{31 May 2019: §).

i Safe driver training hours Number of reportabie incidents

J\ completed in Food 17
1,517

i {2019: 3.306)

Creating a centre of excellence at Crewe

Buring the year the Group has invesled £1.9 million into a newly constructed
240,0001t” warehouse in Crewe, which wilt become a centre of excellence for
Food. This will become a centre of best practice health and safety and will be what
we measure our existing Food safety standards against.

NWF Group plc 23
nwfeo s

HIOMILUDL D]



ESG framework
Sustainability continued

Investin
our people

What this means to us

Our long-term success is dependent on our employees.
We are committed to buiiding a workforce for the future
where our people are healthy and happy and can fuifil
therr potential. We recognise thal engaged employees,
who feel valued. are crucial to our business, and it also
means they corlinue to be motivaled and deliver the best
possible service to our customers.

Promoting personal and professional development

We achigve this by promoting a range of personal and
protessional development, and invest in people. We want
to empower future ganerations by providing them with a
place where they can learn and grow: this s essential to
securing our talent pipcline.

To ensure our employees have all the tools to reach
their potental, we have invested in a number of
wellbeing initiatives.

The following initiatives demonstrate the commitment
we have made towards investing in our employees across
the Group:

« During the year the Feeds division launched a
Sales Training Academy tg recruit and train the next
generation of nutritionists. This year's intake consisted
of 18 trainees, with a further group planned 1o join the
division next year. Each individual receives a structured
programme of training across all aspects of the Feeds
husiness, both classroom based and on farm, alongside
mentoring from aur existing sales specialists.

« We have appointed HR business partners across each of
our three businesses, to ensure that we are providing the
appropriate level of suppoert for the recruitment, training
and ongoing development of employees at all ieveis.

« Employees at our main site in Wardie have access to a
regular weekly timetable of free fitness classes which take
place In our on-site studio. Inrecent months, these classes
were continued via video conferencing Lo ensure colleagues
working from horne could still access Lhe service.

« The Group takes a prosctive approach to addressing
mental health issues and during the year a first aid
mental health course was offeread to employees an
avoluntary basis and six people completed the
three-day training coursc.

« Adriver frem the Food division won the
nomination-hased category of ‘Most Improved Driver’
in the Microlise Driver of the Year Awards 2020.

Feeds Academy
trainees

18

24

Staff completing the first
aid mental health course

NWF Group ple
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Training the next generation
of nutritional advisors

In Feeds we believe that the highest level of advice,
delivered in an applied and practical manner, is key to

- helping achieve a sustainable and profitable business

far Britain's tarmers of the future.

Our trainecs follow a programme monitored by our Academy
co-ardinator and work with an established on-farm advisor
as thefr mentor. They arc supparted by our own highly trained
technical support team, with links to educational institutes

i and a comprehensive network of specialist suppliers.

Training topics include: diet formulation, animal nutrition
and physiclogy, forage management, youngsiock
rnanagement, farm business profitability, Cow Signals,
product application, sales training. IT and finance.

Our ambition is that our trainees graduate from the Academy
with al the skills required to support our customers and
develop a successful future career within the business.

Build strong
partnerships

What this means to us

The strength of our partnerships is at the heart of every
decision we make. We continue to seek new ways to
collaborate and innovate with our customers and
suppliers to deliver long-term sustainable value.

We want 1o gain a deeper understanding of our customers’
needs sa we can continue to offer them mare chaice, better
guality and improved standards, as well as great value.

o achieve this, we must focus on the way we interact with
customers and continually monitor and improve performance.

Our partnerships with our suppliers are atse vital; we
expect our suppliers to conduct their business in an
ethical and sustainable manncer.,



Respect the
environment

What this means to us

We strive for continual improvement when it comes
to pur enviranmental performance, monitoring carbon
emissions and wasle across our supply chain and
promoling a healthy environment.

We recognise that we operate inindustries that can have
a significant impact on the environment and that we have
a responsibiity to minimise #. Across all divisions we promote

i sustainable logistics, investing in clean fleet and energy
. initiatives to achieve this. In addition, our strategy to maximise

fleet capacity to ensure na empty running miles provides the
hestenvironmental solution, across alt our divisions.

Mitigating our carbon emissions

We are challenging ourselves to think differently, and by driving
efficiencies across our operations we aim to minimise the
amount of waste and plastics we produce. use resources mare

. responsibly, and ultimately protect the natural environment.

Uur current environmental initiatives inctude:

« Creweo warchouse - efficient LED lighting;

« [ucls scguisitions - environmental surveys and clean
up of acquired sites to NWF standards;

« optimisation of flzet capacity;

+ investmentinclean, modern fieets;

« driver traiming programrmes: in Food, MPG has
improved from 8.7in 2007 10 10.3 in 2020; and

» inslallation of electrical charging points at Wardle
site, availabie for all empioyees.

Streamlined Energy and Carbon Reporting {'SECR")

Carbon emissions (1C0.e)* 20m3/20
Transport{scope 1) 22,6417
Transport(scope 3) 29
Purchased electricity and gas (scope 2} 5.970
Other fuels{scope 1) 3,117
Total emissions 31,533
Carbon intensity ratio 1{tCO,e/£000) 27.16
Carbon intensity ratio 2 (tCQ,ef/avg. headcount) 0.05
Total UK energy usage (kWh) 119,092,790
L0 efyear dehined as tonres of CU; cqurvalent per year

Our susteinability policy can be found ot nwf.co.uk

SECR statement

We measure and report our energy and carbon data across the entire Group
{Food, Fuels and Feed), praviding comprehensive data to substantiate our overall
environmental impact. Cur SECR statement inciudes all emission so0Urces
required under the 2019 requiations for the financial year ended 30 May 2020.
This is our first year of reporting and we will be using the 2018/20 reporting
year as our benchmark for 2020/2021.

NWF Group used 31,533 carbon dioxide equivalent tonnes (tCO,c) of energy
during the year, 7(1% of this energy is consumed by making deiiveries to
customers using our transport fleet. Our transport fleet efficiency is a key part
of our energy saving initiatives, looking for savings through more efficient
driving. investment in clean modern vehicles and optimum routing.

We have chosen two carbon intensity ratios that reflect our business performance.
Our carbon intensity ratio for the year ended 31 May 2020 was 0.051C0ye per
average employee headcount, ang 27.16 tC(ye per £000 of revenue. Moving
forward, we will set both absolute and percentage reduction targets for carbon
ernissions, so we can begin Lo measure energy efficiency performance alongside
business performance.

In order to calculate the carbon emissions, we have used the emission factors
from the UK Gevernment's GHG Conversion Factors for Company Reporting 2019.
One of the requirements of the new SECR requlations is to report our total UK
energy use in kilowatt hours {KWh); for this we have used the 2019 conversian
factors, except for any mileage data we had available, for which we have used
the 2020 conversion factors. The Scope 1and 2 emissions reported are for

all facilities across the Group under our operational control. This includes ali
distribution centres, manufacturing sites, oil depots and offices. plus fleet

Alomalnl) 953

under our awnership.

665

Optimising vehicle utilisation

Across the Group this year we delivered

625k

tonnes of ruminant
animal feed

135k

pallet spaces provided
to customers

million litres
of fuel

Optimising vehicle utilisation and maximising capacity is
at the forefront of our daily operations.

The total NWF Group fleet comprises

154 40 14 TI8 266

fuel tankers feed trucks trailers food trucks trailers

During the year we recognised an additional investment of £8.0 mi'lion in leased
assets as part of our ongoing programme to mamntain a modern, efficient fleet.
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ESG framework

Board of Directors and Company Secretary

An experienced
and capable Board

Phllip Acton
Chair

Experience

Joined Lhe Board in 2013

and became Chair in 2017
Warkad for 17 years in agriculiure
as chuef operating officer for
Genus Europe and Asia and group
finance director of Genus phe.
Prior to that spent tenyears in
the etectrical engineering scctor
as group finance director of
Scholes Group pic.

Key skills

« Sector experience

« Finance

+ Mergers and acquisitions

Key development
[allel[c]o][E][F]

Committee membership
« Audit

= Remuneration

+ Disclosure

NWF Group plc
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Richard Whiting
Chief Executive

Experience

Joined in 2007, Previously group
finance director of Heywood
Williams Group plc, afier joining
as business development
director from Brand-Rex Ltd.
where he was managing director
of the datacom division.

Key skills

« Strategy and leadership
= Sales and marketing

= Operations

« Finance

= Mergers and acquisitions

Key development

[a]fe][c][o} [F]

Committee membership
= Disclosure

Chris Belsham
Group Finance Birector

Experience

Joined as Finance Director

in 2077, Previously an equity
partner and head of corporate
finance at Irwin Milchell LLF
having joined the business in
2014 from KPMG Corporate
Finance. Qualified as a Chartered
Accountant with PwC in 1999,

Key skills

= Finance

= Mergers and acquisitions
s Strategy and leadership

Key development

[a][e][c][o]

Commitiee membership
» Oisclosure (Chair)

Yvonne Monaghan
Senior Independent
Non-Executive Director

Experience

Joined the Board in 2013,
Currently chief financial officer
of Johnson Service Group plc.
A Charlered Accountant,
gqualifying with Deloitte Haskins
& Sellsin 1987,

Yvonne has informed the
Board of her wish to stand
down at this year's AGM to be
heid on 24 September 2020
after seven years' service.

Key skills

» Finance

+ Mergers ang acquisitions

« Current PLC boarc experience
» Strategy and leadership

Key development

[allellc] [E] [

Committee membership
« Audit{Chair)
* Remuneration



David Downie
independent Non-Executive
Director

Experience

Joined the Board in 2018. Holds a
BSc inagricuklture and spent over
15 years as a seniar executive at
ASDA. Currenlly non-execulive
chair of avacant property
service company which trades
as VPS Group.

Key skills

= Seclor experience

« Mergers and acquisitions
* Strategy and leadership

Key development

(alleife] [e] [e]n]

. Committee membership
.= Audit
. » Remuneration{Chairj

Richard Armitage
Independent Non-Executive
Director

Experience

Joined the Board in July 2020.
Currently chief financial officer
al Victrex plc. a Fellow of the
Charlered Institule of Management
Accountants. Wide strateqic and
M&A experience in a number of
scnior finance roles.

Key skills

« Finance

* Mergers and acquisitions

= Current PLC board experience
« Strategy and leadership

Key development

[a][&])[c][o][E]

Committee membership
* Audit
* Remuneration

Rob Andrew
Company Secretary

Experience

Joined as Company Secrelaryin
2004 An experienced chartered
secretary. previousty assistant
company secretary of (celand
Frozen Foods plc.

Key skilis

= Health and satety

= Human resources

+ Company secretariaf
« Property

Key development

[al=]{<][o]

' Board diversity

Gender diversity

B Male(B)
B Femazle(l)
Skills
B Mergers and acquisitions(6)
B Finance(5)
W Strategy and leadership(5)
M PLC board experience{2)
B Sector experience(2)

1 W Sales and marketing(1)
M Operations{l)

Key development

(2]
[o]
[€]
[F]
6]
[#]

External advisor updatcs
Professional network
Institute updates

investor forums

Self study

industry bodies

Other Non-Executive roles

Member of Institute of Directors

NWF Group plc
et o e
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ESG framework

Senior management

Richard Huxley
Managing Director, Fuels

Experience

Joined the Fuels division in May 2018. Richard
has held significant commercial leadership
roles in complex distribution businesses
including Brammer and RS Comgponents{part
of Electrocomponents picl

Key skills

» Leadership

« (perations

« Sales and marketing

Key development

Key development
@ External advisor updates

Professionai netwark

. Managing Director, Food

@ Institute updates
EI Investor forums

Experience

Keith Forster

Appointed Managing Director of the Food
division in November 2004, having joined the
Group in 2001. Previously held senior positions
in a numher of distribution husinesses.

Key skills

+ Leadership

» Qperations

+ Sales and marketing
+ Finance

Key development

[e]e] [

@ Self study

‘E Industry bodies

Advisors

Registrars Independent auditors Bankers

Link Asset Services PricewaterhouseCoopers LLP NatWest Group

34 Beckenham Road No. 1 Spinningfields Corporate Banking
Beckenham tHardman Square 2nd Floor

Kent BR3 4TU

Manchester M3 3EB

1 Spinningfieids Sgquare
Manchester M3 3AP

Solicitors Financial PR Registered offlce
Brabners LLP MHP Communications NWF Group pic
Harton House € 227 Agar Street Wardie

Exchange Flags Covent Garden Nantwich

Exchange Street E
Liverpool L2 8YL

NWF Group plc
Anrual Report and Becounts 7070
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London WCZ2N 4HN

Cheshire CW5 BBP

Andrew Downie
Managing Director, Feeds

Experience

Appointed Managing Dircctor of the Feeds
division in February 2015. Previnusily held the
position of head of operations at A3F plc and
senior positions at AB World Foods and
Patak’s Foods Limited.

Key skills

» Leadership

« Operations

« Sales and marketing

(] [H]

Key development

(e]c]

@ Other Non-Executive roles

@ Mombeor of Institute
of Directors

Nominated advisor and broker
Peel Hunt LLP

Moor House

120 London Wall

London EC2YBET

Registered number
0226491



Corporate governance statement

StI‘Oﬂg governance

“NWF recognises the importance of good
corporate governance and in many areas
goes beyond the principles of the QCA Code
as it continues to develop and maintain
governance standards.”

Dear shareholder,

The Board has adopted the QCA Code and centinues

to follow the ten principies as set out on page 30. NWF
recognises the importance of good corporate governance
and in many areas goes beyond the principles of the

OCA Code as it continues Lo develop and mainiain
governance standards

In my role as Chair, | am responsible for the Board
including its effective leadership and composition,
assessing and improving its perfarmance, and feading the
Company’s corporate governance culture. The corporate
governance culture will be measured against the JCA Code
fundamentals and reqularly reviewed with deveiopments
and changes communicated te shareholders.

In the disclosure that follows we share details of our
current governance structures and practices including
where and why we differ from any of the expectations
set by the QCA Code.

The Company continues to comply with the QCA Code
but given the Group’s size and plans for the future,

it alse endeavours to have regard to the provisions of
the UK Corparate Governance Code to the extent that
we believe is appropriate. As an example of how we
have supplemented the QCA Code with provisions of
the UK Carporate Governance Code, wo now require each
and every Director on the Board to be annually re-clected
and have implermented an independence policy that
Non-Executive Directors are not able tc serve for

more than nine years.

Philip Acton
Chair

4 August 2020

NWF Group plc 9
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ESG framework

Corporate governance statement continued

The OCA Code 1s built an the three fundamentals of delivering growth, maintaining a dynamic management
framework and building trust. each of which the Board is committed to, as it befieves these will support the

Company’s medium to long-lerm success.

The ten QCA principles are:

Deliver growth

Principle 1: £stablish a strategy and business model which promote long-term value for sharehoiders.

Pringiple 2: Seek to understand ang meet shareholder needs and expectations.

Principle 3: Take into account wider stakeholder and social responsibilities and their implications for

long-term success.

Principle &4: Embed effective risk management, considering both opportunities and threats,

throughout the arganisation.

& £
ent Ty

Maintain a dy g

Principle 5: Maintain the Board as 3 well-functioning, balanced team led by the Chair.

Principle B: tnsure that between them the Qirectors have the necessary up-to-date experience, skills and capabilities.

Principle 7: Cvaluate Board performance based on clear and relevant objcctives, seeking continuous improvement.

Principle 8: Promote a corporaie culture that s based on ethical values and behaviours.

Principle 8: Maintain governance structures and processes that are fit for purpose and support good decision

making by the Board.

Build trust

Principie 10: Communicate how the Company is governed and is performing by maintaining & dislogue with

shareholders and other relevant stakeholders.

Deliver growth

Principle 1: Establish a strategy and business model
which promote long-term value for shareholders

The Greups business model is set out on pages 14 and 15
and on the business model page of cur website,
www.nwi.co.uk/obout-us/business-model.

The challenges, including the principal nisks and
uncertainties affecting our businesses and which may
prevent the Group from delivering its strategy, are
explained on pages 20 and 21

Principle 2: Seek to understand and meet shareholder
needs and expectations

Whiisl the Company has a diverse range of shareholders,

they can be broadly calegorised as foliows:

1. thres independent pension funds registered in
leeland (each holding ¢. 5% of the issued share
capital} as set out on page 41

2. otherinstitutional investors:
3. private individuals; and
L. employees and ex- employees.

The Board continuously seeks ta engage with and
understand shareholders’ views and meet their needs
and expectations.

NWF Graup pic
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The Board has a proactive approach to sharehclder
liaison, led by the Chief Executive, and feedback is
provided regularly to the Board. This approach includes
aur AGM where votes in favour are consistently cver
75%), open days, biannual investor roadshows and annual
meetings with signiticant shareholders.

Principle 3: Take into account wider stakeholder and
social responsibilities and their implications for
long-term success

The Group creates value through a focus on shareholders,
customers, suppliers, employees and the local community.

Investor feedback s scught after each final and half-year
results announcemenl and Lhe AGM offers a good
opportunity for afl shareholders to express their views
directly to the Board. This feedback has resultad in
changes to investor presentations.

Feedback from custemers is regularly obtained through
account managers and sales representatives. surveys
and service metrics.

Feedback from suppliers is regularly obtained through
relationships with both account managers and
senior management,

Emgployee feedback is abtained in a number of ways including
team meetings and forums across the Group's divisions.



, Building on feedback methods already in piace, the

+ Board receives an annual corporate governance review

. and regularly reviewed, covering such areas as Group

" through & combination of internal and externat resource.

from the Nominated Advisor.

The business model, on pages 14 and 15, sets out how
these relationships shape the focus of the Group.

Principle 4: Embed effective risk management,
considering both opportunities and threats, throughout
the organisation

An explanation cf the Group's strategy 1s set out on
pages 14 and 15 including a risk anaiysts on pages 20 and 21.

Due to the infrequency of senior appointments, the Board

" does not mantain a standing Nomination Committee but

forms one when required. The current Chief Executive’s
and Group Finance Director's appointments were
approved by the Board, after receiving a recommendation
from a Commiltee of the Board. consisting of the
Non-Exgcutive Uirectars, that was formed specifically for
that purpose. The Committes undertook a camprehensive
recruitment process and was assisted by independent
external recruttiment consultants. Terms of reference for
the Audit, Rernuneration and Disclosure Committees are

" included on our websitc, www.nwi.co.uk/about-us/

The annual report from the Audit Committee. which
discusses internal contrel and risk management, is set I
out an pages 35 and 36.

Divisional management teams produce detailed monthiy
financiat and commercial reports for the Board. Divisional
management meetings are held monthly and are attended
by the Executive Directors, where existing and potential
risks to the business and their management are reviewed.

A rolling programme of risk and controls testing is
undertaken across the Group with a focus onvarious key
areas of risk identificd. This programme is uridertaken

A cyber rish workshep was held in the year with a crisis
management workshop concentrating on the Wardle site
planned for later in the year.

The risks faced by the Group are formally documented
in risk registers which are discussed at the biannuai
Audit Committee meetings.

Maintain a dynamic management framework

Principle 5: Maintain the Board as a weli-functioning,
balanced team led by the Chair

The Board currently comprises two Exccutive and three
Nan-Executive Directors. The names of the Dircctors
togetner with their rales and biographical details are set aut
on pages 26 and 27. The rofes of Chair and Chief Executive
are separated, arc clearly understood and have been
agreed by the Board. The Chair is responsible for the
Board. The Chief Executive is responsible for the
operating performance of the Group. A formal schedule
of matters requiring Group Board approval is maintained

strateqgy, approval of budgets, financial results, Board
appointments and dividend poticy, which is available to
view at www.nwi.co.uk/about-us/governance/board-
responsibilities. 1he Board normally meets once a month
with additional meetings which are calied when required.
Comprehensive briefing papers are sent to all Directors
priar to each scheduled Board meeting. Directors are
able, if necessary, tc take independent professionat advice
in the furtherance of their duties at the Company's expense.

Board compaosition
W Chair(l)
W Executive Directors(2)

H Senior Independent
Non Executive Director (1}

Il ndependent
Non-Executive Director (1)

governance/corporate-governance-statement.

The Board annually conducts an appraisal of its own
performance and that of each Director consisting of
individual assessments using prescribed questionnaires
that are compieted by ail Directors. The results are
reviewed, and individuat feedback is given, by the Senior
independent Non-Executive Director in respect of
assessments of the Chair, and by the Chalr in respect of
assessments of each of the other Directors and of the Board
as a whole. This has now been expanded to inciude appraisals
of the Audit and Remuneration Committees.

The service contracts of Executive Directors require one
year's notice or less.

The Beard has approved an Independence Policy which
ensures that no Director is able to sit on the Board for
more than nine years mirroring the provision in the UK
Corporate Governance Code.

Non-Executive Directorg' time commitment is reviewed
to ensure it is sufficient to fulhil their roles.

Attendance of Directors at meetings is set out befow:

disclosure Audit  Remungration

Baard Cammittee Committee Committes

TP Acton NHEENAEAREER [ ] | e FEEEEN

CJdBelsham AHATEREEERERENR | 1 | | N h

0 5 Downie NFEEEEEEEER h Bl ENERN

YMMonaghan INEHEEEEEEN h AN EEEEe

Rawkiting HENNERENNER ] | | [N
Principle 6: Ensure that between them the Directors W Attended

have the necessary up-to-date experience, skills

and capabilities

The biographical details of the Directors, including their
skills and experience, are set out on pages 26 and 27.

The biographical details of the senior Group management
team are set out on page 28.

A Notrequired
to aitend

O Absent

The Board is satisficd that it has an appropriate mix
of skills, personal qualities and capabilities and 15 not
dominated by one person or a group of people.

The Board and the Committees to the Board are
supported by external advisors an a regular basis.

All Directors are subject to re-election each year and
the service agreements for Non-Executive Directaors
are renewed annually.

Arecord of education and training the Directors have
undertaken has been created. This will help to track and
ensure the Directors are all kecping up to date with the
Iatest experience, shills and capabifities.

NWF Group plc
awf oo
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ESG framework

Corporate governance statement continued

Maintain a dynamic management framework centinued
Principle 7: Evaluate Board performance based on clear
and relevant objectives. seeking continuous improvement
The Board conducts an annual appraisal of its own
perfarmance and that of each Executive Oirector. External
facilitation has not been used to date bul does include an
external view from the Company’s Nominated Advisor.

The Board has agreed to use an evaluation tool going
forward and conducted its first review in February 2020.
This was successfully undertaken with some
recommendations which will be implemented. The
evatluation tool will be further utilised to include the
workforce in due course.

individua! feedback is given by the Chair to the Board and
ta the Chair by the Senior Independent Non-Executive
Directar. There is a dedicated Board session far feedback.

The Board sets annual objectives for the Executive
Directors, reviews and approves annual abjectives for
the senior Group management team and measures
perfarmance against them.

The Group continuously monitors succession planning,
assessing the structure of the Board and its performance
to ensure appropriate development and mentaring needs
are identified.

Principle 8: Promote a corporate culture that is based on
ethical values and behaviours

The bustness model section, on pages 14 and 15, sets out
the values of the Group.

Our values are centred around our cuslomers, employees,
community and shareholders. Our values are upheld
through policics and corporate discipline with regular
employee cngagement, customear and sharcholder
fecdback which is used to confirm that these behaviours
are recognised and respected.

The Group seeks to provide excellent customer service to
its 120,000 customers and develop its workforce, creating
new jobs each year, and has a pragressive dividend poticy
rewarding shareholders over the long term.

Excellent customer service underpins each of the
divisions, providing a competitive advantage.

The Group is striving to continue this excellent customer
service with the creation of the Academy in agriculture
to train the future generation of nutritionists.

The Group embraces an equai opportunities culture,
from new starters to internal promaotions, and supports
continuous professional development.

Principle 8: Maintain governance structures and
processes that are fit for purpose and support good
decision making by the Board

The governance structure for the Group is as follows:

Board of Directars

The Chair is responsibie for the Board including its
effective leadership and compesilion, assessing and
improving its performance, and leading the Company’s
corporate governance cuiture.

NWF Group plc
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Terms of reference and a schedule of matters reserved
for the Board can be found in the Governance section of
our website, www.nwi.co.ul/about-us/governance/
corporate-governonce-statement.

The Board is satisfied that the current structure 1=
approoriate and it continuously reviews the governance
framework in line with the Group's plans for growth.

Girectors

Each of the Directors is subject to election by the
sharcholders at the tirst AGM after their appaintment
and all Directors are subject to annual re-election.
Bingraphical detatls of all Directors are set out on
pages 26 and 27.

The Nen-Executive Directors have received
appointment letters setting out their terms of
appointment. All Non-Execulive Directors are appointed

far one year with renewal far further one year lerms if
performanceoe is satisfactory. The terms and conditions of
appeintment of the Non-Executive Directors are available
for inspection at the Company’s registered office.

The appointment of new Non-Executive Directors to the
Board is considered by the whole Board.

internal control
The Board has overall responsibility for ensuring that the

1 Group maintains a systemn of internal control, to provide

it with reasonable assurance regarding the reliability of
financial information that is used within the business and
for the publication and safeguarding of assets. There are
inherent limitations in any system of internal control and
accordingly even the most effective system can provide
only reasonabie, and not absoiute, assurance against
material misstatement or loss.

The Group's organisational structure has clearlines

of responsibility. Operating and financial responsibility
for subsidiary companics is delegated to

operational management.

The Group's risk management programme, which
assesses key risks and the required internal controls that
are delegated to Directors and managers at ail levels in
the Group. is reviewed regularly in order Lo ensure that it
continues to meel the Boards requirements.

Membership as at 31 May 2020:
See the Board of Directors section on pages 26 and 27.

Meetings held in the financial year:
Ten

Audit Committee

The Audit Committee consists of the Chair and

two Non-Executive Directors and is chaired by
Yvonne Monaghan, an independent Non-Executive
Director. The Audit Committee met on two occasions
during the year ended 31 May ?020. The operations of
the Audit Committee are set oul in the separate Audit
Committee Report on pages 35 and 36. Its terms

of reference will be made available at the AGM and
are on the Company’s website.

Membership as at 31 May 2020:
» Y M Monaghan(Chair)

« TPActon

« DS Downie

Meetings held in the financial year:
Two



Remuneration Committee

The Remuneration Cammittee consists of the Chair
and two Nan-Executive Qirectors and 15 charred by
David Oownie, an independent Non-Executive Director.
The Rermuneration Committee met on five occasions
during the year. [Ls remit is to delermine, on behalf of
the Board, appropriate short and long-term total reward
packages for the Executive Directors and to also satisty

. itself that geod practices apply to all Group employees

through the relevant management structures. Itsterms
of reference will be made available at the AGM and are
on the Company’s website.

Membership as at 31 May 2020:
s [ 8 Downie [Chair)

= TPActon

+ Y MMonaghan

Meetings heid in the firancial year:

Five

Disclosure Committee

The Board has established a Bisclosure Committee,
the principal role of which is to consider whether

announcements are reqguired to be made or notin
relation to inside information.

Membership as at 31 May 2020:
= [ .JBelsham{Chair]

« TP Acton

+ R AWhiting

Meetings held in the financial year:
Two

Build trust

Principle 10: Communicate how the Company is
governed and is performing by maintaining a dialogue
with shareholders and other relevant stakeholders
The governance structure for the Group is set out on
page 37. The Audit Committee and Remuneration

i Cormmittee Reports are sct out on pages 35 to 9.

Shareholders

The Chair and the Non -Fxecutive Directors will always
make themselves available to meet with shareholders.
tach AGM is a parlicular opportunily for this. Normal
relationships with sharehoiders are maintained by the
Executive Diroctors, who brief the Board on sharcholder
issues and who relay the views of the Group's advisors

to the Beard.

The Board helieves that the disclosures set outon
pages 1to 25 of the Annual Report provide the information
necessary for shareholders to assess the Company's
performance. business model and strateqy.

In addition, Peel Hunt, in its capacity as the Company’s
nominated advisor and broker, is engaged to liaise with
investors and report hack to the Board. Going ferward,

it will provide an external viewpoint of the Company to
the Boarg with any recommendations it may have to
help assist communication. Shareholders’ views are also
received during the AGM through the opportunity to ask
guestions of the Board and less formally after the AGM.

The Investors section of our website, www.nwi_co.uk/
inwestors, includes historical Annual Reports, Notices
of AGMs and voting histary{wherc there have been no
significant votes against) for a minimum of five years.

Share capital structures

Details of the Company's share capital can be found
in Lthe Takeover Direclive requirements section of
the Directors’ Report and i nole 23 of the Group
financial slatements.

Going concern basis

The Group's business activities, together with the factors
likely to affect its future development, performance and
position, are set out in the Group Financial Review. 1he
tinancial position of the Group and its cash flows, liguidity
position and borrowing facilities are also described in the
Group Financial Review. In additicn. note 21 0f the Group
financial statements includes the Group's objectives, policies
and processes for rmanaging its capital. its financial risk
management objectives, details of financial instruments and
hedqging activities and its exposure to price, interest rate,
credit and liquidity risk. Accardingly, the Directors have a
reasonable expectation that the Company and the Group
have adequate resources to continue in operational
existence for the foresecable future based on the
following factors:

= The Group's banking facilities totalling £65.0 million
with The NatWest Group were renewed on 29 June 2018
and are committed through to October 2023, There
is significant headroom both in terms of covenant
compliance and funding avaiiability. Undrawn faciiities
at 31 May 2020 were £37.6 million(2019: £45.2 million).

« The Group has prepared financial projections lo
31 May 2021 which project positive carnings and
demonstrate covenant compliance at all quarterly
covenant test dates.

« Calcufations to support covenant compliance are
prepared and reviewed on a quarterly basis.

« The Group manitors capital risk on the basis of net
debt/EBITDA ratio. which at 31 May 2020 was 0.7x
{2019: 0.7x).

On the basis of the above, the Directors continue to
adopt the going concern basis of accounting in preparing
the annual financial statements.

Forward-looking statemenits

The Annual Report and Accounts include certain
statements that are forward-looking statemeants. These
statements appear in a number of places throughout
the Strategic Report and include slalements regarding
the Group's intentions, beliefs or current expectations
and those of its officers, Directors and employees
cancerning, amongst other things, the results of
operations, financial condition, liquidity, praspects.
growth and strateqies of the Group’s businesses.

By their nature, these statements involve uncertainty
since future events and circumstances can cause
results and developments to differ materialiy from
those anticipated.

NWF Group plc
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ESG framework

Corporate governance statement continued

Section 172{1} Statement

NWF Group plc depends on the trust and confidence

of all its stakeholders to operate sustainably in the long
term. The Group seeks to build strong partnerships,
creale a culture of safety. invest inits people, respect
the environment in which it operates and sirives Lo
generate sustainable value for sharehelders.

The Directors of NWF Group ple. bath individually and
together, have acted in accardance with their duties
codified in law, which include their duty to act in the way
in which they consider, in good faith, would be most ikely
to promate the success of the Company for the benefit
of its members as a whole, having regard to the
stakeholders and matters set out in Section 172{1)

of the Companies Act 2008, set out below:

» likely conseguences of any decisions in the long term;
» interests of the Company's employees;

« need tofoster the Company's business relationships
with suppliers, customers and others:

impact of Ihe Company’s operations on the community
and environment;

desirability of the Company maintaining a reputation
for high standards of business conduct; and

« need to act fairly as between members of the Company.

Section 172 considerations are embedded in decision
making at Board level and throughout the Group.

« Qur strategyis designed to have a long term beneficial
impact on the Company and to contribute to its success;
further details can be found in our business model and
acquisition strateqy.

« Our employees are fundamental to our business. We
aim to be a responsible employer in cur approach to
our employees. The heaith, safety and wellbeing of our
employees is one of our primary considerations in the
way we do business; further details can be foundin our
sustainability strategy.

NWF Group ple
Arnual Reportand Accounts 2020

34

« We also aim to act responsibly and fairly in how we
engage with our customers, suppliers and investors
and co-operale with any regulators, all of whom are
integral to the success of the Group.

« Qur sustainability policy takes into account the «mpact
of the Group's operations on the community and
environment and our wider socictal responsibilities,
and in particular how we impact the arcas we serve.
We have taken steps to start to minimise our impact
on these. Qur sustainability palicy can be found at
www.nwi.co.uk.

« Asthe Board of Girectors, our intention is to behave
responsibly and ensure that management operates
the business in a responsible manner. operating within
the high standards of business conduct and good
governance expected for a business such as ours.

« Asthe Board of Directors, our intention is to behave
responsibly toward our shareholders and treat them
fairly and equally, so they too may benefit fram the
successful delivery of our strategy.

Additionally, the size and spread of both our stakeholders
and the Group as a collective mean that generally our
stakeholder engagement takes place at an operational
and Group level. We find that as well as being a more
efficient and effective approach, this also helps us
achieve a greater positive impact on environmental,
social and other issues than by werking aione as
individual compames.

Further information and examples of the Group's
engagement with stakeholders can be found in our
sustainability strategy.



Audit Commiittee report

Monitoring all aspects
of reporting and risk

“The Audit Committee consists of the Chair

and two Non-

Executive Directors, two of

whom are qualified Chartered Accountants.”

Meetings in 2020

(2019: 2)

- Dear shareholder,

| 'am pleased to present the Audit Committee Report for
the year ended 31 May 2020.

Composition

The Audit Comnuttee consists of the Chair and

two Non-Executive Direclars and is ¢haired by myself
as an ingependent Non-Executive Director. The Audit
Comrmittee met on two accasions during the year.

¥ M Monaghan (Chair) | ] |
TP Acton | { |
D S Downie | 1 ]
W Attended

A Notrequired to attend
{1 Absent

Responsibilities

The Audit Committec has terms of reference in place which
have been formally approved by the Board and are made
available at the AGM and on the Company’s webstte. Its
primary responsibilities include reviewing the effectiveness
of the Group's internal cantrof systems and monitering the
integrity of the Group’s financisl statements and externat
announcements of the Group’s results. The Committee
reports to the Board on all these matters. The Committee
defers to the wider Board on the mattars of bribery,
whistieblowing and modern slavery and the Group policies
concarnng these matters can he found at www.nwi.co.uk.

Experience of the Audit Committee

The Audit Committee comprises the Chair and two
Non-Executive Directors. two of whom are quahfied
Chartered Accountants and have extensive experience
in senior finance roles.

External audit

The Audit Committec also approves the appointment
and remuneration of the Group's external auditors and
satisfies itseit that they maintain their independence
regardless of any non-audit work performed by them.
The Group adopts the following policy governing the
performance of non-audit work by the auditors. The
auditors are permitted to provide non-audit services

- which are not, and are not perceived to be, in conflict

with auditor independence, providing they have the skili,
competence and integrity to carry out the work, and

are considered to be the most appropriate advisois to
undertake such work in the best interests of the Group.
Al assignments are monitored by the Committes.

The respective responsihilitics of the QJirectors and

external auditors in connection with the financial

statements arc cxplained in the Statement of Directors’
Responsibilities on page 42 and the Auditors’ Report on
pages 43 to 46. Details of services provided by, and fees
payable to, the auditors are shown in note 5 of the Group
financial statements.

Whilst the Audit Committee has not adopted a formal
policy in respect of the rotation of the external auditors,
one of its principal dulies is to make recommendations
to Lhe Board in relation to the appointment of the
external audilors. Various factors are 1aken inlo account
by the Committee in this respect, including the quality
of the reports provided to the Commitice, the levei of
sarvice provided and the level of understanding of the
Group's business.

PricewaterhouseCoopers LLP have been the Company's
external auditors far many years. The Audit Committee
cansiders that the relationship with the auditors is
working well and remains satisfied with their
effectiveness and independence. Accordingly, it has not

. considered it necessary to dale to reguire the firm to

re-lender for the audit work. The auditors are required
to rotate the audit partner responsible for the Group and
subsidiary audits every five years. The current audit partner
is in the tirst year of his term as audit partner. There are
no contractual obligations restricting the Company's
choice of auditors. As an AlM-listed company, the Group
does not have a requircment to put the audit out to tender
cvery ten years, however this is kept under review by the
Audit Committee to decide if tendering is appropriate.

NWF Group plc
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ESG framework

Audit Committee report continued

Internal audit

The Broup does not have a farmal internal audit function
but performs targeted reviews and visits Lo operations

by the Head Office team and professional advisors. The
results of these reviews are communicated back tg the
Audit Committee. This approachis considered appropriate
and proporticnate for the size of the organisation.

Internal controf and risk management

Aninternat control update is provided teo the Audit Committee
at each meeting. Theo principal risks arc also reviewed and
any changes in f15K ratings are discussed to ensure that
approprizte risk mitigations are in place where reievant.

Going concern

The Board has prepared cash flow forecasts for the
period ta 31 May 2022, Under this base case scenario,
the Group is expected to continuc to have significant
headroom relative to the funding available to it and
To comply with its banking covenants.

The Board has also considered various other severe
dawnside scenarios, including the possibility of a second
locktown as a resutt of a second wave of Covid-19, These
downside scenarios excluded any mitigating actions that
the Bpard would be able to take to reduce costs. Under
these scenarigs, the Group would still expect to have
sufficient headroom in its financing facilities.

Significant issues considered in relation to the
financial statements

The audit Committee assesses whether suitable
accounting policies have been adopted and whether
management has made appropriate estimates and
judgernents. The Committes reviews accounting papers
prepared by management which provide details on the
main financial reporting judgements. The Committee also
reviews reports by the external auditors on the half-year
and full-year results which highlight any issues arising fram
their work undertaken in respect of the half-year review
and year end audit. The specific areas of risk in refation to
the financial statements reviewed by the Committee were:

1. Acquisition accounting

During the year. the Group acquired 160% of the share
capitai of both David Hermon Hodge Group Limited and
Ron Darch & Sons Limited. The Group also acquired

the frade and assets of the fuel distribution business of
Caldg Ofks Limited. The Audit Committee considered the
methodolegy used by rnanagement in determining the fair
value of the customer relationships and brands acquired
and the disclosures within the financial statements. The
Committee is carnfortable with management’s approach.

2. The carrying value of goodwill and fixed assets

The Groups goodwill and fixed assets are material
batances. Annual impairment reviews are performed which
use key judgements including estimates of future business
performance and cash generation, discount rates and
long-term growth rates. The Committee is comfortable
with the Key assumptions applied and management's
conciusion that ne impairment has occurred.

3. The carrying value of trade receivables

The Group holds material trade receivable balances, and
the calculations of provisions for impairment are estimates
of tuture events and therefore uncertain. The Committee
has raviewed the current year provisions against trade
recgivables. inciuding an assessmoent of the adeguacy of the

NWF Group pic
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prior year provisions, and is satisfied with management’s
conclusions that the provisioning levels are appropriate.

4, Pensions including obligations and assumptions

The Groups defined benefit pension scheme is material

to its financial position. The amounts shown in the balance
sheet are highly sensitive to changes in key actuarial
assumptions which are set by reference to advice from

' professicnal advisars. Full disclosure of the pension

scheme is provided in note 24 to the financial staterments.

5. Exceptional items

The Committee has considered the presentation of

the Group financial statements and. in particular, the
presentation of exceptional items. The Committee

has discussed these items with management and agreed
that the presentation is consistent with the Group’s
accounting policy and provides more meaningfu!
information to shareholders about the underlying
performance of the Group.

6. Alternative performance measures (APMs)

The Group refers ta a number of APMs throughaout the
Annual Report and Accounts. APMs arc uscd by the Group
to provide further clarity and transparency on the Group's
financiat performance. The APMs are used internally by
management to monitor business performance,
budgeting and for determining Directors' remuneration,

The Committee is aware that the APMs are non-iFRS
measures. APMs used by the Group are as follows:

* Hepadiine operating profit, which refers to reported
operating profit after agding back exceptional items
and amortisation of acguired intangibles.

* Headline profit before tax, which refers to reported
profit hefore tax after adding back the net finance cost
inrespect of the Croup's defined benefit pension
scheme, exceptional items and amortisation of
acquired intanqgibles.

= Headline EBITDA, which refers Lo reported operating profit
after adding back exceptional items and amortisation of
acquired intangibies. The headiine EBITDA caiculation
excludes the impact of IFRS 16 depreciation.

+ Headline carnings. which refers to profit for the year

after adding back the net finance cost in respect of the

Group's defined benefit pension scheme, exceptional

items and amortisaticn of acquired intangibles, and

taking into account the tax effect thereon,

Headline EPS, which refers to the reported EPS

calcuiation based on headline earnings.

+ Net debt, which is adjusted to exclude the impact of
the adoption of IFRS 16.

[

The Cominittee cansiders that the APMs, all of

which exclude the impact of non-recurring items ar
non-operating events, provide useful information for
shareholders on the underlying trends and performance
of the Group. Furthermore, the Committee is satisf'ed
that where AFPMs are stated, they are presented with
equal prominence to the statutory figures.

Yvonne Monaghan
Chair of the Audit Committee

4 August 2020



Directors’ remuneration report

Rewarding
performance

“Our remuneration structure supports
the strategy of the Company.”

Meetings in 2020

(2018: 3)

Dear shareholder,
I am pieased to present the Directors' Remuneration
Report for the year ended 31 May 2020.

The aim of our report is to provide sharehoiders with
information to understand our remuneration strategy
and its linkage to the Group's financial performance. The
following Directors were members of the Remuneration
Committee when matters refating to the Executive
Directors’ remuneration were being considered:

Members of the Remuneration Committee

D 5 Downie{Chair) HEE
TP Actan | [ ] ]
Y M Monaghan nEE

. il Attended
| W NoOtrequired to atrend
0 Absent

 Qur performance in 2019/20
NWF Group plc bas delivered a very strong set of results
. demaonstrating both resilience and growth.

Key pay out-turns for 2019/20

For 2018/20, the performance achieved against financial
and operationai targets resulted i 87.8% of the maximum
annual bonus being paid.

" Given our headline earnings per share (PS8} performance
of 20.5p at 31 May 2020, 100% of the LTIP awards granted
at the start of 2018/17 will vest in August 2020,

. Looking forward to 2020/21
We have undertaken a review in conjunction with Deloitte LLP,
. oyr professional advisors, to ensure our remuneration
i structure supports the evolving strategy of the Company
" and our growth ambitions over the coming years and is at
the appropriate levels in the current marketplace. The
key reward schemes can be summarised as follows:

E « Annual bonus - an annua? bonus with performance criteria

' based upon a mixture of profit-based and personal
objectives as set by the Remuneration Committee.

+ Long-term Incentive Plan{'LTIP) - three-year share-based
payments with the performance criteria being based

: upon EPS growth over the term of the award. A two year

' hotding period upan vesting has been introduced for all

1, awards granted from 2020 foltowing review and in line

with market practice.

We have therefore maintained, with appropriate
amendments following the external review and guidance,
amixture of short and langer-term remuneration
structures which underpin our business growth strategy.

David Downie
Chair of the Remuneration Commitiee

4 August 2020
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ESG framework

Directors’' remuneration report continued

Remuneration policy

As an AlM-listed entity, the Company is not required to fully apply the Listing Rules of the Financial Conduct Autharity or the BIS Directors
Remuneration Reporting Regulations and hence is not required to presenl a Board Report on Remuneration in accordance with those rules.
Nevertheless, the Board considers it appropriate for the Company to provide sharehalders with informaticon with respect to Executive
remuneration. The report is unaudited, unless otherwise stated.

The Company's remuneration principles are as follows:

« remuneration structures should be appropriate to the business, efficient and cost effective in delivery:
« compicxity i$ discouraged in favour of simple and understandable remuneration structures:
= remuneration structures shoutd seek ta align Executive and shareholder interestsincluding through a meaningful level of personal sharehoiding:
* remuneration structures should promote lang-term focus through features such as deferral and measuring performance over the long term;
= structures should include performance adjustments{malus)and/or clawback provisions:
» pay should be gligned to the long-term sustainable success and the desired corporate culture thraughout the orgamisation with increases
in base salary of Executives being aligned to those of the wider workforce; and
+ the Remuneration Committee ensures that rewards properly reflect business performance.

Directors’ emeluments - audited information

Tees‘hasic 2020 20139

salary Benotis Bonus L1 Fension Total Totai

Name of D'ector jsluis] 000 o0 £600 £008 £000 000

CJ Beisham g 15 170 194 24 582 332

R A Whiting 297 29 296 323 78 1,023 605
Non-Executive

TP Acton 79 - - - - 79 75

D S Downie 47 - - - - 42 40

¥ M Managhan 47 - - — - 42 40

Aggregate emolyments 639 44 456 L17 102 1,768 1,082

1 Calewated as an LTiP award for the three years endged 31 May 2020. C J Belsbam and R A Whiting will be awarded 175,254 and 191,864 shares respectively, at the three-rmonlh
average price of £168.38. This award nas vested, but has rot been exercised as at the date of this report.

2020/21 remuneration policy

The principles of gur approved remuneration policy are as follows:

Element frolicy
Base salary + Positioned competitively in line with the market.
= For2020/21, Directors salaries will be as follows:
« Chief Executive: £303,260: and
« Group finance Director: £182,250.
Annual bonus » Maximum appartunity for Executive Directors is 100% of base salary.

Performance is measured over one financial year.

Weightings and targels are reviewed and set at the starl of each financial year.

or 2020/21, 75% of the bonus will be based on headiine profit before tax performance with

the remaining 25% based on the achievement of personal objectives.

Profit bonus has a minimum threshold set at 95% achievernent of budget.

Malus and ctawback provisions will be applied in a number of cases, including, but not imited to:

« agross misstatement of the performance of the business:

« gross misconduct; or
« amiscalculation of the extent to which targets have been met.
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Long-term Incentive Plan .

Maximum cpportunity for Executive Directors is 100°7% of base salary at the time of the award.
Awards are made annually.

Performance is measured over three years.

For 2020/21, the awards will be subject to EPS3 performance as follows:

« 30% will vest for performance of RPi + 2% per annum; and

- uptoamaximum of 100% will vest for nerformance of RPY + 2% to 8% per annum.

Malus and clawback provisions will be applied in a number of cases, including, but not limited to:
« agross misstatement of the performance of the business;

« Qross misconduct; or

- amiscalcufation of the extent to which targets have been met.

A holging period of two years will apply to ali awards made after 2020 upon vesting.
Cxecutive Directors are exgected ta hold shares of value equivatent to 1007% of their salary by
the fifth anniversary of their appointment.

Pension .

R A Whiting is entitled to receive pension contributions from the Company totailing 30% of base
satary. He can eiect tor those contributions to be paid in the form of taxable pension allowance
or direct payments into a defined contribution pension scheme.

C.J Beisham is entitled to receive pension contributions from the Cormpany totalling 15% of
base salary. He can elect for those contributions to be paid in the form of taxable pension
allowance or direct payments into a defined contribution pension scheme.

Benefits .

The Executives are entitied to a standard Director benefits package, including a company car
and private medical cover.

Terms and conditions for Non-Executive Directors

Non-Executive Directors do not have service contracts but appointment letiers setting out their terms of appointment. All Non-Executive
Directors are appointed for one year with renewal for further one year terms if performance is satisfactory, normally renewable on g similar
basis subject to re-election at the Company's AGM.

Long-term Incentive Plan

Tre table below summarises the outstanding Performance Share Plan awards. 2017 awards are based on ahsolute EPS performance in the year
ended 33 May 2020. 2018 awards are based on absolute EPS performance in the year ending 31 May 2021, Z019 awards are based on absolute
EPS performance in the year ending 31 May 2022.

No. of Face valup No. of shares

Share price shares of snares £PS for vesting at EPSfor
at date of veshing at vesting maximnum threshald threshotd Herformange
Award cate grant IMAXITITY ot maximum vesting' {30%) vestng' pernoaciading
C .} Belsham 1Auqust 2017 147.5p 115,254 £170,000 19.9p 34,576 18.4p 31 May 2020
1 August 2018 i97.5p 88.228 L¥74,250 22.5p 28,468 13.0p 31 May 2021
1 August 2019 166.0p 107590  £178,600 211 32,277 179p  31May2027
R A Whiting 1 August 2017 1475p 191,864  £283,000 18.9p 57,550 B.4p 31 May 2020
1 August 2018 197.5p 146,835  £290,000 22.5p 44,051 19.0p 31 May 2021
1 August 2013 166.0p 179.066 £287.250 20p 53,720 17.9p 31May 2022

1 EPStargels based on headling EPS - year ended 31 May 2020 for the 2017 award. year ending 31 May 2021 for the Z0W award and year ending 31 May 2022 tor the 2019 award.
EIS targets fer maximum and threshold vesting are based on the fnrecast BPI as at 31 May 2020,
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ESG framework

Directors’ report
for the year ended 31 May 2020

Tne Directors present their report together with the
zuaited financial statements ot the Parent Company (the
Company’)and Lhe Group for the year ended 31 May 2020.

Business review and future developments

Areview of the performance of the Group during the
year, including principai risks and uncertainties, key
performance indicators and comrments on future
developmaents, is included in the Strategic Report

and is included in this report by cross-reference.

Tne Strategic Report has been revicwed and approved
by the Board of Directors.

Results and dividends

The Greup recorded revenae in the year of £687.5 million
(2019: £871.3 million}and profit after tax of E8.9 million
(2019 £6.8 mullion).

The Drrectors recommend a final dividend for the year
of 5.9p per share (2019: 5.6p}which, if approved at the
AGM. will be payable on 8 December 2020, Together
with the interim dividend paid during the year of 1.0p
per share {2019 1.0p). this will result In a total dividend
of 6.9p per share (2019: 6.6p}amounting to £5.4 miflion
{2019: £3.2 million]).

Financial risk management

Information relating to the principal risks and
uncertainties of the Group has been included within
the Strategic Report and is inctuded in this report by
cross-reference. Further information relating to the
financial risks of the Group has been included within
note 21, Financial instruments and risk management.

Going concern

Ihe Group has an agreement with 1he NatWest Group
for credit facilities totalling £685.0 million. With the
exception of the bank overdraft facility of £1.0 miltion
and the £4.0 mitlion bank guarantee tacility, which are
renewed annually, these facilities are committed through
to 31 October 2023. As at 31 May 2020 the Group had
available facilities of £49.5 milion {based on actual
invoice discounting avaitability and overdraft facilities),
against which the Group was ublising £11.9 miilion
{exciuding hire purchase obligations).

The Board has prepared cash flow forecasts for the
period to 31 May 2022, Under this base case scenario,
the Group is expected to continue to have significant
headroom relative to the funding available to it and to
comply with its banking covenants.

The Board has also considered various other saverg
downside scenarios, including the possibility of a second
lockdown as a result of a second wave of Covid-18. These
downside scenarios excluded any mitigating actions that
the Board wouid be able to take to reduce costs. Under
these scenarins, the Group would still expect to have
sufficient headroom in its financing factlities.

Accordingly. the Directors, having made suilable
enguiries, and based on financial performance to date
and forecasts along with the available banking facitities,
have a rcasonable expectation that the Group has
adequate resources to continde in operational existence
for the foreseeable future. The Group therefore cantinues
to adopt the going concern basis of accounting in
preparing the annual financial statemcnts.
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' Directors and their interests

The Directors of the Company who were in office during
the year and up to the date of signing the financial
statements were:

.+ Philip Acton
-« Richard Armitage

+ Chris Belsham
» David Downie

.+ Yvonne Monaghan

= Richard Whiting

The Directors who held effice duning the year and as at
31 May 2020 had the foliowing interests in the ordinary
shares of the Company:

31May

2020

Narne of Director Number
T F Acton 30,000
C J Belsham 19,625
D 3 Downie 10,000
¥ M Monaghan 10,000
R A Whiting 310,767

In addition to the inlerests in ordinary shares shown
above, the Group ogerates a Performance Share Plan(the
LTIF) for senior executives, under which certain Directors
have been granted conditional share awards. Subject to
achieving performance targets, the maximum number of
orgdinary shares which could be issued to Directorsin the
future under such awards is shown below:

31 May

2020

Number

C J Belsham 195,818
R A'Whiting 325,901

Furtherinformation on the Directors’ interests in the LTIF
conditinnal share awards can be found in the Directors’
Remuneration Report.

The market price of the Company’s shares at Lthe end of
the financial year was 207.0p {31 May 2019: 168.0p)and the
range of market prices during the year was between
120.0p and 203.0p.

No changes took place in the interests of Directors
between 31 May 2020 and the date of signing the
financial statements.

Further detaits on related party transactions with Directors
are provided in note 29 of the Group financial statements.

Directors’ indemnities

The Company has made qualifying third party indemnity
provisions for the benefit af the Directars, which were in
force during the year and up to the date of this report.



Major shareholdings as at 15 July 2020

Name of shareno.der Number %
Festa Lifeyrissjodur 2,382,389 489
Sameinadi Lifeyrisjodurinn 2,382,389 4,89
Lifeyrissjodur Vestmannaeyja 2,382,388 4.89
Canaccord Genuity Wealth 2,255,000 463
Management (Inst)

Interactive investor 213.217 433
Cazencve Capital Management 1,623,378 3.33
Fidelity Mgt & Research 1,618,657 3.32
Ruifer 1.5372.601 315
Employee engagement

The Group systematically provides employees with
information on matters of concern to them, consuiting
thern or their representatives regularly, so that their
views can be taken into account when raaking decisions
that are likely to affect their interests. Empiayee
invalvement in the Group is encouraged, as achieving

3 commaon awareness on the part of all empioyees of the
financial 2nd economic factors affecting the Group piays
a major role in its performance.

The Group is committed to an active equal opportunities
policy from recruitment and selectios, through training
and development, performance reviews and promotion
to retirement. The Group's policy is to pramote an
eavirorment free from discrimination, harassment

and victimisation, where 2l employees receive equat
treatment regardless of gender, colour, ethnic or
national origin, health condition, age, marital or civil
partner status, sexual orientation or religion. All
decisions relating to employment practices will be
objective, free from bias and based solefy upon work
criteria and indiwvidual merit.

Further information and examples of the Group's
engagement with employees can be found in our 8.172
statement on page 34 and sustainability strategy on
pages 72 to 25.

Business relationships

The Group recognises its responsibility to act fairly in our
engagements with customers, suppliers, investors and
any requiatars, all of whom are integral (o the success of
the Group. The strength of the Group's business
refationships is vital and the Group aims to collaborate
with customers and suppliers to deliver long-term
sustatnable solutions.

Further information and examgples of the Groug's
engagernent with customers. suppliers and others can be
found in our s.172 statement on page 34 and sustainability
strategy on pages 27 to 25.

Takeover Directive requirements

The Campany has one ciass of equity share, namely 25p
ordinary shares. The shares have egual voting rights and
there are no special rights or restrictions attaching to any
cf them or their transfer (o other persons.

Rules governing the appointment and replacement of
Directors, and those relating to the amendment of the
Company’s Articles of Association, are contained within
those Articles of Association, a copy of which is located
on the Company’s website (www.rwf-couk).

Notica of AGM
A Notice of AGM, with expianatory notes, accompanies
these financial statements.

Corporate governance

The Groups statement on corporate governance can be
found in the Statement on Carporate Governance which
is incorporated by reference and forms part of this
Directors Report.

Disclosure of information to independent auditors
The Directors of the Cempany at the date of approval
of this report confirm that:

= sofar as each [lirector is aware, there is no relevant
audit information of which the Company’s auditors are
unaware; and

= each Director has taken all the steps that they ought
1o have taken as a Director to make themselves aware
of any relevant audit information and to establish that
the Company's auditors are aware of that information.

This confirmation is given and should be interpreted
in accordance with the provisions of Section 418 of the
Companies Act 20086,

Independent auditars
The auditors, PricewaterhouseCoopers LLP, have
indicated their wilingness to continue in office and

Company Secretary

Wardle

Nantwich

Cheshire

CW5S EBP

Registered number: 02264971

4 August 2020
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ESG framework

Statement of Directors’ responsibilities

for the year ended 31 May 2020

The Directors are responsibie for preparing the Annuat
Report and the financial statements in accordance with
applicable law and regulation.

Company law requires the Directors te prepare financial
stztements for gach financial year. Under that law the
Directors have prepared the Group financial statements
in actordance with international Financial Reporting
Standargs {:FRSs} as adopted by the Eurepean Union ang
Parent Company financial statements in accordance with
United Kingdom Generally Accepted Accounting Practice
{Uniteg Kingdom Accounting Standards, comprising
FRS 101 Reduced Thsclosure Framework', and applicable
law). Under company iaw the [irectors must not approve
the financial statements uniess they are satisfied that
they give a true and fair view of the state of affairs of
the Group and Parent Company and of the profit or loss
of the Group for that period. In preparing the financial
statements, the Directors are reqguired 1o:

= select suitable accounting policies and then apply
them consistently;

- state whether applicable IFRSs as adopted by the
Eurapean Union have been followed for the Group
financiz! statements and United Kingdom Accounting
Standards, comprising FRS 101, have been followed for
the Comgany financial statements, subject to any
material departures discigsed and explainedin the
financial statements;

= make judgements and acgounting estimates that are
reasonabte and prudent; and

« prepare the financial statements on the going concern
basis uniess it is inappropriate 1o presume that the
Group and Parent Company will continue in business.

The Directors are responsibie for keeping adeguate
accounting records that are sufficient to show and
expiain the Group and Parent Company’s transactions
and disclose with reasonable accuracy at any time the
financial position of the Group and Parent Company and
enable them to ensure that the financial statements
comply with the Companies Act 2008 and, as regards the
Group financial statements, Article 4 of the 1AS Requlation.

The Directors are also responsible for safequarding the
assets of the Group and Parent Company and hence for
taking reasonable steps for the prevention and detection
of fraud and other irregularities.

The Directors are responsible for the maintenance and
inteqgrity of the Parent Company’s website. Legislation
in the United Kingdom governing the preparation and
dissemination of financial statements may differ from
legislation in other jurisdictions.

The Qirectors consider that the Annua! Report and
Accounts, taken as a whale, are fair, balanced and
ungerstandable and provides the information necessary
for shareholders to assess the Group and Parent
Company's performance. business model and strategy.

Each of the Birectors, whose names and funclions are
listed in the Directors’ Report, confirm that, to the best
of their knowledge:

-

*

the Parent Company financial statements, which have
been prepared in accordance with United Kingdom
Generaily Accepted Accounting Practice (United
Kingdom Accounting Standards. comprising FRS 103
‘Reduced Disclosure Framework’, and applicable law).
give a true and fair view of the assets, liabilities,
financial position and profit of the Company:

the Group financial statements, which have been
prepared in accordance with IFRSs as adopted by the
European Union, give a true and fair view of the assets,
liabitities, financial position and profit of the Group; and
the Strategic Report inciudes a fair review of the
development and performance of the business and the
position of the Group and Parent Company, together
with a description of the principal risks and

Company Secretary

Wardle

Nantwich

Cheshire

CW5 6BP

Registered number: 02264371

4 August 2020



independent auditors’ report
to the members of NWF Group plc

Report on the audit of the financial statements

Opinien

In our opinion:

« NWF Group plc's Group financial statements ang Parent Company financial statements{the “financial statements’) give a true and fair view
of the state of the Group's and of the Parent Company’s affairs as at 31 May 2020 and of the Group's profit and cash flows for the year then ended:;

+ the Group financial staternents have been properly prepared in accordance with International Financial Reperting Standards (IFRSs)ag
adopted by the European Union;

» the Parent Carmpany financial statements have been praperly prepared in accordance with United Kingdem Generally Accepted Accounting
Practice (United Kingdem Accounting Standards, comprising FRS 101 “‘Reduced Disclosure Framewark”, and applicable law): and

» the “inancial statements have been prepared in accordance with the reguirements of the Companies Act 2008,

We have audited the financial staternents, incluged within the Annual Report and Accounts {the "Annual Repart”). which comprise: the Consolidated
and Parent Company Balance Sheets as at 31 May 2020: the Consolidated Income Statement: the Consoiidated and Parent Company Statements
of Comprehensive Incame: the Consolidated and Parent Company Statements of Changes in Equity; and the Consclidated Cash Flow Statement
for the year then ended: and the notes to the financial staterments, which include a description of the significant accounting policies.

Basis for opinion

We conducted our audit in accordance with international Standards on Auditing (UK} {1SAs{UKY) and applicable law. Our responsibilities under
ISAs(UK) are further described in the auditors’ responsibilities for the audit of the financial statements section of our report. We believe that
the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion,

Independence

We remained independent of the Group in accardance with the ethical reguirements that are relevant Lo our audit of the financial statements
in the UK. which includes the FRC's Fthicat Standard, as applicable to listed entities, and we have fulfilled gur other ethical respensibilities in
accordance with these requirements.

Our audit approach
Overview

+ Overalt Group materiality: £600,000(2019: £436,000), based on 5% of profit before tax.

- * Overall Parent Company materiality: £400.000{2018: £350,000), based on 0.6'% of tolal assets.
Materiality

+ The Group consists of seven trading entities, alongside its head office company and other holding comipanies.
Qur audit facused on those entities with the most significant contribution to the Group's results, being NWF
Agriculture Limited, NWF Fuels Limited, David Hermon Hodge Group Limited, Ron Darch & Sons Limited and
Audit scope Boughey Distribution | imited; along with Lhe head office company. We have also performed proceduresin
relation to cash balances within Consols Oils Limited and in relation to debtor and cash batances in Now
Breed{UK)Limited.
* The components within the scope of curwork accounted for 86% of Group revenue and 83% of Group profit
before tax.
Key audit
matters

« Defined benefit pension plan liabifities (Greup and Parent Company).
* Impact of Covid-13{Group and Parent Company).

The scope of our audit

As part of designing our audit, we determined materiality and assessed Lhe risks of material misstatement in Lhe financial statements.

In particular. we locked at where the Directors made subjective judgements, for example in respect of significant accounting estimates that
involved making assumptions and considering future events that are inherently uncertain. As in all of our audits we also addressed the risk
of management override of internal controls, including evaluating whether there was evidence of bias by the Directors that represented
arisk of material misstatement due to fraud.

Key audit matters

Key audit matters are those matters that. in the auditors’ professional jJudgement, were of most significance in the audit of the financial
staterments of the current period and include the most significant assessed risks of material misstatement (whether or not due to fraud}
identified by the auditars, including those which had the greatest effect on: the overall audit strateqy; the allocation of resources in the audit;
angd directing the efforts of the engagement team. These matters, and any comments we make on the resuits of our procedures therean, were
addressed in the context of our audit of the financial statements as a whole, and in forming our opinion thereon, and we do not provide a
separate opinion on these matters. This is not a complete list of all risks identified by our audit.

NWF Group plc
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Financial statements

Independent auditors’ report continued

to the members of NWF Group plc

Report on the audit of the financial statements continued
Our audit approach continued
Key audit matters continued

Key audit matter

How our audit addressed the hey audit matter

Defined benefit pension plan liabilities (Group and Parent Company}
Refer to page 35 {ACR) note 2 [accounting policies) pages 57 to 58
{critical accounting estimates and judgments)and note 24. The Group
has a defined benefit pension plan net lability of £21.0m{209: £17.3m),
which is significant in the context of both the overall baiance sheet,

the resuits of the Group and the market capitalisation of the Group.

We obtained the external actuary’s report used in valuing the
schemes liabilities and determined, using our experience of the
valuation of similar schemes, and our own pension specialists, that
the methodologies adopted by the actuary in forming the vaiuation
were consistent with industry practice and our expectatians.

We also agreed tne key financial assumptions used within the

A major constituent of this net liability is the value attributed to the gross valuation of the scheme’s liabilities, including the discount and

liabilities of the pension scheme. The valuation of these gross liabilities
of £81.1m(2019: £55.3m) requires significant judgment and expertise
primarily in respect of the key assumptions used. These assumptions
include both financial assumptions e.g. the discount rate ang inflation,
but aiso key demographic assumptions e.q. mortality rates.

Modest changes in a number of these key assumptions can have a
material impact on the calculation of the liability. We therefore focused
our work on this area.

inflation rales, to our internally developed benchmarks.

Further we considered the appropriateness of the approach
taken to setting the mortality assumptions and we found them
to be reazonable.

We read the disclosures within the financial statements in respoct of
the defined benefit scheme and. based or our work. determined that
they are consistent with accounting standards.

Impact of Covid-19 [Group and Parent Company)

The angoing and evalving Covid-19 pandemic, and the related
gaovernment response to this crisis, is having a significant impact on the
econamies of those countries in which the Group operates. There is a
high level of uncertainty as to the duration of the pandemic and what its
lasting impact wili be on those economies.

The Directors have considered the potential impact to the Group of the
cngoing Covid-19 pandemic in several areas, including the assessment
cf going concern, the carrying value of the Group's assets and
disclosures to be included n the financial statements,

tnrelation to the Group's going concern assessment, the Bireclors
adjusted the cash flow forecasts to refiect a number of severe but
plausible downside scenarios resulting from the direct and indirect
conseguences of Covid-13. including, for example, a reduction in
revonue caused by second lockdown. Management has conciuded that
the Group and Company expect to trade solvently under these scenarios
for at least twelve months from the date of this report and cash flow
forecasts support going concern status. The Directors have therefore
prepared the Group and Company financial statements on a going
concern basis, and believe this assumption remains appropriate.

Management concluded that there was no material impact on the
financial statements, including inrespect of the impairment of certain
assels, or on provisions or estimates made.

In assessing management's considerations of the potential impact of
Covid-19, we have undertaken the following procedures:

» we optained management’s assessment that supports the Board's
conciusions with respect to the disclosures provided around going
concern;

« we discussed with management the impact assessments appliedin
the going concern review so we could understand the rationale for
those assumpticns:

» we challenged the rationale for those assumptions, using our
knowledge of the business, the sector and wider cormmentary
available from key customers;

« we reviewed trading resubts after the 2020 year end date and
compared this to management's revised forecast, and considered
the impact of these actual results on the future forecast period;

« we reviewed management sensitivity scenarios which atso inciuded
further potential mitigating actions available to confirm they are
within management control. We challenged management to run a
further downside scenario in order to assess the possible impact;

« we assess the availability of liquid resources under different
scenarios modelled by management. and the associated covenant
test applied; and

» we have considered the potential impact of Covid-18 on other
areas of the balance sheet, specifically around impairment of
goodwill and intangible assets and concluded that there were no
indicators of a material impact on amounts inciuded in the Group ar
Company financial statements.

Our conciusionisin the going concern section noted below.

How we tailored the audit scope

We tailored the scope of our audit to ensure that we performed enough work to be abie to give an opinion on the financial statements as a
whoie. taking into account the structure of the Group and the Parent Company, the accounting processes and cantrols, and the industry in

which they operate.

The Group is managed on an entity basis with seven trading entities, along with a head office company and three holding companies. The

Groups trading entities are all based in the UK and operate their own accounting function, which report to the Group finance team. Cansistent
with the Group's operations, we scoped aur audit at an entity level, performing a full scope audit in respect of five of the seven trading entities
and the head oftice company. with procedures performed in relation to trade receivables in relation to one additional entity, and in relation 1o
cash for the two trading entities not in full scope, ensuring significant coverage of all balances across the Group. Audit work acrass the Group.
including the trading entities and head office company. was performed by the same audit team.

NWF Group plc
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Report on the audit of the financial statements continued

Qur audit appreach continued

Materiality

The scope of our audit was influenced by qur application of materiality. We set certain guantitative Lhresholds for materiality. These, together
wilh gualitative considerations, helped us to determine the scape of our audit and the nature, Uiming and extent of our audit procedures on the
individual financial statement ing items and disclosures and in evaluating Lhe effect of misstatements, both individuatly and in aggregate on
the fingncial statements as a whaole.

Based on our professional judgement, we deterrmined materiaiity for the financial statements as a wnole as follows:

Group financial statements Parent Company financial statements

Overall materiality £600,000(2019: £436.000). £400.000{2019: £350,000)

How wae determined it 5% of profit before tax. 0.6% of total assets.

Rationale for benchmark applied Profit before tax is the primary measure used  Total assets is considered to be appropriate as
by the sharehoiders in assessing the the Parent Company is not profit oriented. The
performance of the Group, and is a generally  Parent Company acts as a holding company,
accepted auditing benchmark. holding investments in subsidiaries along with

investment property which is utilised by the
Group's trading entities.

For each component in the scope of our Graup audit, we allocated a materiality that is less than our overall Group materiality. The range of
materiality allocated across components was between £68.000 and £486,000. Certain components were audited to a local statutory audit
materiality that was also less than our overall Group materiality.

Wa agreed with the Audit Commitiee that we would report to them misstatements identified during our audit above £30,000 (Group audit)
(2019: £22.000}and £20,000 (Parent Company audit}{2019: £22,000) as well as misstatements bejlow those amounts that, in our view, warranted
reparting for qualitative reasons.

Conclusions relating to going concern
We have nothing Lo report in respect of the following matters in relation to which iSAs (UK) require us to report Lo you where:

» the Directors’ use of the going concern basis of accounting in the preparation of the financial statements is not appropriate; or

= the Oirectars have notdisclosed in the financial statements any identified material uncertainties that may cast significant doubt about the
Group's and Parent Company’s ability to continue to adopt the going concern basis of accounting for a period of at least twelve months from
the date when the financial statements are autherised for issue.

However, because not all future events or conditions can be predicted, this statement is not & guarantee as to the Group's and Parent Company’s
ability to continue as a going concern.

Reporting on other information

The other infermation comprises ail of the information in the Annuat Reporl other than the financial statements ang our audilors' report thereon.
The Oirectors are responsible for the other information. Our opinian on the financial slatements does not cover the other information and,
accordingly, we do not express an audit opinion or, except to Lthe extent otherwise explicitly stated in this report, any form of assurance thereon.

In connection with our audit of the financial staternents. our responsibility is to read the other information and, in doing so. censider whether
the other information is materially inconsistent with the financial statements or our knowledge obtained in the audit, or ctherwise appears ta
be materially misstated. if we identity an apparent material incensistency or material misstatement, we are required to perform procedures to
conclude whether there is a material misstaternent of the financial statements or a material misstatement of the other informat:on. If, based
on the work we have performed, we conclude that there is a material misstatement of this other infermation, we are required to report that
fact. We have nothing o report based on these responsibiities.

With respect 10 the Strategic Report and Directors’ Report, we also considered whether the disclosures required by the UK Companies Act 2008
have been included,

Based on the responsibilities described sbove and our work undertaken in the course of the audit, ISAs {UK) reguire us alsa to report certain
apinions and matters as described below,

NWF Group plc
awt coab 4 5

e —

SIUaLUaIR]s (IoURILY |



Financia! statements

Independent auditors’ report continued
to the members of NWF Group plc

Report on the audit of the financial statements continued

Reporting on other information continued

Strategic Report and Directors’ Report

In our opinion, based on the work undertaken in the course of the audit, the information given in the Strategic Report and Directors’ Report for
the year endad 31 May 2020 is consistent with Lhe financial statements and has been prepared in accordance with apphcable legal requirements.

in fight of the krowledge and understanding of the Group and Parent Carmpany and their environment obtained in the course of the audit, we did
not identify any material misstatements in the Strategic Report and Directors’ Report.

Responsibilities for the financial statements and the audit

Responsibilities of the Oirectors for the financial statements

As explained more fully in the Statement of Dirgctors’ Responsibilities, the Directors are responsible for the preparation of the financial
statements in accordance with the applicable framework and for being satisfied that they give a true and fair view. The Directors are also
responsible for such internal control as they determine is necessary to enable the preparation of financial staternents that are free from
matertal misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

in preparing the financial statements, the Directors are responsible for assessing the Group's and the Parent Company’s ability to continue as
agoing concern, disclosing. as applicable, matlers related to going concern and using the going concern basis of accounting unless the
Directors either intend to liquidate the Group or the Parent Company or Lo cease operations, or have no realistic alternative but to do so.

Auditors’ responsibiiities for the qudit of the financial statements

Cur objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements as a whole are free from material misstatement,
whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditors report that includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance Is a high level of assurance,

hut is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with ISAs (UK} wilt always detect a material misstatement when it exists.
Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are considered material if, individually of in the aggregate, they could reasanably be expected
to influence the economic decisions of users taken on the basis of these financial statements.

A further description of our responsibilities for the audit of the financial statements is located on the FRC's website at: www.fre.org.uk/
auditorsresponsibilities. This description forms part of our auditors report.

Use of this report

This report, including the opinions. has been prepared for and only for the Parent Company’s members as a body in accordance with Chapter 3
of Part 16 of the Companies Act 2008 and for no other purpose. We do not, in giving these opinions, accept or assume responsibility for any
other purpose or Lo any other person to whom this repart is shown or into whose hands it rray come save where expressly agreed by our prior
consent in writing.

Qther required reporting
Companies Act 2006 exception reporting
Unger the Companies Act 2006 we are required to report to you if, in our opinion:

« we have not received all the information and explanations we require for our audit; or

= adeguate accounting records have not been kept by the parent company, or returns adeguate for our audit have not been received from
branches not visited by us: or

» certain disclosures of Directors remuneration specified by law arc not made; or

= the Parent Company financial statements are not in agreement with the accounting records anrd returns.

We have no exceptions to report arising from this responsibility.

Jortan Stdlyolome

Jonathan Studhoime {Senior Statutory Auditor)
for and on behaif of PricewaterhouseCoopers LLP
Chartered Accountants and Statutory Auditors
Manchester

4 August 2020
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Consolidated income statement
for the year ended 31 May 2020

2020 2m3
Nowe Em Ern
Revenue 3.4 6875 671.3
Cost of sales {646.2) (640.4)
Gross profit 4.3 30.9
Administrative expenses (27.8) {21.3}
Headline aperating profit’ 4.3 10.2
Cxceptional items 5 (0.5) (0.5])
Amartisation of acquired intangibles 14 (0.3) 10.1)
Operating profit’® 4 13.5 9.6
Finance costs 7 (1.5) (0.9}
Headline profit before taxation' 13.2 9.7
Net finance costin respect of the defined benefit pension scheme (0.4) (0.4)
fxceptional items 5 {0.5) {0.5}
Amortisation of acquired intangibles 14 {0.3) (0.7}
Profit before taxation® 5 12.0 8.7
income tax expense® 8 (3.1 (1.9}
Profit for the year attributable to equity shareholders 8.9 6.8
Earnings per share {pence}
Basic 10 18.2 13.9
Diluted 10 18.1 13.9
Headline earnings per share (pence}
Basic 10 20.5 15.8
Diluted 10 20.3 15.8

1 teadline operating profitis statutary operating profit of £13.5 milion{2019: £3.6 miilion) before exceptional items of £U.5 million (Z0153: £0.5 mition)and amrortisation of
acquired intang otes of £0.3 mdlon (2019: £0.1 milhon). Headhne profit before taxatior 18 statetory profit before taxation of £12.0 milion {2019 £8.7 million) after adding back

*he net finance cost inrespect of the Group's defined benefit pension scheme of £8.4 miifion (2013 £0.4 nulion). the exceptional items and amortisatior: of acquired
intangibles. Headline earnings per sharc a'so take inta account the taxation effect thercon.

2 Taxabon or cxeepttonal iterns in the current year has reduced the charge by fNIHZ0M: FD.T mallion)

I Dunirgthe year ended 31 May 2020 the appiicauon of IFRS 16 resulted in an increase sn operaung prati in Lhe consohdated income siatecent of £0.2 milion in comparison to
treatrrent under AR 14, as operating Iease payments under IAS 17 were replaced by a depreciation charge on right of use assots. Protit betore taxation reduced by £1.2 moilion

with the mclusion of C0_4 milhon of (nance costs ander the new standard.

The results relate to continuing operations.

The notes on pages 57 1o 82 form part of Lhese Group financial statements.

NWF Group ple
rwf coe

47

SlUallajnls IDIDUBUL



Financial statements

Consolidated statement of comprehensive income
for the year ended 31 May 2020

2020 2008

Note £m £

Profit far the year attributable to equity shareholders 89 B.B
items that will never be reclassified to profit or loss:

Remeasurement loss on defined benefit pension scheme 24 {4.0) {1.2)

Tax onitems that will never be reclassified to profit orioss 22 1.1 0.2

Total other comprehensive expense (2.9) (1.0}

Total comprehensive income for the year 6.0 5.8

The notes on pages 52 to 82 form part of these Group financial statements.
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Consolidated baiance sheet

as at 31 May 2020
2019
2020  (Restated)
Note £m £m
Nomcurrent assets
Propersty. plant and equipment 12 485 45,5
Right of use assets 13 27.5 -
Intangibie assets 14 34 247
Ceferred incorne tax assets 22 4.4 3.1
1.8 73.3
Current assets
Inventories 5 4.7 5.6
Trade and other receivables 16 58.7 B7.2
Cash and cash equivalents 17 5.3 2.8
Derivative financial instruments 2 0.1 0.2
66.8 75.8
Total assets 178.4 148.1
Current Kabilities
Trade and other payables 18 {58.6) {65.7)
Current iIncome tax liabilities {0.9} (1.3}
Borrowings' 19 (1.2} (10.2}
Lease liabifities 20 {8.4) -
n.a (78.0)
Non-current liabilities
Borrowings' 19 (10.0} (3.0
Lease liabilities 20 {20.3) -
Deferred income tax tiabilities 22 {4.9) (3.7
Retiremnent benefit obligations 24 {(z1.0) {(17.3)
(56.2) [24.0}
Total liabitities 127.3) {102 0}
Net assets 511 47.1
Equity
Share capital 23 12.2 12.2
Share promiym 0.9 09
Retained earnings 380 340
Total equity 511 471

T £10.0 midion of invoice discouniirg advances, previousily recogrisea within nor curent iianhiltes, nave beecorected ang rec ass’ied 10 current Habriiies in the year enceo
31 May 209, Thig restaiement arises as the Group does no? have an: uncorditional ngnt 1o defer settiement ol these iablities for at leasi one year 4717 the talance steet

date, F1.7 millian of invoice ciscounting advances have been recognised wathins current liabilitrles it the year ended 33 May ?020(see note 191

The Group financial statements on pages 47 to 5! were approved by the Board of Directors on 4 August 2020 and were signed on its behalf by:

S .13

R A Whiting Belsham
Director Director

The notes on pages 52 to 82 form part of these Group financial statements.

Registered number
02264971
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Financiai statements

Consolidated statement of changes in equity
for the year ended 31 May 2020

Shate Share Hethinen TntE
capaa premium earrings I

£m Fm £rn £m
Balance at 1.June 2018 12.2 0.8 313 L4.4
Profit for the year - - g8 B.B
ftems that will never be reclassified to profit or loss:
Actuariatioss on defined benefit pension scheme{note 24) - — (1.2} {1.2)
Tax onitems that will never be reclassified to profit or loss{note 22) - — a2 0.2
Total other comprehensive expense - - (1.0} 1.0}
Total comprehensive income for the year - - 528 5.8
Transactions with owners:
Dividends paid(note 9) — - (3.1) {3.1)
Value of employee services - - {0.1) 10.1)
Credit to equity for equity-settled share-based payments — - 0.1 0.1
Totaltransactions with ownors - - (3.1} {3.1)
Balance at 31 May 2019 12.2 0.9 34.0 471
Profit for the year - - B.9 B.9
ltems that will never be reclassified to profit or loss:
Actuarialioss on defined henefit pension scheme [nate 24) - - {4.0) {4.0)
Tax on items that will never be reclassified to prafit or loss (note 22) - - 1.1 1.1
Total other comprebensive expense - - (2.9} {2.9)
Total comprehensive income for the year - - 6.0 8.0
Transactions with owners:
Dividends paid(note 4} - - (3.2) {3.2)
Credit to equity for equity-settled share-based payments - - 12 1.2
Total transactions with owners - - (2.0) (2.0)
Balance at 31 May 2020 12,2 0.9 38.0 511

The notes on pages 52 to 82 form part of Lhese Group financial statements.
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Consolidated cash flow statement
for the year ended 31 May 2020

2020 iRk
Note £m I
Net cash generated from operating activities 26 21.7 b4
Cash flows used in investing activities
Purchase of intangible assets 14 {0.4) {0.2)
Purchase of praperty, plant and equipment 12 (5.7} {2.8)
Acquisition of subsidiaries - casn paid (net of cash acquired) 1 (6.0} 3.5)
Capitalised legal costs associated with acquired leases (0.3) -
Payment of contingent deferred consideration - (0.8)
Proceeds an sale of property, plant and equipment 0.4 0.2
Net cash used in investing activities {12.0} {7.1)
Cash flows from financing activities
Increase in bank borrowings 1.6 6.2
Capital element of finance leases (5.6} (e
Dividends paid 9 (3.2) (3.1}
Net cash (used in)/generated from financing activities {7.2} 3.0
Net increase in cash and cash equivalents 27 25 2.3
Cash and cash eguivalents at beginning of year 27 28 0.5
Cash and cash equivalents at end of year 27 5.3 2.8

The notes on pages 52 to B2 form part of these Group financial statements.
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Financial statements

Notes to the Group financial statements
for the year ended 31 May 2020

1. General information

NWF Group plc{the Company)is a public limited cornpany incorparated and domiciied in Engiand, United Kingdom, under the Compan:es
Act 2008. The principal activities of NWF Group pic and its subsidiaries (together the Groupare the sale and distribution of fuel oils, tne
warehousing and distribution of ambient groceries and the manufacture and sale of animal feeds. Further information on the nature of the
Groups operations and principal activities is set out In nate 4 of the Greup financial statements.

The address of the Company's registered office is NWF Group plc, Wardle, Nantwich, Cheshire CW5 BBP. The Company has its primary listing
on AIM, part of the London Stock Exchange.

The: Group financial statements were authorised for issue by the Board of Dircctors on 4 August 2020.

2. Significant accounting policies
The Group's principal accounting policies are set out below. IFRS 16 is effective from 1 Junc 2019,

Basis of preparation

The Broup financial statements have been prepared in accordance with International Financial Reporting Standards as endorsed by the
Furopean Union{IFRSY, IFRS Interpretations Committee [t1FRS ICY nterpretations and those provisions of the Companies Act 2006 apoplicable
to companies reporting under IFRS. The Group financial statements have bieen prepared on the going concern basis and on the histor'cal cost
convention modified for the revaluation of certain financial instruments.

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with IFRS reguires the use of certain critical accounting estimates, which are outiined in
the critical accounting estimates and judgements section of these accounting policies. It also requires management to exercise its judgement
inthe process of applying the Group's accounting policies.

Going concern

Based on financial performance to date and forecasts along with the available banking facilities, there is a reasonable expectation that the
Group has adequate resources to cantinue in operational existence for the foreseeable future. The Group therefore continues to adopt the
qeing concern basis of accounting in preparing the annual financiat statements.

The Board has prepared cash flow forecasts for the period to 31 May 2022. Under this base case scenario, the Group is expected to continue to
have very significant headroom relative to the funding available to it and to comply with 1ts banking covenants.

The Board has also considered various other severe downside scenarios, inctuding the possibility of a second lockdown as a resuit of a second
wave of Covid-18. These downside scenarios excluded any mitigating actions that the Board would be able to take to reduce costs, Under these
scenarios, the Group would still expect to have sufficient headroom in its financing facitities.

The Group therefore continues to adopt the going concern basis of accounting in preparing the annual financial statements.

Headline operating profit, headline profit before taxation. headline EBITDA and headline earnings
The Directars consider that headline operating profit, headline profit before taxation, headiine EBIT DA and headiine earnings per share
measures, referred to inthese Group financial statements, provide useful information for shareholders on underlying trends and performance.

Headline operating profit is reported operating profit after adding back exceptional items and amortisation of acquired intangibles.

Headfine profit before taxation is reported profit before taxation after adding back the net finance cost in respect of the Group’s defined
benefit pension scheme, exceptional items and amortisation of acquired intangibles, to show the underlying performance of the Group.

Headline EBITDA refers to reported operating profit after adding back exceptional items and amaortisation of acquired intangibies. The headline
ERBITDA calculation excludes the Tmpact of IFRS 16 depreciation.

The calculations of basic and diluted headline earnings per share are shown in nete 10 of the Group financial statements.

Adoption of new and revised standards
The following new standards, amendments to standards or interpretations are mandatory for the first time for the financial year beginning 1 June 2019.

The Group has adopted the following now standards, amendments and interpretations now applicable. Other than the adoption of IFRS 16,
detailed in note 32, these standards did not have a material effect on the Group's results or net assers.

Applcable for financial year

Siandard or nterpretation Content beginning an
IFRIC 23 Uncertainty over income Tax Treatments 1 June 219
Amendment to IFRS 3 Business Combinations 1 June 2078
Amendment to 1AS 12 Income Taxes iJune 2018
Amendment to 1A5 23 Borrowing Costs 1dune 2018
Amendment to 1AS 19 Employee Benefits 1June 2019
Amendment to IFRS 3 Financial Instruments I June 2019
IFRS 16 Leases TJune 2019

The following standards, amendments and interpretations are not yet effective and have nat been adopted early by the Group:

Apnticable for financial year
S:andard or interpretation Sontert beginning on

Amendment o iFRS 3 Busginess Combinations 1oune 2020

5 2 NWF Group plc
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2, Significant accounting policies continued

Consolidation

The Greup financial statements incorporate the financial statements of NWF Group pic {the Company’) and entities controlled by the Company
(its 'subsidiaries’)rade up to 31 May each year. Cantrol is achieved where the Company has the power to govern the financial and operating
policies of aninvestee entity s0 a5 Lo obtain benefils from its activities.

Subsidiaries are fully consolidated from the date on which controi is transferred to the Group. They are de-consoiidated from the date that
control ceases,

“he acguisition of subsidiaries is accounted for using the acguisition method. The consideration transferred for the acquisition of a subsidiary
is the fair value of the assets transferred, the liabilities incurred and the equity interests issued by the Company. The consideration transferred
includes the fair value of any asset or lability resuiting from a contingent consideration arrangement. Acquisition-related costs are expensed
as incurred, ldentifiable assets acquired and liabilities and contingent liabilities assumed in a business combination are measured initially at
their fair values at the acquisition date. On an acquisition-by-acquisition basis. the Group recognises any non-controlling interest in the
acquiree either at fair value or at the nen-contrelling interest's proporticnate share of the acquiree’s net assets.

The excess of the consideration transferred, the amount of any non-controiling interest in the acguiree and the acquisition date fair vaiua
of any previous equily interest in the acquiree aver the fair value of the Group’s share of the identifiable net assets acquired is recorded as
goodwiil. If this is less than the fair value of the net assets of the subsidiary acquired in the case of a bargain purchase, the difference is
recognised directly in the income statement.

Intercompany transactions, balances and unrealised gains on transactions between Group companies are eliminated. Unrealised losses are
also eliminated. Accounting policies of subsidiaries have been changed where necessary to ensure consistency with the policies adopted by
the Group.

It the initial accounting for a business combination is incomplete by the end of the first reporting period in which the combination occurs,
the Group reports provisional amounts for the items for which the accounting is incomptete. Those provisional amounts are adjusted during
the rmeasurement period (see below), or additional assets or liabilities are recognised, to reflect new information obtained about facts and
circumstances that existed at the date of acquisition that, If known, would have sffected the amounts recognised as of that date.

The measurement peried is the period from the date of acquisition to the date the Group obtains complete information about facts and
circumstances that existed at the date of acquisition, and is subject to a maximum of one year,

Revenue recognition

Revenue comprises the fair value of the consideration received or receivable for the sale of goods and services in the ordinary course of the
Group’'s activities. Revenue is shown net of value added tax, estimated returns, rebates and discounts, and after efiminating sales within the
Group. Accumulated experience is used to estimate and provide for these items, using the expected value method, and revenue is only
recognised to the extent that it is highly probabie that a significant reversal will not occur.

The Group does not expect to have any contracts where the period between {ransfer of the promised goods or services to the customer and
payment by the customer exceads one year. As a consequence, the Group does not adjust any of the transaction prices for the time value of money.

Specific types of revenue are recognised as follows:

Fuels and Feeds

Revenue from the sate of goods in each of these segments s recognised when they are delivered to the customer and the performance
obligations have been met: that is, the products are delivered to the specific location, the risk of loss has been transferred and the Group has
objective evidence that all criteria for acceptance have been satisfied.

Areceivable is recognised when the goads are delivered, since thisis the point in time thal the consideration is unconditional because only
the passage of time is reguired before the payment is due. Revenue from sale of fuels includes fuel duty.

Food

Fevenue from storage, handling and re-packaging of customers’ products is recognised when the relevant service has been performed and
the performance obligations have been met. For distribution revenue performance obligations are met when the customers products arrive
at the destination.

Revenue is recognised in the amount to which the Group has a right to invoice. Customers are invoiced on a daily, weekly or monthly basis and
consideration is payable when invoiced. A receivable isrecognised when the services are provided, since this is the point in time that the
consideration is unconditional because only the passage of time is required before the payment is due.

Interest income
Interest income 1s recognised on a time proportion basis using the effective interest rate method.

Segment reporting

Abusiness segment is a group of assets and operations engaged in providing products or services that are subject to risks and returns that are
different from those of other business segments, A geographical segment is engaged in providing products and services within a particular
economic environment that are subject to risks and returns which are different from those of segments operating in other economic
environments. Segment reporting information is shown in note 4 of the Group financial statements.

NWF Group pic 5 3
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Financial statements

Notes to the Group financial statements continued
for the yedr ended 31 May 2020

2. Significant accounting policies continued

Taxation

The income tax expense represents the sum of current and deferred incame tax. Taxis recognised in the income statement, except (0 the
extent that it relates to items recagnised in other comprehensive income or directly in equity. In this case the taxis also recognised in other
comgrehensive income or directly in equity, respectively.

Current income tax is based on taxable profits for the year. Taxable profit ditfers from profit as reported in the income statement because it excludes
items of income and expense that are taxable or deductible in other years and it further exciudes items that are never taxable or deductible.
The Group's liability for current tax is calculated using tax rates that have been cnacted or substantively enacted by the balance sheet date.

Deferred income tax is provided in full, using the fiability method. on temporary differences arising beiween the tax bases of assets and
liabitities and their carrying amounts in the Group financial statements. Howeover, deferred income tax is not accounted for if it arises from
iritial recognition of an asset or liability in a transaction other than a business combination that at the time of the transaction affects neither
accounting nor taxable profits or losses.

Deferred income tax is determined using tax rates(and laws) that have been enacted or substantively enacted by the balance sheet date and are
expected to apply when the related deferred income tax asset is realised or the deferred income tax liabitity is settled.

Deferred income tax assets are recognised to the extent that it is probable that future taxable profits will be available against which the
temporary differences can be utilised.

Borrowing costs

Borrowing costs that are directly attributable to the construction of qualifying assets. which are assets that necessarily take a substantial period
of time to get ready for their intended use, are added to the cost of those assets, until such time as the assets are substantially ready for their
intended use.

All ather borrowing costs are recognised n the income statement in the periad in which they are incurred.

Dividend distribution
The distribution of a dividend to the Company’s sharehoiders is recognised in the Group's financial statements in the peried in which it is
approved by the Company’s shareholders.

Property, plant and equipment
Ali property, plant and equipment is stated at histerical cost less sccumulated depreciation. Historical cost includes expengiture that is directly
related to the acquisition of the items.

Subsequent costs are included in the asset's carrying amount, or recognised as a separate asset, as appropriate, anty when it is probable that
future economic benefits associated with the asset will flow to the Group, and the cost of the asset can be measured reliably. All other repairs
and maintepance expenditure is charged to the income statement during the financial pericd in which it s incurred.

Land is not depreciated. Depreciation on other assets is calculated, using the straight-line method, to reduce their cost to their residual values
over their useful economic lives, as follows:

Freehold and long leaserold buitdings 10 - 50 years
Pilant and machinery 3-10years
Cars and comrmercial vehicles 4 -Byears

Residual values and useful lives are reviewed, and adjusted if appropriate, at each balance sheet date. An assel's carrying amount is written
down immediately to its estimated recoverable amount, if the asset's carrying amount s greater than its estimated recoverable amournt.

Gains and lnsses on disposat are determined by comparing the proceeds of disposal with the carrying value and are recognised in the
income statement.

Right of use assets and lease liabilities

As at 1 Jung 2019 the Group adopted 1FR316°_eases for the first time. IFRS 18 replaces |1AS 17 Leases. Under IEFRS 18 a night of use assat and
lease liability are recognised for all leases except 'low value’ and short-term’ leases where lease payments are recognised on a straight-line
basis over the lease term. For the Group, transition results in the recognition of almost alt leases on the balance sheet as a nght of use asset,
with a corresponding lease liability.

Atthe inception of a contract, the Group performs an assessment to determine whether the contract is, or contains, a lease. Key aspects of
this determination are the specific identification of an asset that is subject to the lease, and that the lease conveys the right to direct and
control the use of the identified asset for a peried of time.

Where a contract is determined to contain a lease, the lease liability is recegnised from the commencement date of the lease, the
commencement dale being defined as the date at which the lessor makes the underlying assel availabie for use. The lease liability is
recognised al an amounl equal to the present value of the future iease payments during the lease term.

Lease payments are discounted using the Groups incremental borrowing rate, since the interest rate imgplicit in the Group's leases is not
readily determinable.

After the commencement date, lcase payments are allocated between the outstanding leasc liability on the balance sheet and finance costs.
Finance costs are charged to the income statement over the lease period using the effective interest method.

Aright of use asset is initially recognised at the commencement date and measured at cost, which comprises the amount of the nitial
measurement of the lease liability, any lease payments made at or before the commencement date. any initial direct costs incurred by the
Group and an estimate of any cost for dismantling or restoring the asset at the end of the lease term.

54 NWF Group plc
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2. Significant accounting policies continued

Right of use assets and lease liabilities continued

The right of use asset is subsequently depreciated in accordance with the depreciation requirements in IAS 16 Property, Plant and Equipment’
which results in depreciation on a straight-line basis over the sharler of the asset’s useful life and the lease term. The Group also applies IAS 36
Impairment of Assets to deterrmine whether the right of use asset 1s impaired and to account for any impairment loss identified.

Remeasurement of the lease liability occurs if, after the commeancement date. there is a change in future lease payments or a change in the
iease term. Any remeasurement of the lease liability results in a carresponding adjustment of the right of use asset. If the carrying amount
of the right of use asset has already been reduced 1o zero. the remaining remeasurement is recognised in the income statement. The Group
remeasures the tease Hability to reflect those revised lease payments only when there is a change in the cash flows. using anunchanged
discount rate.Reassessment of leases in the Group occurs where lease consideration changes due to a market rent review clause or where
there are changes to variable lease payments dependent on an index or rate.

Alease modification arises where there is a change in scope of the lease, or the consideration for the lease, which was not part of the original
terms and conditions of the ease. In the event of alease modification, the Group accounts for this as a separate lease, providing the todification
increases the scope of the lease by adding the right to use cne or mere underlying assets and the consideration for the lease increases by an
amount commensurate with the stand-alone price for the increase in scope and any appropriate adjustments to that stand-alone price, to
reflect the circurnstances of the particuiar contract.

The Group elected to apply the simplified transition approach and as such the comparative information for the year ended 31 May 20749 has not
heenrestated and is presented as previously reported, under IAS 17,

Under [AS 17 Leases’ a significant proportion of the risks and rewards of ownership are retained by the lesso- and are classified as operating
leases. Payments made urder operating leases(net of any incentive received fraom the lessor}are charged to the incorne statement on a
straight-fine basis over the period of the lease.

Assets and liabilities under finance leases and hire purchase agreements are recognised in the balance sheet at the inception of the agreement
at amounts equal to their fair value or, if lower, the net present value of the minimum payments under the agreement. Depreciation on hire
purchase and leascd assets is provided at rates consistent with that for similar assets that are owned by the Group or over the term of the
lease, where shorter than the useful economic life.

Subsequent toinitial recognition, payments made are apportioned between the finance charge element and the reduction in the capital value
of the putstanding liabitity. The finance charge is allocated to each peried so as to produce a constant periodic rate of interest on the remaining
balance of the liabilily.

Dbligations under finance lease arrangements have been transferred from borrowings to be disciosed within lease liabilities following the
adoption of IFRS 8.

Assets financed by leasing or hire purchase arrangements, and which have an outstanding liability. have been transferred from property,
plant and equipment to be disclosed within right of usc assets foilowing the adoption of IFRS 16,

Note 32 details on the impact of IFRS 16°Leases’ on the cansolidated balance sheet at T June 2018.

Intangible assets
Goodwill |
Goondwill represents the excess of the cost of an acquisition over the fair vaiue of the Groug's share of the identifiable net assets of the
acquired subsidiary at the date of acquisition.

Goodwill on acguisitions of subsidiaries is included within intangible assets. Goodwill is lested annually for impairment and carried at cosl
less accumulated impairment losses. Impairment losses on geadwitl are recognised immediately in the income statement and are not
subsequently reversed. Gains and losses on the disposal of an entity include the carrying amount of goodwill refating Lo the entity sold.

Goodwill is allocated to each of the Group's cash-generating units for the purpose of impairment testing. The allocation is made to those
cash-generating units or groups of cash-generating units that are expected to benefit from the business combination in which they arase,
identified according to operating segment.

S1UOLURIN]S [OIdUDUI4 ‘

Brands

Separately acquired brands are shawn at historical cost less accumulated amortisation. Brands acquired in & business combpination are
rccognised at fair value at the date of acquisition. Brands have a finite usefui life and are carried at cost less accumulated arnortisation and
represent an acquired intangible asset. Amortisation is calculated, using the straight-line method, to allocate the cost of brands over their
estimated useful lives of ten years.

Customer relotionships

Separately acquired customer relationships are shown at historical cost less accumulated amortisation. Customer relationships acquired i
abusiness combination are recognised at fair value at the date of acquisition. Customer relationships have a finite useful life and are carried
at cost less accumulated amortisation and represent an acquired intangible asset. Amaortisation is calculated, using the straight-line method,
Lo ailocate the cost of these assets over their estimated useful lives of ten years.

Computer scftware

Cuosts associated with maintaining computer software programs are recognised as an expense as incurred. Costs incurred tec acquire computer
software licences and directly attributable costs incurred to bring the software into use are capitahised. Directly atiributable costs include
software development employee costs. Capitalised computer software costs are amortised over their estimated useful {ives on a straight-line
basis (three to seven years).

NWF Group plc
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Financial statements

Notes to the Group financial statements continued
for the year ended 31 May 2020

2. Significant accounting policies continued

Impairment of non-financial assets

Assets that have an indefinite useful life, for example goodwitl, are not subject to amortisation and are tested annually for impairmeant. Assets
thal are subject to amortisation or depreciation are reviewed for impairment whenever events or changes in circumstances indicate that the
carrying amount may not be recoverable. Animpairment ioss is recognised as the amount by which the assel’s carrying amount exceeds the
recoverable amount. The recoverable amaunt is the higher of the asset’s fair valae less costs to sell and its value in use. Non-financial assets.
ather than goodwill, that suffer an impairment are reviewed for possibie reversal of the impairment at each reporting date.

Inventories

Inventories are stated at the lower of cost and net realisable value. Cost is determined using the first in, first out (FIFQtmethod. The cost
of raw materials, consumables, finished goods and goods for resale camprises purchase cost and, in the case of finished goods. the cost
of transporting the goods to their stock iocation,

Net realisable value comprises the estimated selling price in the ordinary course of business less applicable variable selling expenses, Provision
is made for obsolete, slow-moving or defective items where appropriate.

Trade and other receivables

Trade receivabies are recognised initially at fair value and subsequenlly measured at amortised cosl using the effective interest method, less
provision for )mpairment. Under IFRS 9, the Group eiected to use the simplified approach to measure the loss allowance at an amount equal
to lifetime expecied credit iosses for trade recejvables. Under the accounting standard. the Group continues to establish a provision for
impairment of trade receivables when there is abjective evidence that the Group will not be able to collect all amounts due according te the
original terms of the receivables. Significant financial difficulties of the counterparty, probability that the counterparty will enter bankuptcy
or financial reorgarisation, and default or detinguency in payments are considered indicators that the trade receivable 1 impaired.

In addition, IFRS S reguires the Group to consider forward-looking inforrmation ang the probability of default when calculating expected credit
losses. The measurement of expected credit losses reflects an unbiased and prohability weighted amount that is determined by evaluating the
range of possible outcomes as well as incorporating the time value of money. The Group considers reasonable and supportable customer-specific
and markel information about past events, current conditions and forecasts of future economic conditions when rigasuring expected credit losses.

The amount of the prevision is the difference between the carrying amount and the present value of estimated future cash flows of the asset,
discounted, where material, at the original effective interest rate. The carrying amount of the asset is reduced through the use of a provision
for receivables impairment, and the amount of the loss is recognised in the income statement within administrative expenses. When a trade
recevable Is uncollectable, it is written off against the provision for receivables impairment. Subseguent recoveries of amounts previously
written off are credited against administrative expenses in the income statement.

Derivative financial instruments and hedging activities
A derjvative is initially recogniscd at fair value on the date that the associated contract is entered into and then is remeasured at fair vaiue
at cach subsequent balance sheet date.

The method of recognising the resulting gain or loss depends on whether or not the derivative is designated as a hedging instrument and,
if so. the nature of the item being hedged. During the current and prior year, none of the Group's derivative financial instruments have been
designated as effective hedges. Changes in the fair value of derivative financial instruments that do not qualify for hedge accounting are
recognised in the income statement as they arise.

Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents include cash in hangd, deposits held at call with banks ang bank overdrafts. The Group recognises cash when it is
within in its control. Cash in transit between Group companies at a period end is recognised within the receiving cormpany’s balance sheet. Cash
intransit to or from external entities at a pericd end is not recognised where the Group does not exercise control over it. Bank overdrafts are
shown within borrowings in current liabilities on the balance sheet,

Trade and other payables
Trade and other payables are recognised initially st fair value and subsequently measured at amortised cost using the effective
interest method.

Exceptional items

The Groug's income statement separately identifies exceptionat items. Such items are those that, in the Directors’ judgement, are one-off
innature or non-cperating and need to be disciosed separatety by virtue of their size or incidence and may include, but are not limited to,
restructuring costs, acquisition-related costs, costs of implementing new systems and income from legal settlements. In determining whether
an iterm should be disclosed as an exceptional item, the Directors consider quantitative as well as qualitative factors such as the frequency,
predictability of occurrence and significance. This is consistent with the way financial performance is measured by management and reported
to the Board. Disciosing exceptional items separately provides additional understanding of the performance of the Group.

Banhk borrowings

Borrowings are recognised initially at fair value, net of transaction costs incurred. Borrowings are subsequently stated at amortised cost.
Any difference between the proceeds{net of transaction cests)and the redemption value is recagnised in the income statement over the
period of the barrowings, using the effective interest method.

Borrowings are classified as current liabilities unless the Group has an unconditional right ta defer settlement of the liability for at lcast one
year after the balance sheet date.
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2. Significant accounting policies continued
Retirement benefit costs
The Group operates varigus pension schemes, including defined contribuiion and defined benefit schemes.

For defined contribution schemes, the Group pays contributions to publicly or privately administered pensian insurance schemes an
a mandatory, contractual or veluntary basis. The contributions are recognised as an employee benefit expense in the income statement
when they are due. The assets of the schemes are held separately from those of the Group in funds under the control of trustees.

"he liabiity recognised in the balance sheetin respect of defined benefit schemes i1s the present value of the defined benefit abligation at the balance
sheet date less the fair value of scheme assets, together with adjustments for unrecognised actuariat gains or losses and past service costs. The aefined
benefit obligation is calculated annually by independent actuaries using the Projected Unit Credit Method. The present value of the defined benefit
obligation is determined by discounting the estimated future cash outflows using interest rates of high quality corporate bonds that are denominated

in the currency inwhich the benefits will be paid and that have terms to maturity approximating to the terms of the related pension liability.

The net pensian finance cost is determined by applying the discount rate, used to measure the defined benefit pension obligation at the
beginning of the accounting period, to the net pension obligation at the beginning of the accounting pericd taking into account any changes
inthe net pension obligation during the period as a resuit of cash contributions and benefit payments.

Pension scheme expenses are charged 1o the income statement within administrative expenses.

Actuarial gains and losses are recognised immediately in Lhe statement of camprehensive income. Nel defined benefit pension scheme
deficits before tax relief are presented separately on the balance sheet within non-current liakilities. The attributable deferred income tax
asset is included within the deferred income tax asset in the baliance sheet and is subject to the recognition criteria as set out in the accaunting
policy on deferred income tax.

Share-hased payments
In the year ended 31 May 2020, the Group operated one {2019: one} equity-settled share-based payment plan, details of which can be found
in note 25 of the Group financial statements.

The fair vaiue of the employec services recefved in exchange for the grant of sharc awards is recognised as an cxpense. Equity-settled
share-based payments are measured at falr value {exciuding the effect of non-market-based vesting conditions) at the date of grant. The fair
value determined at the grant date of the equity-settled share-based payments is expensed on a straight-iine basis over the vesting period.
based on the Group's estimate of shares that will eventually vest and adjusted for the effect of non-market-based vesting condit'ons.

Fair value 1s measured by the use of a Black Scholes model. The expected life used in the model has been adjusted, based on managements
best estimate, for the effects of non-transferability, exercise restrictions and behavioural considerations.

Employer social security contributions payable in connection with the grant of share awards is considered an integral part of the grant itself
and the charge is treated as a cash-settled transaction.

Provisions
Provisions are recognised when the Group has a present legal or constructive obligation as a resuit of past events, it is probable that an outflow of
resources witl be required to settle the obligation and the amount has beon reliably estimated. Provisions are not recognised for future operating lnsses.

Share capital
Ordinary shares are classified as equity. Incremental costs directly attributable to the issue of new shares are shown in equity as a deduction,
net of tax, from the proceeds of issue.

Critical accounting estimates and judgements

The Group makes estimates and assumptfons concerning the future. The resulting accounting estimates will, by detinition, setdom egual the
related actual results. The assumptions that have a significant risk of causing a material adjustment to the carrying amounts of assets and
liahifities within the next financial year are discussed below.

Defined benefit pension scheme - valuation assumptions

The balance shoet carrying volues of defined benefit pension scheme surpluses or deficits are calculated using independently commissioned
actuariat valuations. These valuations, including the impact of GMP, are based on a number of assumptions, including the mast appropriate
maortality rates to apply ta the profile of scheme members and the financial assumptions regarding discount rates and inflation. Ali of these
are cstimates of future events and arc therefore uncertain. Further details can be found in note 24 of the Group financial statements.

Vatuation of acquired intangibles

IFRS 3 reguires separately identifiable intangible assets to be recognised on acguisitions. The principal estimates used in valuing these
intangibles are generally based on the future cash flow forecast to be generated by these assets, and the selection of appropriate discount
rates o apply 1o the cash flows.

A1% increase in the discount rale appiied to the future eash flows would reduce the value attributable to acquired intangibies by £0.7 million.

Assessment of impairment
The Croup tesls annually for impairment of goodwill and fixed asset balances, which involves using key judgements including estimates of
future business performance and cash generation, discount ratcs and long-term growth rates.

The recoverable amounts of CGUs are determined using value in use calculations. 1he value in use calculations use post-tax casn flow
projections based on the Board-approved budget for the year ending 31 May 2021 and four years of divisional strategic plans thereafter.
Subsequent cash flows are extrapolated using an estimated growth rate of 2%.

These value in use calculations are subject to a series of sensitivity analyses using reascnable assumptions concerning the future performance
of the CGUs and assessing the impact of a 1% increase in the discount rate. None of these reasonable downside sccnarios would resultin
an impairment.
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Financial statements

Notes to the Group financial statements continued
for the year ended 31 May 2020

2. Significant accounting policies continued

Critical accounting estimates and judgements continued

Corrying voiue of trgde receivables

The Group holds material trade receivabie balances. and the calculations of provisions for impairment are estimates of future events and
therefore uncertain. IFRS 8 reguires the Group to consider forward-lgoking information and the probability of default when calculating
expected credit losses. The Group considers reasonable and supportable customer-specific and market information about past events,
current conditions and forecasts of future economic conditions when measuring expected credit losses.

3. Revenue
Ananalysis of the Group's revenue is as follows:

2020 2409

Em fra

Sale of goods 639.2 B23.4
Rendering of services 48.3 47.9
687.5 671.3

4, Segment information

the chief operating decision-maker has been identified as the Board of Directors (the Board']. The Board reviews the Group's internal reporting
in order to assess performance and allocate resources. The Board has determined that the operating segments, based on these reports, are
Fuels Food and Feeds.

The Board considers the business from a products/services perspective. In the Board's opinion, all of the Group’s operaticns are carried out
in the same geographical segment, namely the UK.

The nature of the products/services provided by the operating segrnents is summarised below:

Furls - sale and distribution of domaestic heating, industrial and road fuels
Foed - warehausing and distribution of clients’ambient grocery and other products to supermarket and other retail distribution centres
Feeds -  manufacture and sale of animal feeds and other agricultural products

Segment information about the above businesses is presented below.

I'he Board assesses the perfarmance of the operating seqrments based on a measure of operating profit{headline operating profit’). Finance
income and costs are not included in the segment result that is assessed by the Board. Other information provided to the Board is measured
ina manner consistent with that in the financial statements.

Inter-segment transactions are entered into under the ngrmal commercial terms and conditions that would also be availabie to unrelated third parties.

Segment assets exclude deferred income tax assets and cash at bapk and in hand. Segrment liabilities exclude taxation, borrowings and
retirement benetit abiigations. Excluded tems are part of the reconciliation to consclidated total assets and liabilities.

Fuels Food Feeds Group
2020 £m £m £m £m
Revenue
Total revenue 476.0 48.7 169.0 693.7
Intar-segment revenue (5.8) {0.4) - (6.2)
Revenue 470.2 48.3 169.0 687.5
Result
Headline operating profit n.o 1.4 1.8 14.3
Segment exceptional item{note 5) {0.5} - —_ {0.5)
Amortisation of acquired inlangidles {0.3) - - (0.3}
Operating profit as reporteg 135
Finance costsinote 7) (1.5)
Profit before taxation 12.0
Income tax expense {note 8) 3.1
Profit for the year 8.9
Other Information
Depreciation and amortisation 3.4 4.2 29 10.5
Fixed asset additions 0.8 3.1 18 5.7
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4. Segment information continued

Fueis Food Feeds Group
2020 £m Em £m £m
Balance sheet
Assets
Segment assets 66.2 48.2 54.3 168.7
Deferred income tax assets(note 22) 4.4
Gash at pank and in hand (note 17) 5.3
Consglidated total assets 176.4
Liabilities
Segment liabilities (45.4) {19.3) (18.6) (83.3)
Currant income tax liabilities {0.9)
Deferred income tax liabilities (note 22) (4.9)
Barrowings (note 19) (17.2)
Retirement benefit obligations{note 24) (21.0)
Consciidated totat liabilities (127.3)

ruels Food Feeds Grawp
2018 rm Em {m fm
Revenue
Total revenue 449.5 48,4 180.4 6578.3
Inter-segment revenue (8.5) (0.6} - 7.0}
Revenue 443.0 47.9 180.4 571.3
Result
Headline operating profit h.6 1.8 2.8 10.2
Segment exceptional item (note 5) {0.2) - - {0.2)
Group exceptional item (note 5) (0.3)
Amertisation of acquired intangibles o3} - - 0.1
Uperating profit as reported 9.5
Finance cests{nate 7) 10.9)
Profit betore taxation 8.7
Incorme tax expense (note 8) {1.9)
Prafit for the year 6.8
Other information
Nepreciation and amaortisation 1.4 16 1.7 4.7
Fixed asset additions 0.5 0.6 1.7 2.8
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Financial statements

Notes to the Group financial statements continued
for the year ended 31 May 2020

4. Segment information continued

Tuels Fooe Feeds Grovy
sy Em £ £m cm
Balance sheet
Assets
Segment assets 61.7 30.3 51.7 143.2
Ueferred income tax assets{note 22) kR
Cash at bank and in hand (note 17} 2.8
Consolidated total assets 149.1
Liabilities
Segment liabilities [46.4) (5.3) (15.0) {66.7)
Current income tax liabllities (1.1
Deferred income tax fiabilitics (note 22) 13.7)
Borrowings (note 19) 113.2)
Retirement benetit obligations{note 24) {17.3)
Consolidated total liabilities (102.0)
5. Profit before taxation
Profit before taxation is stated after charging/crediting):

2020 2018

€m £m

Cost of inventories recognised as an expense (included in cost of sales) 586.7 589.9
Depreciation of property, plant and equipment {note 12) 4.1 3.9
Depreciation of right of use assets (nate 13} 5.8 -
Amortisation of other intangible assets {note 14} 0.6 0.8
Profit on disposal of property, plant and equipment (0.2) {0.1)
Operating lease charges - land and buildings - 0.3
Cperating lease charges - ather - 42
Statt costs {note 6) 48.2 40.1
Exceptional items 0.5 0.5

Following Lhe sdoplion of IFRS 16 at T June 2019, the rmajority of operating lease costls are no longer recegnised within the consclidated incame
statement having been replaced by depreciation on right of use assets, Any remaining costs within Lhe consolidated income statement relate

1o low value and short-term icases which are exciuded from IFRS 16,

An exceptional cost of £0.6 million(2018: £0.5 million) is included in administrative expenses. Exceptional items by type are as follows:

2020 2019

£m frm

GMP equalisation - 0.3
Acquisition-related costs 0.5 0.2
Exceptional cost 0.5 0.5

BMP equalisation - On 26 October 2018, the High Court issued a judgement involving the Lioyds Banking Group defined benefit pension

schemes. The judgement concluded that the schermes should equalise pension benefits for men and women in relation to guaranteed minimum

pension{BMP)benefits. The judgement has implications for many defined benefit schemes, including the NWF Group Benefits Scheme.

We have worked with our actuarial advisors to understand the implications of the High Court judgement for the NWFE Group Benefits Scheme
and, as aresult, recarded 2 non-cash £0.3 million pre-tax exceptional expense in the year ended 31 May 2019 to reflect our best estimate of the

effect on our reported pension liabilities.

The change in penston liabilities recognised in relation to GMP equalisation involves estimation uncertainty. Whilst the financial statements

reflect the best estimate of the y/mpact on pensicn liabilities based on the information currently avaiiable, that estimate includes several
assumptions. The Directars will continue to monitor any further clarifications and consider the impact on pension liabilities accordingly.
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5. Profit betore taxation continued

The Directors have made the judgement that the estimated effect of GMP equalisation on the Group's pension Lhabilities 1s a past service
cost that shouid be reflected through the consolhidated income staterment and that any subseguent change in the estimate of that shouid be

recogmised in other comprehensive income. The judgement is based on the fact that the reported pension liabilities for the NWF Group

Benefits Scheme did not previously include any amount in respect of GMP equalisation.

Acquisition-related costs - The acquisition-related costs comprise professionar fees and other casts in relatian ta the three gequisitions

made during the year. Of the total cost, £0.5 million impacted cash in the year.

Services provided by the Company's auditors
During the year, the Group obtained the following services from the Company's auditors:

2020 2018

£000 £000
Fees payable to the Compary's auditors for the audit of the Company and consolidated annual financial statements 43 31
Fees payable to the Compary's auditors for other services:
- audit of the financiai statements of the Company’s subsidiaries pursuant to legislation 219 123
- non-audit assurance services 1 3
- tax compliance services 103 59
Total auditors remuneration 366 216
B. Staff costs
The average monthly number of persons (including Directors)employed in the Group during the year was:

2020 2018

Nuirber humber

Fuels 302 217
Food 621 580
Feeds 223 217
Head office 15 T4

1,361 1,078

Staff costs (including Directors}are outlined below. Directors' remuneration is also set out in the Remuneration Report, within the table entitled

Birectors' emoluments - augited information, on page 38.

2020 2010

£m {m

Wages and salaries 41.0 3b.2
Social security costs 4.3 3.7
Share-based payments{note 25) 1.2 0.1
Other pension costs(note 24) 1.7 1.1
48.2 40.1

in addition to the above slaff costs, the Group incurred ne termination costs (2019: £Ni). and £4.2 million (2019: £4.7 million)in respect of costs

of agency workers.

Other pension costs above are amounts charged to operating profit in respect of defined contribution and defined benefit pension schemes,

including £0.4 million of past service costs.

7.Finance costs
2020 019
£m m
Interest on bank loans and overdrafts 0.7 0.5
Finance costs on {ease liabilities relating to IFRS 16 0.4 -
Total interest expense 11 0.5
Net finance cost in respect of defined benefit pension schemes (note 24) 0.4 0.4
Total finance costs 15 0.8
Borrowing costs of ENil were capitalised in the year ended 31 May 2020(2018: £0.2 millien].
NWF Group ple
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Financial statements

Notes to the Group financial statements continued
for the year ended 31 May 20620

8. Income tax expense

2020 7014
£m Fim

Current tax
XK corporation tax on profits for the year 2.6 2.0
Adjustments in respect of prior years - 0.
Current tax expense 2.6 2.3
Deferred tax
Originalion and reversal of temporary differences - (0.2}
Effect of increased tax rate on opening balances 0.5 -
Deferred tax expenseldincome){note 22) 0.5 (0.2}
Total income tax expense 3.1 18

Buring the year ended 31 May 2020, corporation tax has been calculated at 19% of estimated assessable profits for the year (2019: 19%).

Areduction in the UK corporation tax rate to 17% with effect from 1April 2020 was substantively enacted on 6 September 2016 in the Finance
Act 2016. tn the opinion of the Directars, the relevant timing differences at 31 May 2019 were expected to reverse atter 1 April 2020 and therefore
deferred tax was provided at a rate of 17% in the statutory accounts for that period.

In the Spring Budget 2020, the Government announced that from 1April 2020 Lhe corporation tax rate would remain at 19% {rather than reducing
to 17% as previously enacted). This new law was subslantively enacted under the Provisional Collection of Taxes Act 1968 on 17 March 2G20.
Deferred tax balances have Lherefore been remeasured to 18%. The impact of the change in tax rate has been recognised in tax expense in
profit or loss, except to the extent that it relates fo itermns previously recognised outside profit or foss. For the Group, such items include
remeasuremoents of post omployment benefit llabilities and the expected tax deduction in oxcess of the recognised expense for equity- settled
share-based payments.

The tax charge for the year can be reconciled to the profit per the income statement as foilows:

2020 2005

Em Fm

Profit hefore taxation 12.0 8.7

Profit before taxation multiplied by the standard rate of UK corporation tax of 18% (2019: 18%) 2.2 1.6
Effects of.

- expenses not deductile for tax purposes 0.4 0.2

-impact of increased tax rate on opening balances 0.5 -

- adjustments in respect of prior years - 0.1

Total ingome tax expense 3.1 1.9

I'he Uirectors expect that the Group will have a higher than standard tax charge in the future as a result of the level of the Groups
disallowable expenses.

9. Equity dividends

2020 2013

£Em £

Final dividend for the year ended 31 May 2019 of 5.6p{2018: 5.3p) per share 27 2.6
Interirm dividend for the year ended 31 May 2020 of 1.0p{2019: 1.0p} per share 05 0.5
Amounts recognised as distributions to equity shareholders in the year 3.2 3.1
Proposed fing! dividend for the year ended 31 May 2020 of 5.95(2019: 5.6p)} per share 29 2.7

The proposed final dividend is subject to approval at the AGM on 24 September 2020 and has not been inctuded as a liability in these Group
financial statements.
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10. Earnings per share
The calculation of basic and diluted earnings per share is based on the following data:

2020 2012
Earnings (£m)
Earnings for the purposes of basic and diluted earnings per share being profit for the year attributable ta equity
snarcholders 89 6.8
Number of shares (‘000)
Wetighted average number of shares for the purposes of basic earnings per share 48,750 48,735
Weighted average dilutive effect of conditional share awards 478 15
Weighted average number of sharcs for the purpeses of diluted earnings per share 49,228 45750
Earnings per ordinary share {pence)
Basic earnings per ordinary share 8.2 13.9
iited earnings per ordinary share 18.1 15.9
Headline earnings per ordinary share {pence)
Basic headline earnings per ordinary share 20.5 15.8
Diivted headline earnings per ordinary share 20.3 5.8
The calculation of basic and diluted headiine earnings per share is based on the following data:

2020 2019

£m £1m

Profit for the year attributable to equity shareholders 8.9 8.8
Add back/deduct):
Net finance cost in respect of defined benefil pension scheme 0.4 0.4
Exceptional items as 0.5
Amortisation of acquired intangibles 0.3 a1
Tax effect of the abave {0.1) {0.1)
Headline earnings 10.0 7.7

11. Business combinations

On 10 July 2819, the Group acquired 100% of the share capital of David Hermon Hodge Group Limited, trading as Ribhle Fuel Oils, a 75 million
litre fuel distributor based in the North West of England. The net consideration for the acquisition was £3.0 mitlion before acguisition costs
{being gross consideration of £4.5 million adjusted for nermalised working capital, and cash and debi-like items).

Details of the total consideration and the provisional fair values of the assets and liabilities acquired are shown below:

‘tial farr Fau

value ol valae of

assels assets

acyuired  Adjustments acquired

£m £m £m

Intangible assets - goodwill 3.1 {0.6) 2.5
Intangiblc assets - brand 0.1 — 0.1
Intangible assets - customer relationships 0 0.6 0.7
Property, ptant and equipment 11 — 1.1
Right of use asset — 0.4 0.4
Stock 0.4 — 0.4
Trade and other receivables 7.2 - 7.2
Gash 0.2 - 0.2
Borrowings (2.8) - {2.6)
Trade and other payahles (6.0} - (6.0}
Lease fiabilities {0.5) (0.4) {0.9)
Deferred tax liability (0. - (0.1
3.0 — 3.0

Boodwill of £2.5 million arises from the acquisition and is attributable to the acquired business and the expected economies of scale from
combining the operations of the Group and the acquisition. None of the goodwill is expected to be deductible for income tax purposes.
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Financial statements

Notes to the Group financial statements continued
for the year ended 31 May 2020

1. Business combinations continued
Following finalisation of acauisition accoumting, adjustrnents have been made to the value attnbutable to customer relationships and ta
recogrise right of use assets and lease liabilities under IFRS 18

As the acquisition was made in the year, the above amounts are provisional and subject to adjustment.

Net cash outflow arising on the acquisition:

£m

Total considerauion - cash paid on compietion (3.0}
Cash acqusred 0.2
(2.8)

Acquisition-related costs (0.3)
(3.1

Acquisition-reiated costs of £0.3 million have been charged to the income statement (included within exceptional costs)ir the year ended
31 May 2020.

The fallowing amounts have been recognised within the consaolidated income statement inrespect of the acguisition made in the year: revenue
- £43.2 million, profit - £0.6 million.

Had the acquisition taken place at the start of the financial year. the consolidated income staternent would show: revenue - £47.7 millian, profit
- £O.BEmithon.

0On 15 October 2018, the Group acquired the trade and specified asscts of Caldo Oits Limited, a 5 million litre fuel distributor based in the
North West of England. The net consideration for the acquisition was £0.4 million before acquisition ¢osts.

Details of the total consideration and the provisional fair values of the assets and liabilities acquired are shown below:
Fair
value of
g455Les
acquired
Fm

Intangible assets - goodwill 0.2

Intangible assels - customer relaticnships .7

0.4

Provisienal gnodwili of £0.2 million arises from the acquisitios and is attributable to the acquired business and the expectea economies of scale
from combining the operations of the Group and the acquisition. None of the goodwill is expected 1o be deductibie for income tax purposes.

As the acquisition was made in the year, the above amounts are provisional and subject to adjustment.

Net cash outflow arising on the acquisition:

£m

Total consideration - cash paid on completion (0.4)
Cash and cash equivalents acquired -
{0.4)

The foliowing amounts have been recagnised within the consolidated income statement in respect of the acguisition made in the year:
revenue - £1.1 million, profit - £0.1 million,

Had the acquisition taken place at the start of the financial year, the consalidated income statement would show: revenue - £1.9 million,
profit - £0.1 mitlion.

0On 2 Becember 2018, the Group acquired 160% of the share capital of Ron Darch & Sans Co Limited, a 356 million litre fuel and coal distributor
based in Somerset. The net consideration for the acquisition was £8.4 million before acquisition costs{hbeing gross consideration of £4.5 million
adjusted for normalised working capital and cash acquired). Net consideration of £8.4 million comprises £7.3 million of cash paid as at 31 May 2020
and £1.1million of cash paid following completicn on 12 June 2020.
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11. Business combinations continued
Detalls of the total consideration and the provisional fair values of the assets and hiahilities acquired are shown below:

‘retia fair

value of

assels

acquireg

fm

intangible assets - guodwiil 2.2
Intangible assets - brand 0.2
Intangible assets - customar relationships 0.8
Property, plant and equipment Ta
Stock 0.8
Trade ard other receivables 15
Cash 45
Trade and other payables (2.8)
Carparation tax liability {0.1)
Deferred tax liability (0.1
8.4

Provisional goodwill of £2.2 million arises from the acguisition and is attributable to the acquired business and the expected economies of scale
from combining the operations of the Group and the acquisition. None of the goodwill is expected to be deductible for incame tax purposes.

As the acquisition was made in the year, the above amounts are provisional and subject to adjustment.

Net cash outflow arising on the acquisition:

£m

Total consideration - cash paid on completion 17.3)
Cash acquired 45
(2.8)

Acquisition-related costs {0.2)
Net cash flows arising during the year ending 31 May 2020 (3.0}
Cash paid post year end {t.1)
Net cosh flows arising on the acquisition {4.1)

Acquisition-redated costs of £0.2 million have been charged to the income statement (included within exceptional costs)in the year ended
31 May 2020.

The following amounts have been recognised within the consofidated income statement in respect of the acquisition made in the year:
revenue - £12.5 million, profit - £1.6 million.

Had the scguisition taken place at the start of the financial year, the consolidated income statement would shew: revenue - £22.4 million,
profit - £1.8 mitlion.
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Financial statements

Notes to the Group financial statements continued
for the year ended 31 May 2020

12. Property, plant and equipment

Lun

Freshold leasehuld Zarsand

land and tand and Plant ang O T

bullamgs buildings mactinery vehic es Total

£m frm £m fm i

Cost
At 1Jdune 7018 37.0 1.5 24.7 191 775
Adaitions 0.z — 2.4 0.7 2.8
Acquired — — — 1.0 1.0
Dispesals - - (0.%) 1.4) .7)
At TJune 2019 37.2 1.5 26.3 2.9 74.9
Additions - 1.1 4.3 0.3 5.7
Acguired 0.7 0.4 0.4 1.3 2.5
Transfers out to right of use asset - — - {1.3) (1.3}
Disposals - — - 13.8) {3.6)
At 31 May 2020 37.9 2.7 31.0 B.6 78.2
Accumulated depreciation
At tdune 2018 10.9 0.3 1.3 n.5 271
Charge for the year 0.9 - 1.8 12 3.9
Disposals — - {0.3) {13} {1.5}
At1Jdune 2018 10.9 0.3 12.8 5.4 29.4
Charge for the year 0.9 — 2.0 1.2 4.1
Transfers out to right of use assct - - - (0.4) (0.4}
Dispasals - - - (3.4) 3.4}
At 31 May 2020 n.se 0.3 14.8 2.8 29.7
Carrying amount
At 31 May 2020 26.3 2.4 18.2 38 68.5
At 31 May 2019 76.3 1.2 13.5 4.5 45.5

The Group has pledged certain freehoid land and buildings with a carrying vaiue of £22.0 miltion {31 May 2013: £22.6 million} to secure banking
facilities granted to the Group.

Following the adoption of IFRS 168 on 1June 2019, the net book value of plant and equipment held under finance teases 1$ no longer recogniscd
within property. plant and equipment and is instead recognised within right of use assets{note 13},
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13. Right of use assets

Cemrmerca

Sroperties wehicles Tota
£m £m Em
Cost
AL 3T May 2019 - — —
Recegnition of right of use assets 1.0 5.2 16.2
Transfers in from property, plant and equipment on transition - 0.5 0.5
Right of use assets recognised at 1 June 2018 1.0 15.7 18.7
Additions 7B 8.0 5.6
Acquired 0.4 - 0.4
Transfers in from property, plant and equipment - 0.8 0.8
At 31 May 2020 9.0 24.5 33.5
Accumulated depreciation
At 31 May 2019 - - -
Transfers in from property, plant and equipment — 01 0.1
At1.Juneg 2019 — G 04
Charge for the year 0.6 5.2 5.8
Transfers in from property, plant and equipment - 0.3 0.3
At 31 May 2020 0.8 5.6 6.2
Carrying amount
At 31 May 2020 8.4 18.8 27.3
At TJune 2019 1.0 5.6 16.6
At 31 May 2019 - - —
Depreciation charges are recognised in administrative costs.
Following the adoption of IFRS 18, the transfer of assets in from property, plant and equipment represents the reclassification of the cost
and associated depreciation of finance lease assets at 1 June 2018 Lo right of use assets.
14. Intangible assets
Computer Customer
Gaoowit software  relationships Brands Total
Fm tm m £m fim
Cost
At T dune 2078 20.7 6.1 - 1.0 27.8
Additions 2.5 0.2 0.5 01 3.3
At TJdune 2019 232 6.3 0.5 11 311
Addrtions 4.9 0.4 17 0.3 7.3
At 31May 2020 28.1 6.7 2.2 L4 38.4
Accumulated amortisation
At Tdune 2018 0.6 B - 0.4 5.6
Charge for the year - 0.7 - 0a 0.8
At June 2019 0.6 5.3 - 0.5 6.4
Charge for the year - 0.3 0.2 0.1 0.6
At 31 May 2020 0.6 5.6 0.2 0.8 7.0
Carrying amount
At 31 May 2020 275 11 2.0 0.8 N4
At 31 May 2019 220 1.0 0.5 0.6 247

Amortisation or impairment charges have been charged to administrative expenses in the consolidated income statement.

NWF Group plc
e CoLk

67

SU2WBINS IDIJUDUL |



Fingancial statements

Notes to the Group financial statements continued
for the year ended 31 May 2020

14, Intangibie assets continued
Customer relationships
Customer relationships are allocated as foliows:

2020 Pl
£m £
Fuels 2.0 0.5
Brands
Brands are allocated as follows:
2020 2015
£m Fm
Feeds 0.2 n.z
Fuels 0.6 0.3
0.8 0.6

Goodwill
Goodwill acquired is allocated, at acquisition, to cash-generating units(‘CGUs} that are expected to benefit from that business combination.
The carrying value of goodwill is allocated as follows:

2020 ama

£m £m

Feeds nse 1.8
Fuels 15.6 0.7
275 228

The Group tests annually for impairment of goodwill. The recoverable amaunts of CGUs are determined using value in use calculations.
The value in use calculations use post-tax cash flow projections based on the Board-approved budget for the year ending 31 May 2021
and four years of divisional strategic plans thereafter. Subsequent cash flows are exirapoiated using an estimated growthirate of 2%.

The rate used to discount the projected cash flows. being a pre-tax discount rate based cn comparative businesses, is 8.35% {2019: 10.3% ) for
all business segments. The same discount rate has been used for each CGU as the principal risks associated with the Group, as highlighted
on pages 20 and 21, would also impact each CGU in a similar manner.

The valug in use calculations described above, together with sensitivity analysis using reasonable assumplions, indicate ample headroom
and therefore do not give rise Lo iImpairment concerns, Having completed the 2020 impairment reviews of both the Feeds and Fuels divisions
no impairments have been identified. Management does not consider that there is any reascnable downside scenario which would resutt in
an impairment,

15. Inventories

2020 7CH
£m £m
Raw materials and consumables 2.4 3.0
Finished goods and goods for resale .3 2.8
4.7 b.B

16. Trade and other receivables
2020 2004
£m fm
Trade receivables 54.5 64.9
Less: provision for impairment {1.8) (1.2)
Trade receivables - net 52.7 637
VAT recoverable - 0.7
Otherreceivables 0.2 0.3
Prepayments and accrued income 38 25
58.7 672

Prepayments and accrued income includes £0.7 million (2019: ENil}reiating 10 a reimbursement settlement which has been offset against the
past service costs of the defined benefit gension scheme inthe income statement.
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18. Trade and other receivables continued

The fair value of trade and other receivables is equivalent to their carrying amount. Trade and other receivables are non-interest bearing and
are substantially denominated in Sterling. Under IFRS 9, the Group +s required to utilise objective evidence as well as consider farward-teoking
information and the probability of default when calculating expected credit losses. The maturily of financial assels and history of write-offs is
therefore used as an Indicator as Lo the probabiiity of default. Trade receivabies are written off when they have been overdue for a number of

years, orif a customer has entered into insolvency and there is no expectation of recovery.

The loss allowance as at 31 May 2020 and 31 May 2019 was determined as follows for trade receivables:

5Jto
<3C days B0 days >E0 days
31 May 2070 Carrent past due past due pas: due cta
Expected loss rate 0.10% 0.21% 2.06% T11%
Gross carrying amount (£m} 40.9 9.5 1.7 2.4 H4.5
Loss allowance (Em) - - - 1.8 1.8
A0t
<50 days 60 days >80 days
JiMay 2074 Zurren; pasi due past due past due Total
Expected loss rate 0.05% 0.51% 0.84% 60.63%
Gross carrying amount {£m) 9.2 2.7 1.2 .8 64.9
Loss allowance (£m) 0.1 - — 1.1 1.2
Movements on the Group provision for impairment of trade receivables are as foliows:
2020 w18
£m fm
At tJune 1.2 1
Provision for receivables impairment 0.8 0.2
Receivables written off in the year (D.2) {0.1)
At 31 May 1.8 1.2
The other classes of receivables do not conlain impaired assets.
The maximum exposure to credit risk at the reporting date is the carrying amount of each ciass of receivable.
17. Cash and cash equivalents
2020 2018
£m £m
Cash al bank and in hand 53 2.8
The fair value of cash and cash equivalents is equivalent to thelr carrying amount. Cash at bank and inhand includes £0.8 million of cashin
transit between Group companies at the year end.
18. Trade and other payables
2020 2018
Em £m
Current
Trade payables 44,9 58.8
Social security and other taxes 1.3 1.0
Accruals and deferrod income 10.4 5.9
56.8 66.7

The fair value of trade and other payabies is equivalent to their carrying amount.
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Financial statements

Notes to the Group financial statements continued
for the year ended 3t May 2020

19. Borrowings

203
2020 (Restaied)
£m b
Current

Obligations under hire purchase agreements - 0.2
Invaice discounting advances 7.2 10.0
7.2 10.2

Non-gurrent
Revolving credit facility 10.0 30
10.0 3.0
Total borrowings 17.2 13.7

£70.0 million of 'nvoice discounting advances, previausty recogmised within non-current habdities have been corrected and rectassified to corent liabHibies inthe year ennss
1 May 2019, 1 his restatement anises as the Group does not have an uncaonditonal ight to defer settlemert of these lizo lities for al'east one year afler ine balance sheet
date. £7.2 millwnr of imvoice discocnting advances nave peen ~ecogrised within current abilities in the year erded 37 May 2020.

The Group's banking facilities, provided by The NatWest Group, were renewed on 29 June 2018 and are commiticd until 31 Detober 2023,
Further information on the renewed facilities, which total £65.0 million (2018: £65.0 millien}, is outiined below.

Invoice discounting advances

Invoice discounting advances at 31 May 2020 were drawn under a committed facility with an expiry date of 31 October 2023 (2019: 31 October
2023). The availability of invoice discaunting facilities 1s dependent on the level of current trade receivables available for refinancing and is
subject to a maximum drawdown of £50.0 million (2019: £50.0 milion).

The facility is secured by way of a fixed and floating charge against the Groups trade receivables. Interest is charged at 1.25% (2019: 1.25%
per annum above the bank’s hase rate.

Invoice discounting advances have been classified within curren tiabilities as the Group does not have an unconditional right to defer settiement
of the labilities for at least one year after the balance sheet date. Accordingly, all of the invoice discounting advances at 31 May 2020 totalling
£7.2 million (2019: £10.06 million) are prescated within current liabilities.

The Group incurred non-utilisation fees on its cominitted invoice discounting facility. The Group will incur non-utilisation fees only in respect
of committed and undrawn facilities of up to £20.0 mitlion (2019: £20.0 million).

Revolving credit facility

The Group has a revolving credit faciity of £10.0 milion (2019: £10.0 million}with an expiry date of 31 0ctober 2023(2019: 31 October 2023).
Interest is charged on amounts drawn down at 1.60 - 1.85% per annum above LIBOR [2019: 1.60 - 1.85% above LiBOR)depending an the ratio
of net debt to EBITDA.

Tne amount drawn down under the revolving credit facility at 31 May 20201s £10.0 million {2019: £3.0 million).
The Group incurs non-ultifisation fees on its committed revolving credit facility.

Bank overdrafts

The Group's net bank cverdraft facility at 31 May 2020 is repayable on demand and is subject to a maximum limit of £1.0 miliion (2019: £1.0 miltion).
None of the facility was utilised at 31 May 2020{2019: £Nil). interest is charged at 1.5% per annum over the bank’s base rate(2019: 1.5% per
annum oves the bank's base rate}

Bank guarantee

The Group has a bank guarantee agreement with The NatWest Group, under which the bank provides a facility which ailows the Group to
request that the bank issues guarantees to third party suppliers for general business purposes. The maximum total facility value is £4.0 millien
but this was not utilised in the year.

The above facilities are subject to quarterly covenant tests on interest cover and net debt to EBITUA ratios. The covenants have been sct at
levets that provide sufficient headroom and flexibility for the Group until maturity of the facilities in October 2023,

Bank borrowings amounting to £17.7 million(2018: £13.0 miilion) are secured by way of unscheduied mortgage debentures provided by the
Company and certain subsidiaries within the Group to The NatWest Group which incorporate a fixed charge over their bock debts and floating
charges over all their ather assets.

All bank borrowings are denominated in Sterling and are repayable as follows:

it

2020 {Rostated }

£Em £m

Within one year 72 10.0
Between two and five vears 10.0 J.u
72 13.0
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19. Borrowings continued
Bank borrowing facilities by expiry date
The Group has a number of bank borrewing facilities which were partly drawn down at 31 May 2020. The Group is in compliance with all covenanis.

2020 2003 {Restated)
Amount AmaLrt
Facility drawn Facity drawn
Faczilities expining £m £m £m Lr
Within one year 44.8 7.2 48.2 10.0
Between two and five years 10.0 10.0 10.0 3.0
54.8 7.2 58.2 13.0

£171.0 milhon of woice discownting advalces, previgusly recognises with.a noa-current labiities, have been corrected and “ec assified to currgthiabiliting o tne year erdec
A May 2018, This rastarement arises as (he Group does ol have an uncarditional r'ght to deser settlement of thesa rabi! tes for at leas: ane year afte- the balance snoet
date. £7.2 million of invaice discount 1g aovances Nave been “ecogrised within current liabdities 'n the yea- ended 31 May 2020

The availability of invoice discounting facilities included above, amounting to £43.8 million (31 May 2013: £47.2 million). is dependent on the level
of trade receivables available for refinancing.

The faciiities above do not include the £4.0 million bank guarantee agreement facility.

Obligations under hire purchase agreements
Dbligations under hire purchase agreements are repayabic as follows:

Minimum payments Present vaue of pavments

2020 2019 2020 2ms

£m Zm £m £m

Within one year - 0.2 - 0.2

Between two and five years - - - _

Present value of obligations - 0.2 - 0.z
Analysec as:

Amounts due for settiement within 12 months (shown as current labilities) - 0.2

Amounts due for settlement after 12 months - —

- 0.2

Al hire purchase obligations are denominated in Starling.

Following the adoption of IFRS 16 at 1June 2019, allremaining hire purchase obligations have been recognised as lease liabilities and are shown in note 20.

20. Lease liabllities

Commercia
Propertes vebicles Tota'
fm £m fm
Cost
At 31 May 2019 - - -
Recognition of lease hability under IFRS 18 1.0 15.2 8.2
Previously recognised as finance lease obligations in borrowings - 072 0.2
QOpening lease liabilities recognised at 1 June 2019 1.0 19.4 5.4
Additions 7.0 8.0 15.0
Business combinations{note 11} 0.4 0.5 0.9
Leasc liability payments including finance costs) {0.3) 5.7 (6.0)
Finance costs — 0.4 0.4
At 31 May 2020 8.1 18.6 26.7
Lease liabilities are comprised of the following balance sheet amounts:
2020 209
£m {m
Current
Amounts due within one yoar 6.4 —
Non-current
Amounts due after more than one year 20.3 -
Total 26.7 -
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Financial statements

Notes to the Group financial statements continued
for the year ended 31 May 2020

20, Lease liabilities cantinued
Lease lablities are as follows:

2020 20
£m fim

Not more than one year
Minimurm lease payments 8.9 —
interest elemant (0.5} -
Present value of minimum lease payments B.4 -
Between one and five years
Minirmum fease payments 18.9 —
Interest element (0.7 —
Present value of minimum lease payments 18.2 ~
More than five years
Minimum lease payments 22 -
Interest element (0.1) —
Present value of minimum lease payments 23 -

21, Financial instruments and risk management

The Group's financial instruments comprise cash, bank overdrafts, nvoice discounting advances, rolling credit facility, obligations under hire
purchase agreements, camrmodity derivatives and various items such as receivables and payables. which arise from its aperations. All financial
instruments in 2020 and 2019 were denominated in Sterling. There 18 no material foreign exchange risk in respect of these instruments.

The carrying amounts of all of the Groups financial instruments are measured at amortised cost in the financial statements, with the exception
of derivative financial instruments. Derivative financial instruments are measured subseguent to initial recognition at fair value.

IFRS 13 {amended) Financial Instruments: Disclosures requires disclosure of financial instruments measured at fair value, grouped into Levels 1
to 3 below, based on the degree to which fair value is observable:

« Level | fair value measurements are those derived from unadjusted quaoted prices in active markets for identical assets or liabilities:

+ Level 2 fair vatue measurements are those derived from inputs, other than gucted prices included within Level 1 above, that are observable
for the asset or fability, either directly{i.e. as prices)or indirectly (i.e. derived from prices}, and

s Level 3 fair value measurements are those derived from valuation techniques that include inputs for the asset or liabllity that are not based
on cbservable market data (unobservable inputs).

All of the Group's derivative financial instruments as described on page 73 (forward supply contractsiwere classified as Leve! 2 in the current
and prior year. There were no transfers between levels in either the current or prior year.

Financial liabilities
The book value, fair value and interest rate profile of the Group's financial liabilities were as follows:

Total book and

fair value

At 31 May 2020 £m
Financial liabllities carried at amortised cost:

Trade and other payables 56.6

Floating rate invoice discounting advances 72

Lease liabilities repayable within one year 6.4

70.2

Revolving credit facility 10.0

Lease fiabilities repayable after one year 20.3

30.3

Total 100.5
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21. Financial instruments and risk management continued
Financial liabilities continued
“cral noox anc
fair value{Pestated |
AT 1 May 2098 £m

Financiat liabilities carried at amertised cost:

Trade ard other payables B6.7
Floating rate invoice discounting advances 10.0
Hire purchase otligations repayable within ane year 0.2

76.9
Revolving credit facility 30

Hire purchase obligations repayatle after one year -

30

Total 79.9

£17 O mitiion of inveice discounting aovances, previausly recognised within ron-current liabilties, have been corrected and reclassitied to current llabilities ir tne vear endec
31 May 2018, This restaiement arises as the Group does not have an uncondil oral rght to defer settlerment of these nabil'tes for at least one yeasr afller tne talance sheet
date. £7.2 mulhon ol invoice discounting agvances 1ave peen recogrised wethin current habilities in the year ended 31 May 2020,

Financial assets
The book value, fair value and interest rate profile of the Group's financial assets were as follows:
Total book and

fair value

At 31May 2020 Em
Trade argd other receivables 56.7
Financial assets carried at amertised cost: cash and cash equivalents 5.3
Financial assets carried at fair value: derivatives 0.1
B2.1

Towal baok and

fair vatue

Al 2T May 20019 fin
Trade and other receivables 64.7
Financial assets carried at amortised cost: cash and cash eguivalents 2.8
Financial assets carried at fair value: derivatives 0.2
67.7

Financial risk management

The Groups operations expose it to a variety of financial risks: price risk; interest rate risk: credit risk: and liguidity risk. Given the size of the
Group, the Directors have not established a sub-committee of the Board to monitar financial risk management, but have estahiished policies
that are implemented and maonitored by the Executive Directors.

Price risk
The Group is exposed to commodity price risk principally in respect of certain raw materials in the Feeds business and oil-related products
inthe Fuels business.

The Feeds business enters into forward supply contracts in order to manage the impact of price movements on its gross margin. At 31 May 2020,
the Group had open forward supply contracts with a principal value of £26.6 million {31 May 2019: £27.1 million). The fair value of forward supply
contracts recognised on the balance sheetis £0.1million {31 May 2019: £0.2 million).

I he fair value of forward supply contracts is based on generally accepted valuation technigues using inputs from observable market data
an equivaient instruments at the balance sheet date. The contracts are settied on a gross cash basis and are classified as current assets
of liahilities, as aft contractual cash flows fall due 1o be settled in less than one year.

The Group has not designated any of these contracts as hedging instruments during the period under review. As a resuit, changes in the
fair value of non-hedging forward supply contracts amounting to £Nil have been credited to the income statement in the year (2018: £Nil}

The Fuels business oil-related products are subject to changes in the world commodity price for crude oil. However, the relatively low
stockholding maintained and daily price monitoring systems used to determine selling prices enable the business to effectively manage
the risl of gross margin erasion. Forward supply contracts are nat utilised by this business.

The axtent of these risks is reguiarly reviewed and assessed by the Dxecutive Directors and reported back to the Board. This processis
considered to be effective given the size and nature of the risks invoived. but will be reviewed in the future should circumstances change.
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Notes to the Group financial statements continued
for the year ended 31 May 2020

21, Financial instruments and risk management continued

Financial risk management continued

interest rate risk

The Group is exposed Lo interest rate risk due 10 1ts floating rate barrowings.

Tne Directors review the interest rate hedging policy on at least an annual basis. The Group monitors its exposure to interest rate risk primarily
through sensitivity analysis. On the basis of the Group's analysis, it is estimated that a rise of one percentage point in interest rates on fioating
rate borrowings would have reduced 2020 profit before taxation by approximately £0.3 million{2019: £0.2 million).

Credit risk

Where aopropriate, relevant credit cheocks are performed on potential customers pefore sales are made. The amount of exposure to any
individual customer is controlled by means of a credit imit that is menitared reguiarty by management and, in the case of a financially material
value, by the Executive Directars. In addition, the Fuels business maintains credit insurance for certain higher value accounts in order to
manrage the potential financial loss incurred on certain bad debts.

Liquidity risk

The Group actively maintains a mixture of medium-term and short-term dedt finance, which is designed te ensure that it has access ta
sufficient available funds for ongoing working capital needs as well as planned capital investrment and expansion generally. The amount

of debt finance required is reviewed at ieast annually by the Directors.

All of the Group's financial instruments, with the exception of certain borrowings [see note 13), have a contractual maturity of fess than cne year,
hased on the earliest date on which the contractual cash flows are required 1o be settled.

Capital risk
The: Groups objectives when managing capitat arc to safeguard the Group's ability to continue as a going concern in arder to provide returns to
sharehnlders and benefits to other stakeholders, and to maintain an optimal capitai structure to reducce the cost of capital. In order to maintain

or adjust the capitat structure, the Group may adjust the amount of dividends paid to shareholders. return capital to shareholders, issue new

shares or sell assets to reduce debt.

The Group monitors capital risk on the basis af the net debt/EBITDA ratio. This ratio is calculated as net debt (excluding lease liabilities) divided

by headline operating profit before interest, depreciation and amortisation as shown below:

2020 203
Borrowings {£mii{note 19) 1.2 13.2
Ubligations under hire purchase agreements now recognised in lease labifities{£m) 0.4 -
Less: cash at bank and in hand(Em) (5.3) (2.8)
Net debt { Em}{excluding lease liabilities) 12.3 10.4
Headline EBITDA{Em) 18.7 14.8
Net debt/EBITDA ratia 0.7x 0.7x

The Group has set an internal covenant limit of 2.0x net debt/EBITDA.

22, Deferred taxation

The fallowing are the principal categorics of deferred tax assets and liabilities recognised by the Group and the movements thereon during the

current and prior year:

Accelerated Retiremenr

tax benefit
aepreciation obl-gations Other “otal
£m fm £m Fm
At TJune 2018 3.6 {2.9) 10.2) 0.5
Debitfcredit) to income statement {note 8} {0.3) (0.1 0.2 {0.2)
Debit to equity - 0.1 — 0.1
Arising on intangibles on acauisition Q.1 — — 0.1
Acquired 0.1 - - 0.1
Prior year adjustment 0.2 - (0.2) -
At 31 May 2018 3.7 (2.9) (0.2 0.8
Debit/Acredit)to income statement {note 8) 0.7 — {0.2) 0.5
Credit to equity — nn - {11
Arising on intangibles on acquisition 0.3 - — 0.3
Acquired 0.2 - - 0.2
At 31 May 2020 4.9 (4.0) (0.4) 0.5

The majority of the deferred taxation balance is expected to reverse after more thar twelve manths.
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23, Share capital

Namber
a* shares Total
‘000 £m
Aliotted and fully paid: ordinary shares of 25p each
Balance at 1 June 2018 43,860 2.z
lssue of shares(see below) a0 —
Batance at 31 May 2019 45,750 12.2
Issuc of shares (see below] _ _
Balance at 31 May 2020 48,750 12.2

During the year ended 31 May 2020, no shares {2013: 89,320) with an aggregate nominal value of ENi}{2013: £22,480)were issued under the
Gruup's conditional Performance Share Plan.

The maximum total number of ordinary shares, which may vest in the future in respect of conditional Perfermance Share Plan awards
outstanding at 3! May 2020, amounted to 1,441,604 (31 May 2019: 1,218,345}, Those shares will only De issued subject to satisfying certamn
performance criteria{see the Directors’ Remureration Report and note 24

24, Retirement benefit schemes

Defined contribution schemes

The Group operates several defined contribution pension schemes for gqualifying employees. The assets of the schemes are held separately
from those of the Group in funds under the contral of trustees. The total cost charged to the income statement of £1.3 million(2019: £1.1 million}
represents the contributions payabie to these schemes by the Group at the rates specified in the scheme rules.

There were no outstanding or prepaid contributions at the batance sheet date (31 May 2018: £Nit).

Defined benefit scheme
The Group operates a defined benefit pensicn scheme providing benefits based on final pensicnable earnings, which is closed to future accrual,

NWF Group Benefits Schame

The scheme is administerca by a fund that is legally separated from the Group. The trustees of the pension fund are required by law to act
in the interest of the fund and of all relevant stakeholders in the scheme. The trustees are responsible for the investment policy with regard
to the assets of the fund.

The scheme was clased to new members during the year ended 31 May 2002 and closed to future accrual with effect from April 2016.

The latest full trienpial actuarial valuation of this scheme was completed in the year ended 31 May 2018, with a deficit of £19.1 million at the
valuation date of 31 December 2016. The present value of the defined benefit obligation and the related current service cost were measured
using the Projected Unit Credit Method. In these financiat staterments this liability has been updated in arder to derive the IAS 19R valuation
as of 31 May 2020. The next full triennial valuation will be completed in the year ending 31 May 2021

The average duration of the benefit ohiligaticn at Lhe balance sheet date s 19 years. The defined benefit obligation includes benefits for current
employees. former employees and cufrent pensioners. Approximately 49% of the liabilities are attributable Lo current and former employees
and 5% to current pensioners.

The Group expects to make total contributions of £2.8 million {including & contribution to scheme expenses}in the year ending 31 May 2021,
The scheme typically exposes the Groyp to actuarial risks such as investment risk, interest rate risk and longevity risk, as described below:

« Investment risk: The present value of the defined benefit scheme liability is calculated using a discount rate determined by reference to high
quality corporate bond yields. if the return on plan assets is below this rate, it will create a scheme deficit. Currently, the scheme has a
relatively balanced investment in equities, bonds. property funds and alternatives, cash and diversified growth funds. Due to the ong-term
nature of scheme fiabilities, the trustees of the pension fund consider it appropriate that a reasonable portion of the scheme assets should
be invested in equities, property funds and diversified growth funds to leverage the return generated by the fund.

« Interest risk: Adecrease in Lhe bong interest rate wilt increase the scheme liability but this will be partiatly offset by an increase in the return
aon the scheme's bond investments.

= Longevity risk: The present value of the defined benefit scheme Hability is calcutated by reference to the best estimate of the mortality of the
scheme participants both during and after their employment. An increase in the life expectancy of the scheme participants will increase the
scheme’s liahility.

The principal actuarial assumptions as at the balance sheet date, used for the purposes of the actuarial valuations, were as follows:

2020 2014

% =

Discount rate 1.65 2.50
Future salary increases nfa n/a
RFlinflation 2.65 3.20
CPiinflation 1.85 2.20
Pension increases in payment (LP15%) 2.63 3.05
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24. Retirement benefit schemes continued

Defined benefit scheme continued

NWF Group Benefits Scheme continued

The mortality assumplians adopted imply the foliowing life expectancies:

2020 701y

Years Yoars
Current pensioners - male life expectancy at age §5 21.6 21.5
Future pensioners currently aged 45 - male life expectancy at age 85 22.9 278
The 2020 mortality assumptions above are hased on S2PXA tables with CMI 2019 improvements and a long-term trend rate of 1.25%
(2019: S2PXA tables with CMi 2018 improvermnents and a long-term trend rate of 1.25%).
The amounts recognised in the balance sheet in respect of the defined benefit scheme are as follows:

2020 2013

£m £m

Present value of defined benefit obligations (61.1) {58.3}
Fair value of scheme assets 40.1 8.0
Deficit in the scheme recognised as a liability in the balance sheet {21.0) (17.3)
Related deferred tax asset (note 22} 4.0 29
Net penslon llability (17.0) (14.4)
Amounts recognised in the income statement in respect of the defined benefit scheme are as follows:

2020 7015

£m £m

Current service cost - G
Past service cost 0.4 0.3
Administrative expenses 0.3 0.3
Interest on the net defined benefit liability 0.4 0.4
Total cost recognised in the income statement 11 11

Past service costs of £1.1miilion are shown nel of 2 £0.7 million reimbursement settiement recognised within the income statement. The
reimbursement settlement was received on 4 June 2020 and is therefore recognised as a reimbursement asset within prepayments and

accrued income as at 31 May 2020,

Gains and losses arising from the remeasurement of the net defined benefit Hability have been reported in the statement of comprehensive

income. as shown befow:

2020 201
£m £m
Actuarial gain on plan assets 1.5 0.9
Actuarial loss arising from changes in financial assumptions {5.5) {(z.1)
Remeasurement loss (4.0} (1.2}
Changes inthe present value of the defined bencfit obtigation are as follows:
2020 2013
£m I'm
A tdune 585.3 53.4
Current service cost - G
interest cost 13 14
Remeasurement fosses:
- actuarial losses arising from changes in financial and demaographic assumptions 5.5 2.1
Benefits paid (2.1} {2.0)
Fast service cost 1.1 0.3
At 31 May Bl1 55.3
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24, Retirement benefit schemes continueg

Defined benefit scheme continued

NWF Group Benefits Scheme continued

Changes in the fair value of scheme assels are as follows:

2020 Z0%
£m £m

AtlJune 38.0 6.3
Interest income 09 1.0
Remeasurement gains:
- actuarial gains on plan assets 1.5 0.9
Contributions by employer 2.1 2.3
Expenses (0.3) {0.3)
Benefits paid (2.1} (2.0}
At 31May 40.1 38.0

The major categories and tair values of scheme assets at the balance sheet date are as follows:

Fair value ot assets

2020 201

Em fim

Lquities - 7.9
Equity-linked bonds 8.6 -
Band funds 7.9 7.1
Credit func 6.6 749
Property fund 0.1 0.
Diversified growth fund 16.3 13.0
Cash 0.2 1.6
Annuity policies 0.4 .4
Total 404 38.0

None of the fair values of the assets shawn above include any of the Greup's own financial instruments or any property used by the Group
at the balance sheet date.

The actual return an scheme assets was a gain of £2.4 millien {2019: £1.9 million gain}.

Asset-liability matching reviews of the NWF Group Benefits Scheme are performed regularfy. The results of reviews are used to assist the
trustees and the Group to determine the optimal long-term asset allocation with regard to the structure of the liabilities of the scheme.

They are also used to assist the trustees in managing the underlying velatility inherent in investment performance and the risk of a significant
increase in the scheme deficit, by providing information used to determine the scheme’s investment strategy.

The main strategic choices thal are formulated in an actuarial and technical policy document of the fund are described below:

asset mix is based on 40% diversified growth fund, 22% equity investments, 15% credit funds, 21% liability-driven investment ('LDI'} funds and
2% property funds and alternative assels;

it is the policy of the fund to cover its exposure to the interest rate risk of the defined benefit liability by the use of LDl funds. £ DI funds are
derivative-based investments that give ieveraged exposures to the bond markets;

inflation risk is mitigated by the use of LD funds. LDI funds are derivative-based investments that give leveraged exposures to the bond markets:
the fund does not have a material foreign exchange exposure and does not, therefore. use foreign exchange derivatives to hedge its foreign
exchange risk;

active management is within the diversified growth fund, bond investments. property funds and equity-linked investments: and

there are 17 pensioner members with annuity policies held in the name of the pension scheme trustee. The arrangements are held with Aviva
olc and Scottish Widows Limited. These policies fully match the pension cbligations of those pensioners insured and are therefore set equal
to the present value of the related obligations.

Virtually all equity and bonds have quoted prices in active markets.

There has been no change inthe processes used by the Group to manage its risks from the prior year.
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Financial statements

Notes to the Group financial statements continued
for the year ended 31 May 2020

24. Retirement benefit schemes continued

Defined benefit scheme continued

NWF Group Benefits Scheme continued

Significant actuarial assumptions for the determination of the defined benefit liability are discaunt rate price inflation and mortatity. The
sensitivity analyses shown below have been getermined based on reasonably pessible changes of the respective assumptions occurring at Lthe
balance sheet dates. while holding all other assumptions constant.

Increase Necrease
fmpact on def nad benefit obligation £m j1g]
1.26% change in discount rate 12.7) 2.7
0.25% change in RPlinflation 2. £2.0}
Une year change in the life expectancy at age 65 2.6 {2.6)

25. Share-based payments
Inthe year ended 31 May 2020, the Group operated one(2019: one) equity-settied share-based payment plan as described below.

The Growp recognised total expenses of £1.2 million in respect of equity-settled share-based payment transactions in the year ended 31 May 2020
{2018: £0.1 million}.

Long-term Incentive Plan{'the Plan’}

The Group operates a Performance Share Plan for senior executives, further details of which can be found in the Oirectors’ Remuneration
Report in the Group financial statements. Under the Plan, the Group has made awards of conditional shares, which have yet to be exercised,
to certain Directors on 1 August 2017 {vesting date: August 2020) and 1 August 2018 {vesting date: August 2021 and 1 August 2019 (vesting date:
August 2022). The vesting of these conditional share awards is subject to the Group achieving absclute earnings per share targets.

Details of the maximum total number of ordinary shares, which may be issued in future periods in respect of conditional share awards
outstanding at 31 May 2020, 31 May 2019, 31 May 2018 and 31 May 2017, are as shown below.

2020 2014 zme 20

Number of Number of Number of Number of

conditional conditionai conditionat conoitions!

shares shares shares shares

At Fdune 1,216,945 1.098,487 867.014 1.0684,382
Granted in the year 529,080 434778 478,347 304.421
Exercised in the year - {169.660) — {218,130}
Lapsed/forfeited in the year (304,421) {144.,060) (248,874) {362 .669)
At 31 May 1,441,604 1,216,945 1.096,487 867.014

The astimate of the fair value of the services received in return for the conditionat share awards is measured based on a Black Scholes model.
The aggregate of the estimated fair values of the awards at 31 May 2020 shown above is £2.2 million {31 May 2019: £1.9 million), before taking
into account the likelihood of achieving non-market-based performance conditions.

For awards granted in the current and prior years, the inputs into the Black Scholes model are as follows:

2020 2013 2018 2017
Share price at grant date £1.66 £1.97 £1.48 £1.73
Black Schotes fair value £1.49 £1.72 £1.32 £1.66
Exercise price £Nil £Nil £Nil il
Cxpected volatility 25.13% 23.48% 21.42% 20.99%
Expected life 2.84 years 2.83 years 2.83 years 2.8lyears
Expected dividend yield 3.9% 3.61% 3.89% 3.47%
Risk-free interest rate 0.38% 0.85% 0.27% 0.03%

Expected volatility was determined by calculating the historical volatility of the Group's share price over the previous three years. The expected
life used in the model has been adjusted, based on managemeant’s best estimate, for the effects of non-transferabliity, exercise restrictions and
behavioural considerations,
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26. Net cash generated from operating activities

2020 2019
£m tn
Operating profit 13.5 3.6
Adjustments for:
Depreciation of property, plant and egquipment 4.1 3.8
Bepreciation of right of use assets 5.8 —
Amortisation of other intangible assets 0.6 G.8
Profit on disposal of fixed assets (0.2} (0.7
Fair vaiue loss on financial dervative 0.1 -
Share-based payment expense 12 -
Contribution to pension scheme not recagnised inincome staterment {1.3) (1.4}
Operating cash flows before movements in working capital and provisions 23.8 12.8
Movements in working capitai:
Decrease ininventories 1.8 0.3
Decreasefincrease)in receivables 202 (G.9)
Decrease in payables {20.4) [3.3)
Ulilisation of provision - 0.1
Net cash generated from operations 25.5 8.8
Interest paid (1.1) (0.5)
Income tax paid (2.7) (1.9)
Net cash generated from operating activities 217 6.4
27. Analysis of cash and cash equivalents and reconciliation to net debt
Other
fdune Cash I"RS1B nen cash 31May
2015 flow CONVErsian TovEmnents 2020
£m fm fm £€m £m
Cash and cash eguivalents (note 17) 2.8 25 — - 5.3
Borrawings (note 19) (13.0) {1.8) — (2.6) {17.2)
Hire purchase obligations' (0.2 0.4 - (0.B) (0.4)
Total Group {excluding lease liabilities) [10.4} 13 — (3.2} (12.3)
Lease liabilities {excluding hire purchase obligations transferred) - 5.2 (16.2} {15.3) (26.3)
Total Group {including lease liabilities) (10.4) B.5 (16.2) (18.5} (38.5)

tollcwing tne adaption of it RS 16°Leases’, hire purchage obligat’ons are now recognised within lease liabilities, shown here for comparat’ ve purposes only

28. Operating lease commitments
At the balance sheet date, the Group has commitments for future minimum lease payments under non-cance lable operating teases, which falt
due as foliows:

Land and Land and
buildings bild:ngs Gther Other
2020 2019 2020 pail il
£m £m £m £m
Within one year - 0.2 - 5.6
Between one and five years inclusive - 0.4 - 16.5
After more than five years - 0.8 - 0.9
- 1.2 - 23.0

Follewing the adoption of IFRS 16 at 1 June 2018, operating lease commitments have been recognised as lease liabilities, and as such, minimum
irase payments are disclaosed within note 20.
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Financial statements

Notes to the Group financial statements continued
for the year ended 31 May 2020

29. Re{ated party transactions

Key management compensation

The remuneration of key managewment personne! of the Group. who are the Executive and Non-Execuytive Girectars of the Company, the
Executive Directors of its subsidianes and certain key meanagers of the Group. is set out befow inaggregate for each of the categories specified
in |AS 24 Related Party Disclgsures™

2020 2013

£m £

Short~term empioyee benefits(salary and bonusl 3.8 3.6
Posr-employment benefits 0.3 0.3
Share-based payments 0.8 -
49 3.8

Further infarmation an remuneration of Owectors can be found in the Oirectors’ Remuneration Repaort.

Directors’ transactions

T P Acton purchased, in the normal course of business and under normal terms and cenditions, ¢oods to the value of £1.693 as a customer of
the Group in the year enderd 31 May 2020 (31 May 2019: £2,655). At 31 May 2020, the amount outstanding was £Nit{31 May 20i8: £Nil). During the
year, the highest amount outstanding tatalied £724 (2013 £304),

R AWhiting purchased, in the normal course of business and under normal terms and conditions, goods to the value of £2,277 as a customer
of the Group In the year ended 31 May 202012013: £2.104). At 31 May 2020, the amount outstanding was a credit balance of £345(31 May 2014:
£B41 credit). During the year, the baiance remained in credit {2018: the balance remained in credit).

5 R Andrew purchased, in the normal course of business and under normal terms and conditions, goods to the value of £1,230 as a customer
of the Group in the year ended 31 May 20202019 £1,573). At 3t May 2020, the amount cutstanding was £310(31 May 2013: £345). During the year,
the highast amount culsianding totalied £540{2019: £575)

30.C itments for capital expenditure

2020 2018
£m fFrn
Autherised and contracted but nat pravided for 6.6 0.1

31. Contingent fiabilities

The Group's bank facilities are provided under an arrangement with The NatWest Group. The Group has pledged security in favour of the bank
over cortain freehold land and buildings with a carrying value 2t 31 May 2020 of £272.0 million{3} May 20'9: £22.6 milion). Unscheduled morigage
debentures have also been provided by the Company and certain subsidiaries to the bank which incarporate a fixed charge over trade
raceivables and floating charges over all other assets.

The Croup has an arrangement with the bank under which cash balances are offset against borrowings. The Company has given a guarantee in
respect of the net bank borrowings within the Group under this arrangement amaounting to £17.2 million at 31 May 2020 (31 May 2019: £13.0 million).

The Group has a bank gquarantee agreement with The NatWest Group, under which the bank provides a facility which allows the Group to
request that the bank issues guarantees 1o third party supphiers for general business purposes, The maxirnum toial facility valye is £6.0 million
but this was not utilised in the current or prior year.

The Company and certain subsidiaries have granted a fixed and floating charge in favour of the trustees of a defined benefit pension scheme
{the NWF Group Benefits Scheme’). This security, which is subordinated to the banhk, creates a fixed charge over ceriain freehold land and
bufldings, subject to a maximum valye of £5.0 miltion {31 May 2(19: £5.0 miltion), and a fleating charge over ali ather assets.

I'he Company has alsa given certain guarantees to third parties in respect of operating lease and supply agreement commitmeants dye from
various subsidiary companigs.
Noloss is expected to result fror these arrangements.

Under Section 479A of the Companies Act 2008, exemption from an audit of the financial statements for the financial year ended 31 May 2020
has been taken by Midland Fuel Qil Supplies Limited (02292179} and Caldo Fue! Oil Limited (0312715}, As required, the Company guarantees all
outstanding fiabitities to which the subsidiary companies listed above are subject at the end of the financial year, unit they are satisfied in full
and the quarantee is enfarceable against the parent undertaking by any person to whom the subsidiary companies listed above is liabie in
respect of those labilities.
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32, Changes in accounting standards

JFRS 16 Leases

The Group has adopted this new standard frorm 1 Jdune 2019, applying the simpiified transilion approach with the cumulative effect of initiaily
applying this slandard as an adjustmenl Lo the opening balance of retained earnings as at 1June 2019. The comparative information for the
year ended 31 May 2018 has not been restated and is presented as previously reparted, under 1AS 1/,

For the Group, this results in the recognition of almost all leases on the balance sheet as a rignt of use asset, with a corresponding lease
liability, as from a lessee perspective the distinction hetween operating and finance leases is removed,

The Sroup currently feases both properties and vehicles under a series of operating lease contracts which are impacted by the new standard.
These types of leases can no longer be recognised as operating leases and have been brought onto the Group's balance sheet from the date
of adaption of the new standard. In applying IFRS 18 for the first time the Group has elected to apply the foliowing recognition exemptions:

« Shart-term leases(leases of shorter than 12 months and leases with fewer than 12 months remaining) as at the date of adoption of the new
standard wili not be within the scope of IFRS 16,
» | eases for which the asset is of low value will not be within the scope of IFRS16.

Inapplying IFRS 36 for the first time the Group has also elected to apply the following practical expedients:

» Indetermining whether existing contracts meet the definition aof a lease, the Group will not reassess those contracts previcusly identified
as leases and wiil not apply the standard to those contracts not previously identified as leases.
¢ Theuse of a single discount rate applied to pertfolios of leases with similar characteristics.

On adoption of IFRS 16 the Group recognised lease liabilities in relation to leases previously ciassified as ‘operating ieases under the principles
of IAS 17l eases” These liabilities have been measured at the present vaiue of the remaining lease payments at 1June 2019, discounted using
the Groups incremental borrowing rale on the current facility as of 1.June 2018, The weighted average incrermental borrowing rate appilied to
the lease liabilities was 2%.

The associated right of use assets have been measured using the approach set out In iIFRS 16.C8{bii), whereby right of use assets are equai
to the lease liability adjustes for accrued or prepaid operating lease payments{ENil) at 1 June 2019. There were no onerous lease contracts
that would have required an adjustment to the right of use assets at the date of initial application.

For leases previously classified as finance leases, which relate to plant and machinery and commercial vehicles, the Group recognised the
carrying amount of the icase asset and lease liability immediately before transition as the carrying ameount of the right of use asset and the
lcase liability at the date of initial application.

The overall impact of the adoption of tFRS 16 on the Group's opening balance sheet is an increase in net assets of £16.7 million and an increase
in net liabilities of £16.2 million.

The table below shows the split of the totat right of use assets and lease liabilities following the adoption of IFRS 16 (including the reclassification
of assets previously held under finance leases):

£m
Properties 1.0
Vehicles 15.2
NBV of assets previousty held under finance leases 0.4
Total right of use assets 16.6
Properties 1.0
Vehicles 15.2
Leases previously held under finance teascs 0.2
Total lease liabilities 16.4

[Jifferences between the operating lease commitments disclosed at 31 May 2019 under 1AS 17 discounted at the incremental borrowing rate at
TJdune 2018 and lease liabilities recognised at 1 June 2018 are explained below:

fm
lindiscounted future minimum lease payments under operaling leases at 31 May 2018 24.2
Impact of discounting {8.0)
Add: finance lease liabilities recognised at 31 May 2019 0.2
Lease liabilities recognised at 1 June 2019 16.4
Of which are:
Current lease liabilities 2.0
Non-current lease liabilities 4.4
Lease liabHities recognised at 1 June 2019 16.4
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Financial statements

Notes to the Group financial statements continued
for the year ended 31 May 2020

32. Changes in accounting standards continued

IFRS 16 ‘Leases’ continued

During the year ended 31 May 2020, the application of IFRS 16 resulted in anincrease in operating profit in the consolidatez income statemen:
of £0.2 ruition in comparison to treatment under IAS 17, as operating lease payments under IAS 17 were replaced by 3 depreciation charge an
right of use assets. Profit before taxation reduced by £0.2 million with the inclusion of £0.4 million of finance costs under the new stangard.

Tre table below shows a recanciliation between profit under 1AS 17 and the new stardard, [FRS 16,

fm
Operating lease costs under [AS 17 8.0
Less: depreciation on right of use assets recagnised under IFR3 18 (5.8)
Impact on operating profit for the year ended 31 May 2020 0.2
Less: finance costs associated with lease liahilities under FRS 16 {D.4)
Impact on profit before taxation for the year ended 3t May 2020 {0.2)
During the year ended 31 May 2020, the movement on the right of use asset and lease liabilities was as follows:

Em

Right of use assets
Opening net book value 16.2
NBV of assets held under finance leases at 31 May 2019 0.4
New leases recognised 16.%
Depreciation (5.8)
Closing net book value 27.3
Lease liabilities
Upening liabilities 18.2
Finance lease liahilities recognised at 31 May 2019 0.2
New ieases recognised 5.9
Lease paymenis 6.6}
Finance cast D.4
Closing net book value 26.7
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Parent Company balance sheet
as at 31 May 2020

2020 20198
Noie £m £m

Non—current assets
Property, plant and equipment 3 0.4 0.2
Investment property 4 231 22.7
Investments 5 =3 15.3
Finance lease receivables 8 5.8 -
Reimbursement asset 03 -
Deferred tax asset 6 4,2 34

43.9 413
Current assets
Trade and other receivables 10.6 i0.g
Finance lease receivables 10 -
Cash and cash equivalents 73 041

18.9 n.o
Current labilities
Trade and other payabtes 3 (a0} {4.5}
Lease liabilities 10 (0.5) -
Net current assets 0.4 6.5
Total assets less current liabilities B3.3 47 8
Non-current Habilities
Borrowings {10.0} (3.0}
Lease liabilities 10 {6.3) --
Deferred income tax liabilities 5 {2.8) (2.8}
Retirement benefit obligations (21.0) {17.3)
Net assets 23.4 24.9
Capital and reserves
Share capital 1t 122 22
Share premium 0.9 0.9
Retained earnings 0.3 1.8
Total shareholders” funds 234 ?4.8

The Company's profit for the year was £3.6 million inciuding dividends received (2019: £3.1 million).

The Parent Company financial statements on pages 83 and B4 were approved by the Board of Directors on 4 August 2020 and were signed on its

behalf by:
R A Whiting cJd
Director Birector

The notes on pages B3 to 93 form part of these Parent Company financial staternents.
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Financial statements

Parent Company statement of comprehensive income
for the year ended 31 May 2020

2020 2013
hote £m £m
Profit for the year attributable to equity shareholders 3.6 9.1
Items that wili never be reclassified to profit or loss:
Actusnial loss on defined benefit pension scheme (4.0} .2
Tax on items that will never be reclassified to profit or loss 6 1.1 0.2
Totai other comprehensive expense (2.9} g
Total comprehensive income for the year 0.7 8.1
The notes on pages 85 to 93 form part of these Parent Company financial statements.
Parent Company statement of changes in equity
for the year ended 31 May 2020
Cailed ap Sharo Tota.
share premur Retamed sharetode-s
edpital aceount earrings funds
i fin £m £m
Balance at 1June 2018 12.2 03 7.1 20.7
Profit for the year - - 9.1 9.1
ltems that will never be reclassified to profit or loss:
Actuarial loss on defined benefit pension scheme - - (1.2} .2}
Tax onitems that will never be reclassified to profit or loss - - 0.2 0.2
Total comprehensive income for the year - - 8.1 8.1
Transactions with owners:
Dividends paid - — {(3.1) (3.1
Issue of shares - - - -
Value of employee services — - (0.1} (0.1}
Credit tg equity for equity-settled share-based payments - - 0.1 0.1
Discounting of intercompany loan receivable - - {0.3) {0.3)
Total transactions with awners — - 3.4) {3.4)
Balance at 31 May 2019 12.2 .9 1.8 24.9
Profit for the year - - 38 3.6
Iltems that will never be reclassified to profit or loss:
Actuarial loss on defined benefit pension scheme - - (6.0} (4.0)
Tax on items that will never be rectassified to profit or loss - - 1.1 1.1
Total comprehensive income for the year - - 0.7 07
Transactions with owners:
Dividends paid - - {3.2) 15.2)
CredH to equity for equity-settied share-based payments - - 1.0 1.0
Total transactions with owners - - (2.2} (2.2)
Balance at 31 May 2020 12.2 0.8 10.3 23.4

The notes on pages 85 to 83 form part of these Parent Company financial statements.
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Notes to the Parent Company financial statements
for the year ended 31 May 2020

1. Significant accounting policies

Basis of preparation

The separate financial staterments of the Company have been prepared in accordance with Financial Reporting Standard 101 Recuced
Disclosure Framework (FRS 107). on the gaing concern basis and under the historical cost convention, and 1n accordance with the Companies
Aot 2006{as apphcabie to companies using FRS 101} and applicable accounting standards in the UK. Effective TJune 2014 the Company
transitioned from previously applicable UK Generally Accepted Accounting Frinciples to FRS 101, The principal accounting policies. which
have been applied consistently to all the years presented, are set out below.

These financial statements and accompanying nates have been prepared in accordance with the reduced disclosure framework for aif years presentea.
The foliowing exemptions from the requirements of IFRS have been applied in the preparation of these financiat statements, in accordance with FRS 10
» the foliowing paragraphs of IAS 1 Presentation of Financial Statements’:

« 10{a}{statement of cash flows}):

» 1Bistatement of complisnce with alliFRS);
« 1{cash flow statement information}; ang

« 134 - 136 {capital management disclosures);

+ IFRS 7 Financial Instrurments: Disclosures’;

» |AS 7'Staternent of Cash Flows’

+ IAS 24 (paragraphs 17 and 18a) Related Party Disclosures {key management compensation): and

» IAS 24 Related Party Disclosures’ - the requirement Lo disclose related party transactions between twe or more members of a group.

As the Group financial statements include the equivaient disclosures, the Company has taken the exemptions available under FRS 101
in respect of the following disclosures:

« IFRS 2 'Share-based Payments’in respeci of Group equity-settled share-based payments: and
= certain gisclosures required by IFRS 13 Fair Value Measurement’ and disclosures required by IFRS 7 Financial Instruments: Disciosures”

Adoption of new and revised standards
The following new standards, amandments to standards or interpretations are mandatory far the first time for the financial year beginning 1 June 2014.

The Company has adopted the following new standards, amendments and interpretations now applicable. Other than the adoption of [FRE 16
these standards did not have a material effect on the Company’s results or net agsets.

Applicacle for financial year

Standard or irterpretation Cantent beg.nning on
IFRIC 23 Ungertainty over Income Tax Treatments 1June 2019
Amendment toiFRS 3 Business Combinations 1.June 2019
Amendent (o IAS 12 Income Taxes 1June 2019
Amendment 10 IAS 23 Borrowing Costs 1June 2019
Amendment to [A519 Fmployee Benefits 1June 2019
Amendment Lo IFRS 8 Financiai Instruments 1June 2019
IFRS 16 Leases 1Jdune 2018

The following standards, amendments and interpretations are not yet effective and have not been adopted early by the Company:

Apghcabte for financial year
S-andard ar interpretat on Content begianing on

Amendment to IFRS 3 Business Combinations 1June 2020

None of these standards and interpretations are expected to have a material effect on the Company’s results or net assets.

Parent Company profit and loss account

The Cormpany has not presented its own profit and loss account as permitted by Section 408 of the Companies Act 2006. The Company's profit
for the year was £3.8 million including dividends received (2019: £3.1million). The profit for the year is shown in the statement of changesin
equity and on the face of the balance sheet. There are no material differences between the profit for the year in the current and prior year and
its historical cost equivalent. Accordingly, no note of historical cost profits and losses has been presented.

Going concern
Based on financial performance to date and forecasts along with the available banhking facilities, there is a reasonable expectation that the
Company has adequate resources to continue in operational existence for the foreseeable future.

The Board has prepared cash flow forecasts for the perind to 31 May 2022, Under this base case scenario, the Company Is expected to continue
to have very significant headroom relative to the funding available to it and to comply with its banking covenants.

The Board has also considered various other severe downside scenarios, including the possibility of a second lockdown as a result of a second
wave of Covid-19. These downside scenarios excluded any mitigating actions that the Board wouid be able to take to reduce costs. Under these
scenarios, the Company would still expect to have sufficient headroom in its financing facilities.

The Company therefore continues to adopt the going concern basis of accounting in preparing the annual financial statements.
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Financial statements

Notes to the Parent Company financial statements continued
for the year ended 31 May 2020

1. Significant accounting policies continued

Dividend distribution

The distribution of a dividend to the Company’s shareholders is recognised as a liability in the Campany’s financial staterments in the period
inwhich it is approved by the Company's shareholders {please refer Lo note 8 of the Group financiai statements).

Property, plant and equipment

Praperty, plant and equipment are stated at cost. Cost includes the original purchase price of the asset and the costs attributable to bringing
the agset to its working condition for its intended use. Depreciation is calculated to write off the cost of property, plant and equipment over
their useful economic life on a straight-line basis as foliows:

Plant and machinery 3-10 years
Assets under construction are not depreciated until they are put into use.
Borrowing costs that are directly attributable to the construction of gualifying assets are capitalised.

investment properties

Dwrer-occupied land and buldings owned by the Company and which are rented to subsidiary companies are treated as investment propertiesin
accordance with |AS 40 Investment Property’. investment properties are valued using the cost model. Investment properties are stated at cosl,
which includes the original purchase price of the asset and the costs attributable to bringing the asset to its working conditian for its intended use.
Depreciationis calculated to write off the cost of the investrnent property over its usefui economic fife on a straight-line basis over 10 - 50 years.

Investment in subsidiary undertakings
Investments in Broup undertakings are stated at cost, uniess their value has been impaired in which case they are vajued at the lower of their
realisable value or value in use.

Finance lease receivabies and lease liabilities
The Company holds the head lease on a property which is occupicd by a subsidiary company under a sub-lease arrangement. The Company
recognises both afinance lease receivable and a lease liability in respect of this arrangement.

The finance lease receivable is measured initially st the amount of the net investment in the lease, which is the gross investment in the lease
discounted using the implicit interest rate in the lease, in accordance with IFRS 16. The gross investment in the lease is the aggregate of the
lease payments receivable. Fach lease payment received is aflocated between the receivable and finance income. The finance income is
credited to the income statement aver the lease period so as Lo produce a constant periodic recognitien of interest on the remaining balance
of the asset for each period.

At the inception of 8 contract, the Comparny performs an assessment to determine whether the contract is, or contains, a lease. Key aspects of
this determination are the specific identification of an asset that 1s subject to the lease, and that the lease conveys the right to direct and
control the use of the identified asset for a period of time.

Where a contract is determined to contain a tease, the lease liability is recognised from the commencement date of the lease, the
commencement date being defined as the date at which the lessor makes the underlying asset available for use. The lease liability is
recognised at an amount equal to the present value of the future lease payments during the lease term.

Lease payments are discounted using the Company’s incrementat borrowing rate, which is 2%.

Oeferred taxation

Deferred taxation is recognised in respect of all timing differences that have originated but not reversed at the balance sheet date where
transactions or events that result in an obligation to pay more tax in the future or a right to pay less tax in the future have occurred at the
halance sheet date,

Deferred income tax is determined using tax rates(and laws)} that have been enacted or substantively enacted by the balance sheel date ang
are expected to apply when Lhe related deferred income Lax asset is realised or the deferred income tax fiability is settled.

Deferred tax assets are regarded as recoverable and recognised in the financial staterments when, on the basis of availatle evidence,

itis more likely than not that there will be suitable taxable profits from which the future reversal of the timing differences can be deducted.
The recaverability of tax losses is assessed by reference te forecasts which have been prepared and approved by the Board. The deferred tax
assets and liabilities are not discounted.

Provisions

Provisions are recognised when the Company has a present legal or constructive obligation as a result of past events, it is probable that an
outflow of reseurces will be required to settle the obligation and the amount has been reliably estimated. Provisions are not recognised for
future operating losses.
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1. Significant accounting policies continued

Trade and other receivables

Trade receivables are recognised initigily at fair value and subsequently measured at amortised cost using the effective interest method,

less provision for impairment. Under IFRS 9, effective from 1 June 2018, the Group elected 10 use the simpli‘ied approach to measure the

logs aliowance at an amount equal 1o lifetime expected credit losses for trade receivables, Under the new accounting standard, tne Group
continags Lo establish a provision for impairment of trade receivables when there is objective evidence that the Group will not be able to
collect allamounts due according to the origiral terms of the receivables. Significant financial difficulties of the counterparty. probabiiity that
the counterparty will enter bankruptcy or financiai reorganisation, and default or delinquency in payments arc considered indicators that the
trade receivabic is impaired. In addition, IFRS 9 requires the Group to consider forward-looking information and the probatulity of default when
calculating expected credit losses. The measurement of expected credit losses reflects an unbiased and probability weighted amount that is
determined by evaluating the range of possible cutcomes as well as incorporating the time value of money. The Group considers reasonable
and supportable customer-specific and market information about past events, current conditions and forecasts of future cconomic conditions
when measuring expected credit losses. The armount of the provision is the difference netween the carrying amount and the present value of
estimated future cash flows of the asset, discounted, where material, at the original effective interest rate. The carrying amount of tne asset
is reduced through the use of a provision for recewvables impairment, and the amount of the loss is recognised in the income statement

within administrative expenses. When a trade receivable is uncollectable, it is written of f against the provision for receivables impairment.
Subsequent recoveries of amounts previously written off are credited against administrative expenses in the income statemant.

Cash and cash equivalents
Cash and cash equivalents include cash in hand, deposits held at call with banks and bank overdrafis. Bank gverdrafts are shawn within
horrowings in current liabitities on the balance sheet.

Trade and other payables
Trade and other payables are recagnised initially at fair value and subsequently measured at amortised cost using the effective interest method.

Retirement benefit costs
The Company operates various pension schemes, including gefined contribution and defined benefit schemaes.

Defined contribution schemes

For defined contribution schemes, the Group pays contributions to publicly or privately administered pension insurance schemes on a
mandatory, contractual or voluntary basis. The contributions are recognised as an employee benefit expense in the income statement when
they are due. The assets of the schemes are held separately from those of the Group in funds under the control of trustees.

Defined benefit scheme
The Company is the sponsoring empleyer in a funded Group operated defined benefit pension scheme, the NWF Group Benefits Scheme,
and has therefore recognised the defined iiability, in full, on the Company batance sheet.

The liability recognised in the balance sheet in respect of defined benefit schemes is the present vaiuc of the defined benefit obligation at the
balance shect date less the fair value of scheme assets, together with adjustments for unrecognised actuarial gains or losses and past service
costs. The defined benefit obligation is calculated annually by independent actuaries using the Projected Unit Credit Methed. The present value
of the defined benefit obligation ie determined by giscounting the estimated future cash outflows using interest rates of high quality corporate
bonds that are denominated in the currency in which the benefits will be paid and that have terms ta maturity approximating to the terms of the
related pension liability.

The net pensicon finance cost is determined by applying the discount rate, used to measure the defined benefit pension obligation at the
beginning of the accounting period, to the nel pension obligation at the beginning of the accounting period taking into account any changes
in the net pension obligalion during the period as a result of cash contributions and benefit payments.

Pension scheme expenses are charged to the income statement within administrative expenses.

Actuarial gains and losses are recognised immediately in the statement of comprehensive income. Net defined benefit pension scherne
defizits before tax relief are presented scparately on the balance sheet within nan-current liabilities. The attributable deferred income tax
asset is included within the deferred income tax asset in the balance sheet and is subject to the recognition criteriz as set out in the accounting
policy on deferred iIncaome tax.

Share-based payments
Inthe year ended 31 May 2020, the Company operated one {2019: ane}equity-settled share-based payment plan. Equity-settled share-based
payments are measured at fair value (excluding the effect of non-market-based vesting conditions) at the date of grant.

The fair value determined at the grant date of equity-settled share-based payments issued to the Company's emptoyees is expensed on &
straight-1ine basis over the vesting period, based on the Comaany’s estimate of shares that will eventually vest and adjusted for the effect
of non- market-based vesting conditions.

The fair vaiue determined at the grant date of equity-settled share-based payments issued to employees of subsidiary undertakings is
recognised as an addition to the cost of investment in subsidiary undertakings on a straight-iine basis over the vesting period. based an the
Company's estimate of shares that will eventually vest and adjusted for the offect of non-market-based vesting conditions.

Fair value is measured by the use of a Black Scholes model. The expected life used in the model has been adjusted, based on management’s
best estimate, for the effects of non-transferabilily, exercise restrictions and behavicural considerations.

Employer social security contributions payable in connection with the grant of share awards are consideres an integral part of the grant itself
and the charge is treated as a cash-setiled transaction.

Share capital
Ordinary shares are classified as equity. Incremental costs directly attributable to the issue of new shares are shown in equity as a deduction,
net of tax, from the proceeds of issue.
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Financial statements

Notes to the Parent Company financial statements continued
for the year ended 31 May 2020

1. Significant accounting policies continued

Critical accounting estimates

With the exception of Valuation of acquired intangibles’, the critical accounting estimates set out in the Group financial statements also
apply to the Company.

2. Remuneration of Directors and auditors
Details of Directors’ remuneration are shown in the Directors Remuneration Report on page 38. Details of auditors' remuneration are shown

innote b of the Group financial statements.

3. Property, plant and equipment

Plant ang
nrachingesy Tota
Fm £im
Cost
At 1dune 2018 0.7 0.7
Addilions 0.2 0.2
At 31 May 2020 0.9 0.9

Accumulated depreciation
At 1June 2019 0.5 0.5
Charge for the year

At 31 May 2020 0.5 0.5
Carrying amount

At 31 May 2020 0.4 0.4
At 31 May 2018 0.2 0.7

4. Investment property

Investmert
property Total
£m £m

Cost
Ar1Junc 2019 33.0 330
Additions 11 11
At 31 May 2020 34.1 34.1
Accumulated depreciation
At Tdune 2019 10.3 10.3
Charge for the year 0.7 0.7
At 31 May 2020 Hn.o 1n.o
Carrying amount
At 31May 2020 231 23.1
At 31 May 2018 227 227

The fair value of the investment property at 3t May 2020 was £33.9 million {31 May 2019: £30.4 million). The valuation s based on a market
valuation by anindependent RICS valuer with recent experience in the location and category of the asset being valued. Rental income of
£2.7 millicn (2019: £2.7 million)and direct operating expenses of £2.2 million(2013: £2.0 million) arising from investment property have been
recognised in the income statement,

5.Investments

m
Cost and carrying amount
At YJdune 2019 15.3
At 31 May 2020 15.3
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5. Investments continued
The Directors believe that the carrying value of the investments is supported by their underlying net assets.

The Company directly owns the whole of the issued ordinary shares of the following subsidiary undertakings:

Carmpany Business ot vity
NWF Agriculture Holdings Limited Holding company - Feeds operations
NWF Distribution Holdings Limited Holding company - Food cperations
NWF fuels Holdings Limited Holding company - Fuets operations
Horme Counties Fuels Limited Dormant
Dragon Petroleum Limited Jormant
Lincolnshire Fuels Limited Oormant
North Weslern Farmers Limited Jormant
NWF Limited Jormant

All of the above companics arc registered and ooerate in England and Wales. The registered office for all directiy owned subsidiary
undertakings is Wardle, Nantwich, Cheshire CW5 BBP.

The Campany also indirectly owns all of the issued ardinary shares of the following subsidiary undertakings:

Company Blsiness activity
NWF Agriculture Lirnited Supplier of animal feedstuffs and seeds
New Breed (UK) Limited Supplier of animal feedstuffs and seeds
Baughey Distribution Limited Warehousing and food distribution
NWF Fuels Limited Fuet distribution
Consols Qits Limited Fuel distribution
Caldo Fuel DIl Limited {formerly Figaro Number Two Limited} Fueldistribution
David Herman tlodge Group Limited Fueldistribution
Bavid Hermen Hodge Limited Fueldistribution
Hermon Hodge Limited Fuel distribution
Preston Fuels Lirnited Fuel distribution
Ron Darch & Sons Co Limited Fuet distribution
Midland Fuel Jil Supplies Limited Barmant
S.C. Feeds Limited Dormant
Jim Peet (Agriculture] Limited Dormant
Staftordshire Fuels Limited Dormant
Evesons Fuels Limited Daormant
Swan Petraleurn Limited Dormant
Evesons(Worcestershire} Limited Dorrmant
Nutrition Express Limited Dormant
Browrns of Burwell Limited Dormant
Broadland Fuels Limited Dormant
Martlet Fuels Limited Dormant
JGW Thtomas & Son Limited Dormant
Fuel 0il Supply Co Limited Dormant
Knutsford Domestic Fuel Ol Company Limited Bormant
Figaro Number One Limited Bormant

All of the above companies are registered and operate in England and Wales. The registered office for all indirectly owned subsidiary
undertakings is Wardle. Nantwich, Cheshire CW5 BBF.

Under Section 4794 of the Companies Act 2006. exemption from an audit of the financial statements for the financial year ended 31 May 2020 has
been taken by Midland Fuel Oif Supplies Limited {02299179) and Caldo Fuel 0il Limited {0312715). As required, the Company guarantees alt cutstanding
liabilities to which the subsidiary companies listed above are subject at the end of the financial year, until they are satisfied in full and the guarantee
is enfarceable against the parent undertaking by any person to whom the subsidiary companies listed above is liable inrespect of those liabilities.
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Financial statements

Notes to the Parent Company financial statements continued

for the year ended 31 May 2020

6. Deferred taxation

The following are the principal cateqories of deferred tax assets and liabilities recognised by the Cornpany and the movements therean:

Accelerated Setirement

ax bensfit
depreciation ob igations otz
£m Em £m
Al June 2008 28 (3.3 (0.5}
Credit to equity — . .Y
At 31 May 2020 2.8 (4.2) (1.6)
7. Trade and other receivables
2020 2013
£m £m
Amagunts owed by Group undertakings 7.5 9.5
Prepayments and accrued income 11 0.4
Corparation tax recoverable 1.9 0.3
VAT recoverable [+ R ] 0
10.8 10.9

All of the amounts owed by Group undertakings shown above are repayable on demand. Interest has been charged on these Group i0ans in the

year at 2.0%.(2078: 2.0% ) per annum. A provision of £0.2 million {2019: £0.3 million} against amounts cwed by Group undertakings has been

recognised in accordance with IFRS 8.

8. Finance lease receivables

Finance lease receivables are comprised of the following balance sheet amounts:

2020 2019
£m £

Current
Amounts receivable within one year 1.0 —
Non-current
Armounts receivable afler rmore than one year 5.6 -
Total B.8 -
Lease receivables are as follows:

2020 2019

£m £m

Not more thah ohe year
Minimum lease receivables 1.2 —
interest element (0.2) —
Present value of minimum lease receivables 1.0 —
Between one and five years
Minimum lease receivables 5.1 -
interost clement {0.5) -
Present value of minimum lease receivables 4.6 -
More than five years
Minimum lease receivables 10 -
intarest clement - —
Present value of minimum lease receivables 1.0 —
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9. Trade and other payables

2020 P

£m ™

rade payabies 0.3 05
Amounts owed 1o Group Undertakings 0.8 1.8
Accruals and deferred income 3.0 2.1
Other taxation and social security 0.1 03
4.0 4.5

The Group has a net bank gverdraft facility amounting to £1.0 milhon, none of which has been utilised by the Company at 31 May 2020
{31 May 2019: £1.0 milion}:. This facility is secured by way of unscheduled mortgage debentures provided by the Company and certain subsidiaries
within the Group to The NatWest Group which incorporate a fixed charge over trade receivables and floating charges over all their other assets.

Ali of the amounts owed to Group undertakings shown above are repayable on demand. Included in these amounts is £8.6 million (31 May 2019:
£1.8 miltion} which represents [nans from Group undertakings. Interest has been charged on these Group loans inthe year at 2.0%{2019: 2.0%)
per annum. Any remaining amounts are non-interest-bearing trade balances.

10. Lease liabilities

Property fota:
f£m £
Cost
At 3t May 2019 — -
Recognition of lease liability under }FRS 16 - -
Opening lease liabilities recognised at 1 June 2019 - -
Additions 5.9 6.9
Lease hability payments(including finance costs) (0.1 (0.1
Finance costs - -
At 31 May 2020 6.8 B.B
Lease liabilties are comprised of the following balance sheet amounts:
2020 2018
£m Fm
Current
Amounts due within one year 0.5 -
Non-current
Amounts due after more than one year B.3 -
Total B.8 -
Leasze liabilities are as follows:
2020 2013
£m £
Not more than one year
Minimum lease payments 0.6 -
Interest element {0.3) -
Present value of minimum lease payments 0.5 -
Between one and five years
Minimum lease payments 5.8 —
interest element {0.3) -
Present value of minimum lease payments 5.2 -
More than five years
Minimum lcase payments 1.1 -
interest element — _
Present value of minimum lease payments 1.1 —
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Financial statements

Notes to the Parent Company financial statements continued
for the year ended 31 May 2020

1. Called up share capital

N.rmber
of shares Toral
nN0 fm
Authorised: ordinary shares of 25p each
Balance at VJune 2018, 31 May 2019 and 31 May 2020 80.000 20.0
kamhber
of shares Toia
gulus} £m
Allotted and fully paid: ordinary shares of 25p each
Balance at | June 2018 48,860 12.2
Issue of shares 90 —
Balance at 31 May 2019 48.750 12.2
Issue of shares - —
Balance at 31 May 2020 48,750 12.2

During the year ended 31 May 2020, no shares (2019: 83,920} with an aggregate nominal valug of £Nil{2019: £22.480) wergissued under the
Group's conditional Performance Share Plan and SAYE share option scheme.

The maximum total number of ordinary shares. which may vest in the future in respect of conditional Pe-formance Share Plan awards
ovtstanding at 81 May 2020, amounted to 1,441,604 (31 May 2019: 1,216,945). These shares will only be issued subject to satisfying certain
performance criteria(see the Directors Remuneration Report and note 25 of the Group financial statements).

12. Employee benefit expense

2020 2019

£m firm

Wageos and salaries 1.8 16
Social security cosls 0.2 0.2
Share-based payments 1.1 01
Other pension costs 0.1 0.1
3.2 2.0

The average monthly number of persons(including Directars)employed in the Gormpany during the year was 15(2019: 14).

13. Related party transactions
The Cormnpany has taken advanLage of the exemption included in 1AS 24 'Related Party Disclosures’ to not disclose details of transactions with
Group undertakings, on the grounds that it is the parent company of a group whose financial statements are publicly available.

Directors’ transactions

T P Acton purchased, in the normai course of business and under normal terms and conditions, goods to the value of £1,693 as a customer
of the Group in the year ended 31 May 2020 (31 May 2019: £2,655). At 31 May 2020, the amount ocutlstanding was £NiH{31 May 2019: £Nit).
During the year, the highest amount outstanding totalled £724 (2019: £904).

R A Whiting purchased, in the nermal course of business and under normal terms and congditions, goods to the value of £2.277 as a
customer of the Group In the year ended 31 May 2020 (2019: £2,304). At 31 May 2020, the amount outstanding was a credit balance of
£345(31 May 2018: £841 credit). During the year, the balance remained in credit{2019: the baiance remained in credit).

3 R Andrew purchased, in the normal course of business and under normal terms and conditions, goods to the value of £1.230 as a customer of
the Group in the year ended 31 May 2020(2019: £1,573). At 31 May 2020, the amount cutstanding was £310(31 May 2018: £345). During the year,
the highest amount cutstanding totalled £540(2019: £575)

Details of the Directors’ interests in the ordinary share capital of the Company are provided in the Directors' Report.
4. Share-based payments
The Performance Share Plan{the LTIF}

The Company operates a8 Performance Share Plan for senior executives, further details of which can be found in the Directors’ Remuneration
Report in the Group financial statements.

Under the LTIP, the Company has made awards of conditional shares to certain Directors and employees, details of which can be found
in note 25 of the Group financial statements.

The Company recognised total expenses of £1.1 million in respect of the LTIP's equity-settled share-based payment transactions in the year
ended 31 May 2020({Z019: £0.1 million).
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15. Pensions

The Company is the sponsoring employer in the NWF Group Benefits Scheme, a pension arrangement providing benefits based on final
pensionable pay. Detaiis of the NWF Group Benefits Scherme, its liabilities and assets, together with the principal assumptions used in the
valuation of its labilities, are given in note 24 to the Group financial slatements.

Contributions into the scheme and amounts charged to the profit and foss account during the year were £2.1millicn (2019: £2.1 million).
There were no outstanding or prepaid contributions at the balance sheet date (31 May 201%: £Nil).

The Company also operated a money purchase scheme during the year and contributions during the year amounted to £23.1 million
{2019- £0.1 mitlion). There were no outstanding or prepaid contributions at the balance sheet date (31 May 2013: £Nit).

16. Contingent labilities

The Company's bank facilities are provided under an arrangement with The NatWest Graup. The Company has pledged security in favour of
the bank over certain frechotd fand and buildings with a carrying value at 31 May 2020 of £22.0 million {31 May 2013: £22.6 million). Unscheduled
mortgage debentures have also been provided by the Company and certain subsidiaries to the bank which incorporate a fixed charge over trade
receivables and fioating charges over all other assets.

The Company has an arrangement with the bank under which cash balances are offsel against borrowings. The Company has given a guaraniee
in respect of the net bank borrowings within the Group under this arrangement amounting to £17.2 miltion at 31 May 2020(31 May 2018: £13.0 million}.

The Company has a bank guarantee agreement with The NatWest Group, under which the bank provides a facility which allows the Company to
request that the bank issues guarantees to third party suppliers for general business purposes. The maximum total facility value is £4.0 million
hut this was not utilised in the current or prior year,

The Company and certain subsidiaries have granted a fixed and floating charge in favour of the trustees of a defined benefit pension scheme
(the NWT Group Benefits Scheme’). This security, which is subardinated to the bank, creates a fixed charge over certain freehold land and
buildings, subject to a maximum value of £5.0 milticn {31 May 2019: £5.0 million). and a floating charge over all other assets.

The Company has also given certain guarantees to third parties in respect of operating lease and supply agreement commitments due from
varipus subsidiary companies.

Ng loss s expected to result from these arrangements.
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Shareholder information
Annual General Meeting ~ Covid-19 arrangements

As you are aware Covid-19 has brought same unprecedented chailenges and tragic conseguences with it It has meant a rethink around how
companies gperate. Inevitably, this has had animpact onour ability to run this year's AGM in the manner in which our sharenolders are accustomed.

The 2020 AGM will be broadcast from NWF's Head Office in Wardie a1 10.30a.m. on 24 September 2020. However, Government guidance relating
1o Covid-18 restricts public gatherings, and as such sharehaolders wili nat e permitted to attend this meeting in person.

Although physical attendance wilt not be permitted. we have worked hard to be able to bring the AGM to our shareholders electronically.
Sharcholders will be able to watch the meeting remotely.

Sharcholders are invited to watch the AGM via a live webcast which you can access by logging on to httpst//webeasting.brrmedia.co.ukibroadee
st/bfledba4864c39bernsbbZebl. We would strongiy encourage sharenholders to submit questions in advance of the meeting &y emailing
investar.reiations@nwf.co.uk with the heading 'AGM 2020 by close of play on 17 September 2020. The webcast does not enabie live guestiong
during the AGM.

If you cannat join the AGM electronically on the day, we would still like to understand the themes and issues of concern to you, as sharehalders.
vYou may send your comments to the above email address provided.

Sadly, we must insist an non-attendance not only for legai reasons, but because it is the right thing to do for the safety of our colleagues and
sharehofders. We therefore encourage shareholders not to Lravel 1o the venue on the day, as thase who do will, regretiabily. be lurneg away.

The format Notice of Meeting follows this letter.
Your vote
Your vote is important to us. You can:

+ Submit a form of proxy electronically by accessing the shareholder portal at www.signalshares.com. You can vote online by registering first,
using your surname, investor code and your postcode - click on ‘vote onling’ on the home page and follow the instructions.

+« Use the service offered by Euroclear UK & Ireland Limited for members of CREST.

« Compiete and return a paper form of proxy {enclosed with this Notice).

Voting before the AGM
Your vote counts and all shareholders are encouraged to vote in advance. The deadlines for using CREST, online ar the paper forms of proxy can
he found in the Notes to the Notice of the AGM below.

Joining the AGM on the day
Please use the link supplied: https://wehcasting.brimedia.co.uk/broadcast/Sfledbd4B884c395ee4bb2eb .

Any questions must be submitted in advance by close of play on 17 September 2020.
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Notice of Annual General Meeting

Natice s hereby given that the AGM (the Meeting)of NWF Group plc{the Company’)will be hetd at NWF Group Head Office, Warcle, Nantwich,
Cheshire CW5S 6BP, on 24 September 2020 at 10.30a.m. 1o transact the business as specified below.

Following the Government's Stay at Home measures, and in compliance with official guidance, we draw your immediate attention to the
information contained on page 97, ‘Notes to the Notice of AGM".

Ordinary Business

1.

T e e R

To receive. adopt and approve the Company's annual accounts for the financial year ended 31 May 2020 together with the Directors’ Report
and Auditors’ Repart on those accounts.

To declare a final dividend of 5.9p per share for the year ended 31 May 2020 payable ta sharcholders on the register on 8 November 2020,
To re-elect Philip Acton as a Director of the Company.

To re-elect David Downie as a Uirector of the Company.

To re-elect Richard Whiting as a Director of the Company.

To re-elect Christopher Belsham as a Director of the Company.

To elect Richard Armitage as a Director of the Company who, having been appointed since the last AGM, is to be propased for election
inaccorgance with the Artictes of Association of the Company.

To reappoint PricewaterhouseCoopers LLP as auditors to hold office from the conclusion of the Meeting to the canciusion of the next
Meeting at which accounts are laid before the Commpany and that the Directors be authorised te set the auditors’ remuneration.

Special Business
Directors’ authority to allot shares

9.

That the Board of Birectors of the Company [the Board') be generaliy and unconditionally authorised to allot Relevant Securities(as
hereinafter defined}):

9.1 up toan aggregate nominal amount of £4,062.537{the equivalent of 18,250,147 ordinary shares); and

9.2 comprising equity securities{as defined by Section 560 of the Caompanies Act 2006 {'the Act’))up to an aggregate nominal amount of
£8.125,074 {the equivalent of 32,500,294 ordinary shares){such amount to be reduced by the nominal amount of any Relevant
Securities aliotted under paragraph 3.1above) in connecticn with an offer by way of a rights 1ssue:

{a} toholgers of ordinary shares in propertion(as nearly as may be practicable)to their respective existing holdings; and
(B} to holders of other equity securities as required by the rights of those securities,

but subject to such limits, exclusions or other arrangements as the Board may deem necessary or expedient in relation to treasury shares,
fractional entitiements, record dates, legal, regulatary or practical problems in or under the laws of any territory or the requirements of any
regulatory body or stock exchange,

provided that this authority shall, unless rencwed, varied or revoked by the Company, expire on the date which is 15 months after the date
of this AGM or. if carier, the date of the next AGM of the Company save that the Company may, before such expiry, make offers or agreements
which would or might require Relevant Securities to be allotted and the Board may ailot Relevant Securities in pursuance of sueh oifer

or agreement notwithstanding that the authority conferred by this resolution has expired.

This Resolution 8 revokes and replaces all unexercised authorities previously granted to the Board 1o allot Relevant Securities but without
prejudice te any allotment of shares or grant of rights already made, offered or agreed to be made pursuant to such authorities.

For the purposes of this Resolution 9, ‘Relevant Securities’ means:

« sharesinthe Company other than sharcs allotted pursuant to:
+ anemployec share scheme (as defined by Section 1166 of the Act):
- aright to subscribe for shares in the Company where the grant of the right itself constituted a Relevant Security; or
+ aright to convert securities into shares in the Company where the grant of the right itself constituted a Relevant Security; or

+ any right ta subscribe for or to convert any security into shares in the Company other than rights to subscribe for or convert any security
into shares allotted pursuant to an employee share scheme (as defined by Section 1166 of the Act). References to the atlotment of
Relevant Securities in this Resolution 9include the grant of such rights.
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Shareholder information
Notice of Annual General Meeting continued

Special Business continued
General disapplication of pre-emption rights
10. That, subject to the passing of Resolution 9 on page 85, the Board be and it is hereby empowered, pursuant to Section 570 of the Act. to

allot equity securities (as defined in Section 560 of the Act] for cash pursuant to the authority conferred by Resolution 8 on page 85 or to sel
treasury shares as if Section B61 of the Act did not apply to any such allotment or sale. provided that this power shall be limited to:

10.1 tre allotment of eguity securities in connection with a rights issue or other pro rata offer in favour of holders of eguity securities (but in
the case of the authority granted under paragraph 9.2 of Resolution 8 on page 95, by way ot a rights issue only} where the equity
securitics respectively attributable to the interests of all those persons at such record dates as the Board may determine aro
proportionate (as nearly as may belto the respective numbers of equity securities then held by them subject to such limits, exciusions
or other arrangements as the Board may consider necessary or expedient to deal with treasury shares, fractional entitlements, record
dates, practical or iegal difficulties under the laws aof any territary or the requirements af any regulatory body or stock exchange or by
virtue of equity securities being represented by depositary receipts or any other matter whatsoever; and

10.2the allotment {otherwise than pursuant to paragraph 10.1 above) of equity securities up to an aggregate nominal amount of £609,381,
and in each case such power shall expire upon the expiry of the general authsrity conferred by Resolution 8 on page 95, except that the
Company may before such expiry make offers or agreements which would or might require equity securities to be allotted and/or
shares held by the Company in treasury to be sold or transferred after such expiry and the Board may allot equity securities and/or sel-
or transfer shares held by the Company in treasury in pursuance of such offers or agreements as if the power conferred by this
resolution had not expired.

All previous unutilised authorities under Sections 570 and 573 of the Act shall cease to have effect [save to the extent that they are
exercisable by reason of any offer or agreement made prior to the date of this Resolution 10 which would or might require shares o be
aliotted on or after that date.

Additional disapplication of pre-emption rights

Toresolve as a special resolution that, subject to the passing of Resolution 8, the Directors be empowered in addition to any authority
granted under Resolution 10 to allot equity securities (as defined by the Companies Act 2006} for cash under the authority given by that
Resohution 9(set out in this Notice of Meeting) and/or to sell ordinary shares heid by the Company as treasury shares for cash as if Section
5671 of the Companies Act 2006 did not apply to any such allotment or sale, provided that such authority be:

« limited te the allotment of equity securities or sale of treasury shares up to a nominal amount of £609,381; and

« used only for the purpose of fingncing (or refinancing. if the authority is to be used within six months after the original transaction)which
the Directors of the Company determine to be an acquisition or other capital investments of a kind contemplated by the Statement of
Principles on Disapplying Pre-Emption Rights most recently published by the Pre-Emption Group prior to the date of this Notice of Meeting,

and shall expire upen the expiry of the general authority conferred by Resoiution 8 on page 85{unless previously revoked or varied by the
Company in a general meeting), provided that the Company may before that date make offers and enter into agreement which would, or
might, require equity securities to be allotted after the authority ends and the Directors may allot equity securities under any such offer or
agreement as if the authority has not ended.
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Notes to the Notice of Annual General Meeting

These notes are important and require your immediate attention.

.

2.

Shareholders are not entitied to participate in the AGM (‘the Meeting'}in any way other than as is provided for in these notes.

Shareholders are not entitled to attend the Meeting In person and will be refused entry. Attendants in person will be restricted to those
shareholders'names on the form of proxy, whose attendance is required to form a quorum and subsequently falls within the ‘essential for
work purposes’ exception to the Government's Stay at Home restrictions.

Tha Meeting will be live streamed anline. Sharehaolders entitled to attend may only do so virtually by accessing the following link:
https://webcasting.brrmedia.co.uk/broadcast/Sfledbd4864c395ep4bbZebl.

Shareholders may submit questions to be addressed during the Meeting by emailing their question(s) to investor.relations@wf.co.ux no
later than close of play on 17 September 2020. Duestions received after this date will not be addressed Tn the Meeting or in writing afterwards.

£ shareholder entitled to vote at the Meeting is entitled to appoint another person of his/her choice as that sharehoider’s proxy to exercise
ali or any of that sharehaolder’'s rights to attend and to speak and vote st the Meeting on his/her behalf. A shareholder may appoint more than
one proxy in relation to the Meeting, provided that each praxy is appointed to exercise the rights attached to a different share ar shares held by
that shareholder.

A form of proxy for use in connection with the Meeting is enclosed with the docurment of which this Notice forms part. Addresses(including
electronic addresses) in this document arc included strictly for the purpeses specified and not for any ather purpose.

To appoint a proxy or proxies, shareholders must complete a form of proxy, signit and return it, together with the power of attorney or any
other authority under which 1t is signed. or a notarially certified copy of sueh authority, to the Company's registrars, Link Asset Services,
PXS, The Registry, 34 Beckenham Road, Beckenham, Kent BR3 4TU, so that it is received no later than 10.30a.m, on 22 September 2020.

Only those members entered on the register of members of the Company at the close of business on 22 September 2020 or, in the event
that this Meeting is adjourned. in the register of members as at the close of tusiness on the day two days before the date of any adjourned
Meeting, shali be entitled to attend and vote at the Meeting in respect of the number of ordinary shares registered in their names at that
time. Changes to the entries on the register of members after the close of business on 22 September 2020 or, in the event that this
Meeting is adjourned, in the register of members after the close of business on the day two days before the date of the adjourned meeting,
shall be disregarded in determining the rights of any person to attend or vote at the Meeting.

CREST members who wish to appoint a proxy or proxies through the CREST electronic proxy appointment service may do so for the AGM
to be held at 10.30a.m. on 24 September 2020 and any adjournment{s)thereof by using the procedures described in the CREST Manual. CREST
personal members or other CREST sponscred members, and those CREST members who have appointed a voting service provider, should
refer 1o their CREST sponsors or voting service providens), who wilt be able to take the appropriate action on their behalf,

Inorder for a proxy appeintment or instruction made by means of CREST to be valid, the appropriate CREST message ('a CREST Proxy
instruction’) must be properly authenticated in accordance with Euroclear UK & Ireland Limited's specifications and must contain the
information requircd for such instructions, as described in the CREST Manua!. The message must be transmitied so as to be received by
the Companys agent, | ink Asset Services (CREST Participant 1D: RAT0), no later than 48 hours before the time appointed for the Meeting.
Far this purpose, the time of receipt will be taken to be the time {as determined by the time stamp applied to the message by the CREST
Application Host) from which the Cempany’s agent is able to retrieve the message by enguiry to CREST in the manner prescribed by CREST.

CREST members and, where applicable, their CREST spensor or voting service provider should note that Eurociear UK & lreland Limited
does not make available special procedures in CREST for any particular messages. Normal system timings and limitations will therefore
apply in relation to the input of CREST Proxy Instructions. ILis the responsibility of the CREST member concerned to take {or, if the CRFST
member is a CREST perscnal member or sponsored member or has appointed a voling service provider, to procure that his CREST sponsor
or voting service provider takes) such action as shall be necessary Lo ensure Lhat a message is transrmitied by means of Lhe CREST systern
by any particular time. In this connection, CREST members and, where applicable, their CREST sponsor or voting service provider are
referred in particular to those sections of the CRFST Manual concerning practical limitations of Lhe CREST system and timings.

The Company may treat as invalid a CREST Proxy Instructionir the circumstances set out in Regulation 35(5)al of the Uncertificated
Securities Regulations 2001.
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Shareholder information
Notes to the Notice of Annual General Meeting continued

% Inthe event of a conflict between a blank form of proxy and a form of proxy which states the number of shares to which it applies. the
specific form of proxy shall be counted first, regardiess of whether it was sent or received before or after the blank form of proxy, anc any
remaining shares in respect of which you are the registered hoider wili he apportioned to the blank form of groxy. You may not appoint mare
than one proxy to exercise rights attached to any one share. To appoint more than one proxy, you should contact Link Asset Services, PXS,
The Registry, 34 Beckenham Road, Beckenham, Kent BR3 4TU.

[a]

You will require your username and password to access the portal. if you have not previously registered to use the shareholder portal then
1his can be done using your investor code (1VC)which can be found on a share certificate or old tax voucher or by contacting the registrars,
along with your surname and postcode - click on vote onfine’ on the home page and follow the instructions. f you have forgotten your login
details, then you can request a reminder via the portal. If you change your mind you can place your vate again any time up untif voting
cioses, which will be 48 hours priar to the Meeting.

“0. Any corparation which is a member can appaint one or more corporate representatives who may exercise on its behalf all of its powers asa
member provided that they do not do so inrelation to the same shares.

11. Shareholders are not entitled to vote by any means other than as are provided for in these notes.

12. Copies of the following documents will be availabie for inspection at the Company’s registered office during normal working hours on any
weekday (Saturdays. Sundays and public holidays excepted) from the date of this Notice until the date of the AGM and at the place of the
AGM for 15 minutes prior to and during the Meeting:

+ copies of all service agreemenls or letters of appointment under which the Directors of the Company are ecmployed by the Company.

13. Except as provided above, members who have general queries about the Meeting should use the following mears of communication{no
other methods of communication will be accepted):

calling Link Asset Services: +44 (G371 664 0300 Caiis are charged at our standard geographic rate and will vary by provider. Calls outside
the United Kingdom will be charged at the applicable international rate. Lines are open between 89.00a.m. and 5.30p.m. Monday to Friday
excluding public holidays in England and Wales.
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Explanatory notes to the Notice of Annual General Meeting

Ordinary Business
tach resolution will be preposed as an Ordinary Resolution. This means that, for each of the resciutions to be passed, more than half of the
vales cast must be in favour of the resolution.

The Drdinary Resolutians are entirely routine and deal with the presentation of the Annuat Report and Accounts for the financial year ended

31 May 2020, the declaration of a final divideng, the reappointment of each of Philip Acton, David Downie, Richard Whiting and Christopher Belsham
as a Director of the Company. the election of Richard Armitage as a Oirector of the Company and the reappointment of PricewaterhouseCoopers LLFP
as auditors and the autharisation of the Directors to set the auditors remuneration.

Special Business
Resolution 8 will be proposed as an Ordinary Resolution and Resolution 10 will be proposed as a Special Resolution. In order for a Special Resolution
1o be passed, at least three-guarters of the vates cast must be in favour of the resolution.

Resolution 9 - authority to allot shares (Qrdinary Resolution)
The authority conferred on the Directors at last year's AGM to allot the share capital of the Company expires at the conclusion of the forthcoming
AGM. The Board recommends that this authority be renewed.

Paragraph 9.1 of Resolution 8 will, if passed. authorise the Directors Lo allot the Company's unissued shares up to a maxirnum norminal amount
of £4062.537, which represents an amount which is equal to one-third of the aggregate nominal value of the issued and uncenditicnatly allotteg
ordinary share capital of the Company{excluding treasury shares}as it was at close of business on 31 July 2020. As at close of business on

31 Jduby 2020 the Company did nol hold any treasury shares.

PParagraph 9.2 of Resolution 9 will, if passed, authorise the Directors to allot unissued shares in connection with a rights or other issue in favour
of holders of equity securities {which would include ordinary shareholders) as required by the rights of those securities, up tc a maximum
aggregate nominal amount of £8,125,074, whicn represents an amount which is equal to two-thirds of the aggregate nominal vaiue of the issued
and unconditionally allotted ordinary share capital of the Company as it was at close of business on b August 2020(such amount to be reduced
by the nomnal amaount of any Relevant Securities issued under the authority conferred by paragraph 9.1 of Resolution 8}

The authorities sought in Resolution 9 are in substitution for ali existing authorities, granted in the Company's Articles of Association or
otherwise, and without prejudice to previous allotments made under such existing authorities. The authorities will each expire 15 months after
the date of the AGM or, if earlier. at the conciusion of the next AGM of the Company. The Directors have no present intention of exercising these
authorities but believe that it is in the best interests of the Company to have the authorities available so that the Board has the flexibility to take
advantage of business opportunities as they arise.

Resolution 10 - disappiication of pre-emption rights {Special Resofution}

Resolution 10, which wifl be proposed as a Speciat Resolution, seeks to renew the authority conferred on the Directors at {ast year's AGM to
issue equity securities of the Company for cash without application of the pre-emption rights provided by Section 5610of the Act, The authority
being sought provides for non-pre~emptive aliotments of equity securities: (i) to ordinary shareholders in proportion to their shareholdings then
existing; {ii}to holders of other equity securities as required by, or subject to{as the Directors consider necessary), the rights of those securities,
and to deal with treasury shares, fractional entitlements and legal and practical problems inany territory, for example on a rights issue or other
similar share 1ssue; and (i} for cash up to an aggregate nominal value of £609,381 which represents 5% of the issued ordinary share capital of
the Company as it was at close of business on § August 2020. The authority being sought is in substitution for atl existing authorities, granted
inthe Company’s Articles of Association or otherwise, and without prejudice to previous allotments made uncer such authorities, and will expire
15 months after the date of the AGM or, if earlier, at the conclusion of the next AGM of the Cempany. The Directors have no present intention of
exgrcising these authorities but beiieve that it is in the bestinterests of the Company to have the authorities available sa that the Board has
the flaxibility to take advantage of business opportunities as they arise.

The authority sought and the limits sel by this resolution will also disapply the application of Section 561 of the Act from a sale of treasury
shares to the extent also specified in this resolution.
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Shareholder information
Explanatory notes to the Notice of Annual General Meeting continued

Special Business continued

Resolution 11 - additional disapplication of pre-emption rights

Resolution 11, which will be proposed as a Special Resotution, if the Directors wish to aliot new shares or other equity securities for casn, company
law requires that these shares are first offered to shargholders in propertion Lo their existing holdings. Resolution 10 disapplies this law forup
to 5%, of the share capitaliexclusive of treasury shares).

The Pre-Emption Group's Statement of Principles also supports the annual disapplication of pre-emption rights in respect of allotments of
shares and other equity securities for cash where these represent no more than an additional 9% of the issued ordinary share capital and are
used only in connection with an acquisition of specified capital investment. The Pre-Emption Group's Statement of Principles defines specificd
capital investment’ ag meaning one or maore specific capital investments or related uses tor the proceeds of an issue of equity securities.

Accordingly, the purpose of Resolution 11is to authgrise the Directors to allot new shares and other eguity securities pursuant to the allotment
authority given by Resolution 9 ar self treasury shares for cash, without first being required to offer such securities to existing sharehoiders, up
to a further nominal amount of £609,381{representing 2,437,622 shares), being approximately 5% of the issued ordinary share capital of the
Company as at 5 August 2020, the latest practicable date before the publication of this Notice. The authority granted by this resolution, if passed,
will only be used in connection with an acquisition or specified capital investment which is announced contemporaneously with the allotment.
or which has taken place in the preceding six-month period and is disclosed in the announcement of the issue. If the authority given in
Resolution 11 is used, the Company will publish details of its use in its next Annual Report.

The authonty granted by Resclution 11 would be in addition to the general authority to disapply pre-emnption righls under Resclution 10. The
maximum nominal value of equity securities which could be allotted if both authoritics were used would be £4.875.044, which represents
approximately 10% of the issued ordinary share capital of the Company as at 5 August 2020, Seing the latest practicable date before the
publication of this Notice.

ihe Directors intend to adhere to the provisions in the Pre-Emption Group's Statement of Principles and not to allot shares or other equity securities
or seil treasury shares for cash on a non-gre-emptive basis pursuant to the authority in Resolution 10in excess of anamount ecual to 7.5% of
the total issued ordinary share capital of the Company, excluding treasury shares, within a rolling three-year period, other than:

» with prior consultation with shareholders; or
= inconnection with an acguisition or specified capitai investment which is announced contemporaneocusly with the allotment or which has
taken place in the preceding six-month period and is disclosed in the announcement of the allotment.

The Directors have no current intention ta ailot shares. These authoritios will expire at the conclusion of the AGM in 2021 or 18 months after tho
date of the AGM.
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Financial calendar

Annual Beneral Meeting

74 September 7020

Bividend:
- tx-dividend date
- Record date

- Payment date

AnnoJncement of half-year results
Publication of interim Report

interim dividend paid

5 Novernber 2020
& Novermber 2020
8 December 2020
7EarriyrFeb mair;VZ D;

Early February 2021
May 2021

Financial year end

Announcement of full-year results

31 May 2021
Farly August 2027

Publication of Annual Report and Accounts

Divisional contacts

Fuels

Late August 2021

Tel: 01829 260900
www. nwifuels.co.uk

Tel: 01829 260704
www.boughey.co.uk

Tel: OBO0 262387
www.nwfagriculture.co.uk

Discover more online

www.nwif.co.uk

NWF Group plc ‘l O‘l
nwfoo.dk
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